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We implement the strategy of “intensifying the
development in Shenzhen”, strive to focus the core
business in Shenzhen and a few other first-tier and

key second-tier cities.
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Corporate Profile
NESTR G

Shenzhen Investment Limited has been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1997, which is
the largest listed real estate company under Shenzhen State Owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission. Its core business
includes property development (mainly residential real estate, also
including industrial real estate and commercial complex), property
investment and management. With a clear focus on Shenzhen, and
plan for other core cities in China, the Company is committed to be a
first-class real estate developer and real estate operator.

Now the Group has a land reserve with a planned total gross floor
area close to 10 million square meters in various cities of China, of
which the quality land reserve with a planned total gross floor area
of approximately 3 million square meters is located in Shenzhen. The
Company is committed to further optimize its land reserves structure,
and further concentrate its assets and business in first-tier cities
including Shenzhen and key second-tier cities.

It has all along been the Company’s core strategy objective to promote
the long term sustainable development of its business, with an aim to
bring a stable return and create value appreciation for its shareholders.
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The diagram above provides an overview of the Group’s development projects in Shenzhen.
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Executive Directors

Dr. LU Hua, Chairman

Mr. HUANG Wei, President (Appointed on 21 July 2015)
Mr. GAO Shengyuan, President (Resigned on 21 July 2015)
Mr. MOU Yong

Mr. LIU Chong

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. WU Jiesi
Mr. HUANG Yige

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael
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Company Secretary
Mr. LEE Ka Sze, Carmelo
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Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

Legal Adviser

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, Solicitors & Notaries

Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

The Bank of East Asia, Ltd.

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
Hang Seng Bank Ltd.

Nanyang Commercial Bank Ltd.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Ltd.

Registered Office

8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,

9 Science Museum Road Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Share Registrar

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22 Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Website

www.shenzheninvestment.com
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Highlights of 2015 Results
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Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profits

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
Share of profits and losses of associates

Profit before tax
Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Interim and proposed final dividend

per share (HK cents)

Wz

SHERAR

EF

[EEAEARLEF RER

FEARES & A R I R BB
BT AT A
NEEBAFA
FEIE & T
SRERREF ()
BRPBREZRORE
(740)

18,428.17
12,053.69
6,374.48
7.09
600.75
6,510.63

2,868.80
40.56

16.00

13,827.11 +33.3%
9,754.16 +23.6%
4,072.95 +56.5%

46.48 -84.7%
650.12 -7.6%
5,852.97 +11.2%
3,131.32 -8.4%
53.62 -24.4%
16.00 0.0%

Financial Position

B # AR

Net assets excluding non-controlling

interests

Cash and deposits (including pledged

deposits and restricted cash)
Net loans
Net assets per share excluding
non-controlling interests (HK$)

BEFE (TER
IR )

Re kG (BECER
FREZRERE)

FER

BREERE (TEE
JFEpEs) (GB)

33,325.87

13,818.78
7,556.32

4.51

30,495.86 +9.3%
9,657.38 +43.1%
19,741.44 -61.7%
4.58 -1.5%
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Highlights of 2015 Results
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Key Ratios
FERR

Gross profit margin EAR=R 34.6 29.5
Net loan to net assets excluding FEREEEFRE

non-controlling interests (T BRI EERER) 2 X 22.7 64.7
Dividend payout ratio PIRENE S 39.4 29.8

Results (by operating segment)
RE (BEEDH)

Turnover EHERE
Property development bES S 15,056.91 10,938.15
Property investment VR E 789.47 681.15
Property management b ES=3L] 1,369.01 1,211.04
Manufacturing glE 430.80 432.90
Others Hib 781.98 563.87
Total pak ) 18,428.17 13,827.11
Segment Results - Profits/(Loss) PEEE - BN (FE)
Property development L ELEN 4,853.63 2,460.31
Property investment (Note) MERE (M5E) 2,125.26 2,118.53
Property management MEER 84.90 55.92
Manufacturing B 11.44 1.26
Others Ht (58.83) (9.25)
Total pabec] 7,016.40 4,626.77
Note: Segment results included the increase in fair value of investment properties Wi : PEEELEREDEAIABEEND

1,082. 18 BB T (ZE— W4 : 764.09
BEEL) RBERSEHERBR 2B %
EOEBBREREVEZAARBEEZHL
43210 &8 (ZZT— U4 : 846.82H
BET) °

of approximately HK$1,082.18 million (2014: HK$764.09 million) and the
recognition of change in fair value of completed properties held for sale upon
transfer to investment properties of approximately HK$432.10 million (2014:
HK$846.82 million).
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFFEHBEE

RESULTS HEE
REVENUE FROM CONTINUING @R

OPERATIONS Z W 18,428,172 13,827,105 9,778,807 8,312,726 7,320,584
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT A

(Including profit before tax from (B IEIERHE LT

a discontinued operation) BRI BTEF) 6,510,629 5855454 5,093,193 3,701,801 2,892,293
Income tax expense TS X

(Including income tax expense (BEFFFEE

from a discontinued operation) ZETERAY) (3,423,377) (2,349,413) (1,982,204) (1,141,561) (1,076,534)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE R 3,087,252 3,506,041 3,110,989 2,560,240 1,815,759
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: TR

Owners of the parent [SYNGIE/Z=UN 2,868,796 3,131,316 2,738,432 2,156,069 1,522,078

Non-controlling interests Sl e 3o 218,456 374,725 372,557 404,171 293,681

3,087,252 3,506,041 3,110,989 2,560,240 1,815,759

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- ¥E -8R

CONTROLLING INTERESTS  JEiEftiEzs
Current assets TEBE 55,498,072 59,685,807 49,718,511 34,882,126 27,321,662
Non-current assets ERBEE 35,587,146 = 34,819,100 27,173,014 19,509,881 14,218,962
Total assets WEE 91,085,218 94,504,907 76,891,525 54,392,007 41,540,624
Total liabilities BEE (55,516,152) (61,731,272) (49,312,179) (34,882,164) (24,527,687)
Net assets BEEE 35,569,066 32,773,635 27,579,346 19,509,843 17,012,937
Non-controlling interests FEVER T (2,243,201) (2,277,775) (2,241,535) (1,961,947) (1,469,558)
Net assets excluding EESFE (TREFE

non-controlling interests PRRGRERS) 33,325,865 30,495,860 25,337,811 17,547,896 15,543,379
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In 2015, the differentiation of the real estate
market in China has been accelerating. The
performance in the real estate market in

the first-tier cities of China, represented by
Shenzhen, was prominent, with both the price
and the trading volume increased, while the
momentum in the real estate market in the third
and fourth-tier cities was shrinking gradually,
and de-stocking is still under great pressure.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

As the financial and innovation center of China, Shenzhen, where
numerous high-growth companies gathered, has a strong appeal
to external population. The steady growth of the economy, large
net inflows of foreign population, high net worth population growing
continually, together with a clean urban environment, gave rise to
vigorous rigid housing demand and housing upgrade demand in
Shenzhen real estate market. However, the land and housing supply
remaining insufficient in- Shenzhen. The strong supply-and-demand
fundamentals contributed to the prosperity of Shenzhen real estate
market throughout the year.

Y ERTENSRMEFTL - REEEENSKRELE - HINEAD
BERRAOES| ) - HEEENLELEE  RENALFRA - BFEAR
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RMBFUERF - AR RO LENEEREIDATRE  BYNHEFER
EE3 T RYIFHETIZEFRER

LI g

Shumyip Dongling 7 % 5 &



Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERER AT
Annual Report 2015 F R

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

As a local enterprise grew up in Shenzhen, the Group put forward to the
development strategy of “Intensifying the development in Shenzhen” in
2011 based on its deep understanding of Shenzhen, and then applied its
strong ability to secure resources, to advance and implement the strategy
steadily and gradually. Through the active efforts made by it in the past
five years, the Group currently has a land reserve with a capacity building
area of 2.2 million square meters in the core location of Shenzhen,
realized a continuous optimization of land reserve structure, enhanced
the profitability of product, and achieved a satisfactory results in terms of
property sales, core business profitability and corporate finance, which
all laid a solid foundation for the Group’s sustainable profitability and
transformation development in the future.
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During the year, the Group achieved a turnover of HK$18,428.2
million, representing an increase of 33.3% over the same period
of last year. Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders was
HK$2,868.8 million, representing a decrease of 8.4% over the same
period of last year. If excluding the net effect of the changes in fair
value of investment properties attributable to the Group and provisions
to the land projects in the third and fourth-tier cities for the year, and
gain on a bargain purchase and provision for impairment of investment
in Coastal Greenland Limited in the same period of last year, profit
attributable to shareholders was HK$2,158.7 million, representing an
increase of 32.9% over the same period of last year. Basic earnings
per share were HK40.56 cents, representing a decrease of 24.4%
over the same period of last year. The Board proposed the payment
of a final dividend of HK13.00 cents per share for year 2015 in cash,
with a scrip dividend alternative. Together with the interim dividend of
HK3.00 cents per share already paid, the total dividend for the whole
year amounts to HK16.00 cents per share.

In 2015, the Group seized the opportunities in Shenzhen real estate
market to make great efforts to promote sales actively, and achieved
a substantial increase in the contract sales. The Group completed
a total contract sales for the year of RMB16 billion, representing a
substantial increase of 116% over the same period of last year, to
which, the projects in Shenzhen with higher profit margin contributed
approximately 70%. In addition, the sales of the Group’s projects in
Eastern China also rebounded significantly.

The Group’s contract sales scale in 2011 was approximately RMB4.5
billion, with five years’ development, the Group’s contract sales scale
tripled and reached RMB16 billion, representing a compound growth
rate of approximately 37%. The Group achieved a rapid development,
also greatly enhanced the visibility of its future profit.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Implementing its Strategy of Intensifying the Development in
Shenzhen, Acquiring Quality Assets

On 21 December 2015, the Company and its parent Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement to acquire 95% of the equity interest in Fairwind
Power Limited at a price of RMB1.914 billion. Fairwind Power
Limited, through its subsidiaries, holds Shumyip Dongling project, a
project located in Huangbeiling, Luohu District, Shenzhen, which is
in close proximity to convenient transportation and comprehensive
neighborhood amenities with a large population. The project has
a total planned gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 530,000
square meters and a capacity building area (excluding resettlement
area) of approximately 250,000 square meters, which is comprised of
Land A and Land B. Land A has been entered into the later stage of
development, and is expected to commence its sale in 2016. Land B
is under design stage. We expect that the project would bring a better
return to the Company in the next three years.

REDREE  WREHEE

—E-RE+A-+—B ALTHEE
REDRE (5E) BRAREEG G4 WE
iz AARB19.14B TR E 5 Uk 38 H 3%
B2 Fairwind Power Limited 95% [%#E o
Fairwind Power Limitedi&@BH R Rl A F
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BHE) 258 F 7K - HA - BR1EM IR -
HERAE E AR & R - FEE20165 A SH
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In the past three years, the Group through three consecutive acquisitions
of high quality assets in Shenzhen from its parent, took over the quality
projects located in Shenzhen, namely Upper Hills, Shumyip Zhongcheng
and Shumyip Dongling, while actively secured Shenzhen urban renewal
projects, strengthened its close cooperation with municipal state-owned
enterprises, and acquired a quality land reserve with a capacity building
area of 1.8 million square meters in Shenzhen. The Company’s land
reserve structure and asset quality have been optimized greatly and the
profitability has been enhanced significantly.

Operation Services Based on Accumulated Strength,
Preliminary Build Brand Advantage

In the field of asset light business that based on operation services,
the Group acquired rich resources after many years of accumulation,
with its operation capability increasingly enhanced and its brand image
increasingly prominent. In respect of park operation, the Group has
ten thousands of corporate customers in Chegongmiao and Tian’an
Cyber Park, and has over 20 years of experience in the business of
parks operation; in respect of commercial operation, the Group has an
international business operations team; and in respect of residential
property management, the Group has six property management
companies with Grade | qualification in mainland China, covering
over 40 million square meters of property management area. All the
above laid a broad platform for the Group to strengthen and expand
its property operation management services and enhance its return on
asset light business.
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The Group reinforced its sales proceeds collection and capital management,
and gained a remarkable effect. As of 31 December 2015, the net gearing
ratio (including all interest-bearing liabilities) of the Group decreased 43.4
percentage points to 36.5% as compared with that as of the end of
2014.

In June 2015, the Company grasped the time window of capital
market to successfully place 670 million new shares to institutional
investors at a placing price of HK$4.13 per share and raised
approximately HK$2.7 billion, which replenished the Group’s funds
for future development effectively, and optimized the structure of the
Group’s assets and liabilities. The placement has been supported
greatly by the shareholders and investors, |, on behalf of the Group,
hereby extend my sincere thanks to the new and existing shareholders.

We will meet the expectations of the shareholders, continue to look for
high quality assets, to enhance the operation efficiency of the Group,
to facilitate the transformation of the profit model, so as to create a
sustainable and stable return for shareholders.

As the global economic recovery is weakening, Chinese economy
growth rate is slowing. Domestic economic structure optimization and
upgrading and lack of the driver of economic growth has become new
challenges under the new normal of the economy. China’s real estate
as a whole is showing a sign of slowing growth, differentiation of the
industry is being accelerating and the difference among regions is
becoming more obvious. Although loosening regulation and favorable
house-purchase policies have a positive effect on the property sales
in some third and fourth-tier cities, but in a whole, the de-stocking
in these regions is still under great pressure. By contrast, the first-
tier cities of China, represented by Shenzhen, especially the value of
the property located in the core location of the cities, continues to be
prominent, which has become the favorite place in the first-tier cities,
and even in the heart of the high net worth people of China.

AEEMNREERRNESER  ARE
Z-HEZZT—RFI+-A=+—H XE&E
BFaEx(BEMmaeTEeaf) HE2014
FRTF543.4EH D BE36.5% °
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BR27TEABTT - BRMAR T ERBERRERE
T BIETEEEERERARE o thRERE
BTERRMEEENANZR  EHBEAR
REE - A ERRR R AP R

BB TARE  BESHKELEE &=
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After the rapid growth in 2015, the price of assets in the first-tier
cities is already at record levels, and controlling policies have been
introduced in places like Shanghai and Shenzhen etc. one after
another recently. | believe, in 2016, the real estate market in the first-
tier cities of China, including Shenzhen, will develop steadily, and may
have a slowing growth, but it still has a prosperous growth prospects.
The reason being, Shenzhen has a healthy industry structure, huge
rigid demand, continuous inflow of employment population and the
largest group of high net worth population while the land supply
is extremely scarce, all these factors will support the vigorous
development of the real estate market in Shenzhen for a long time. We
have confidence in the development of the real estate in the first-tier
cities, especially in Shenzhen.

The property development and sales business is still the Group’s major
source of earnings and cash flows for a long time in the future and
also a strong support to the transformation development of the Group.
We will continue to firmly implementing the strategy of “Intensifying the
development in Shenzhen”, continue to vigorously increase our land
reserve in Shenzhen and continuously enhance the quality of assets
and the levels of return. While maintaining a steady growth in the scale
of development and sales, we will increase quality investment property
in the core area, and operate them efficiently, endeavor to realize a
sustained growth in asset value and the contribution of rental income.
At the same time, the Group will strengthen its efforts in control,
integrate the product development and marketing capacity within the
Group, further improve product branding and quality, enhance the
efficiency of development, to provide better products and services for
consumers and investors. Moreover, the Group will take an active part
in the development of Shenzhen affordable housing and talent housing
construction projects, and exert its professional ability and brand
advantage in the aspect of real estate construction and operation, to
explore business opportunities, and make contribution to the long-
term healthy development of the real estate market in Shenzhen, and
Shenzhen to become a more livable, more vitality and competitive city.
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The Group will proactively build an operation service platform with core
competitiveness, develop new industry and profit growth point. We
will integrate and optimize the strength in the wisdom park operation,
residential property services and commercial management operation
within the Group, so as to increase service income, strengthen
operation capacity and brand, and build a new core competences.

In addition, the Group will actively grasp the opportunity from state-
owned enterprise reformation and leverage the capital market to
facilitate property asset securitization. Leveraging on the incubation
platform sponsored by the parent together with Tencent and Huawei,
we will enhance and release of the
value of the business unit within the Group through incubation and

namely “urban dreamworks”,

cultivation.

2016 is the first year of the Group’s “13th Five Year” Plan, for which
we have set a more ambitious goal. On property sales, the Group has
an annual saleable value of approximately RMB29 billion, of which,
the saleable value in Shenzhen accounts for over 80%. The Group
will strengthen market tracking, follow up closely market orientation,
have “de-stocking, increase profits” as its goal,
promote the growth in sales. The Group has a contract sales target for
the whole year of 2016 of RMB18.5 billion, representing an increase
of approximately 16% as compared to the actual contracted sales for
last year.

actively and flexibly

The Group will continue to leverage the advantage in cooperation
with state-owned enterprises in Shenzhen, and vigorously develop
the resources in Shenzhen. We will make great efforts to increase
the resources in the urban renewal projects, and actively participate
in the land redevelopment in key districts such as Bao’an, Longgang
and Pingshan, in Shenzhen. At the same time, the Group will seize
the national de-stocking policy to promote the property sales and
disinvestment of the project in the third and fourth-tier cities, and
speed up the optimization of land reserve structure.
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The Group will integrate and take advantage of the resources, actively
establish three main operation service centers, namely wisdom
park operation centre, residential property services and commercial
management operation centre. Through establishing a unified service
platform, we will provide the customers in the park via internet
with many value-added services, such as e-commerce, finance,
government affairs and business, improve the operation level and
increase operating income, facilitate the transformation to the asset
light business with operations and services as the core. In addition, the
Group will strengthen the cooperation with the hospital of the parent in
medical business, to develop rehabilitation products for elderlies and
medical rehabilitation care services in some of the property held by the
Group.

| believe that, through unremitting efforts, the Group can, within the
“13th Five Year” period, achieve a balance between growth in scale
and value appreciation, and realize the continuous optimization of land
reserve structure and asset structure. And, we will get well-prepared
and plan for transformation and upgrading to build brand, achieve a
sound and sustainable development of the Company, and create a
better benefit and return for shareholders.
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In 2015, driven by vigorous rigid housing demand and housing
improvement demand, the performance in Shenzhen real estate
market outshined the others, with both the price and the trading
volume increased significantly. Benefit from the prosperity of Shenzhen
real estate market, and with the efforts of all colleagues, the Group’s
project sales increased significantly, and achieved satisfactory results.

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2015, the Group achieved
a turnover from continued operation of HK18,428.2 million, representing
an increase of 33.3% over the same period of last year. Gross profit
margin was 34.6%, representing an increase of 5.1 percentage
points. Profit attributable to shareholders was HK$2,868.8 million,
representing a decrease of 8.4% over the same period of last year.
If excluding the net effect of the changes in fair value of investment
properties attributable to the Group and provisions to the land project
in the third and fourth-tier cities for the year, and gain on a bargain
purchase and provision for impairment of investment in Coastal
Greenland Limited in the same period of last year, profit attributable
to shareholders was HK$2,158.7 million, representing an increase of
32.9% over the same period of last year. Basic earnings per share
was HK40.56 cents, representing a decrease of 24.4% over the same
period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Property Development

Benefiting from the strong housing demand and rising housing purchase
sentiments in Shenzhen, the trading volumes and prices have increased
significantly in Shenzhen’s real estate market during the year. The Group
has promptly seized this picking-up market opportunity to actively
promote the sales of several major projects in Shenzhen and achieved
satisfactory results.
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Contracted Sales & Booked Sales Performance
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Sales Revenue Booked: During the year, the Group recorded
approximately 805,000 square meters in property sales (excluding the
interests attributable to the Group in its three principal associates),
representing an increase of 6.3% over the same period of last year,
and achieved a net revenue in property sales of RMB12,204.7 million
(equivalent to HK$15,056.9 million) (net of business tax), representing
a substantial increase of 37.7% over the same period of last year.
The gross profit margin of property sales was 36.9%, representing
an increase of 6.0 percentage points over the same period of last
year. The increase of the gross profit margin was mainly due to the
market in Shenzhen was rapidly picking-up and the contribution from
net sales in Shenzhen projects of the Group with higher gross profit
margin to the sales revenue booked increased to 57.5% from 45.7%
for the same period of last year. (The average gross profit margin
for the Group’s projects in Shenzhen was approximately 49.6%, the
average gross profit margin for other projects in the other tier-one
cities was approximately 39.8%, the average gross profit margin for
the projects in the tier-two and three cities was approximately 10.5%).
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Property Sales Booked in 2015

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDN

RIEREROA

Shenzhen Investment Limited

Annual Report 2015 F R

2015FEEMEHE

111,302

5,282

Wanlin Lake Residential 588

&R F=

Rui Cheng Residential 67,750 324 4777
B F=

Garden Hill Residential 2,861 28 9,708
S SIE=Y:) F=

Terra Building Industrial/Commercial 3,044 136 44,729
RAKRE EX W

Nanhu Rose Bay Residential 30,365 271 8,918
EAR R E F=

Yihu Rose Bay Residential 25,328 85 3,338
18 BUR IS F=E

Yihu Rose Bay Commercial Commercial 3,573 25 7,118
18RI TR 50 7 2 [HES

Junan Garden Cooperative Housing Residential 2,643 154 60,613
&2 EIFRERE F=

Tianyuxiangshan Garden Residential 5,876 243 41,280
REELTEE F=E

Nongke Business Tower Commercial 871 30 34,894
EREBHAE EES

Purple Kylin Hill Garden Residential 3,637 76 21,563
EEILTEE =

Royal Garden Residential 1,648 14 8,244
il F=

Noble Times Residential 8,142 118 14,535
RRER =

Shumyip City Residential 111,042 692 6,230
IR =

Yundonghai Residential 23,446 177 7,566
ERE F=E

Saina Bay Residential 52,416 218 4,162
ENE =

Jiangyue Bay Residential 124,645 1,934 15,520
LA & =

Boxing Building Warehouse/Commercial 2,689 71 26,230
HEAE Bk EE

Bolong Building Warehouse/Commercial 20,157 519 25,771
EERE Bk

UpperHills North Complex 88,292 5,839 66,132
R LI ek

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Residential 68,832 352 5116
BRILREERN =

Changzhou Shumyip Huafu Residential 10,547 81 7,662
BINREER F=

Royal Spring North - Villa Residential 5,170 46 8,931
F5 R A0S R 22 *=E

Others 30,560 184 5,995
He

Total &&f 804,636 12,205




Shenzhen Investment Limited

FYHERER AT
Annual Report 2015 F 3§

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN W E DN

Distribution of Sales Area by City
SHEERSM (REmEls)
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Distribution of Net Sales by City
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Distribution of Sales Area by Type
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Contracted Sales: During the year, Shenzhen real estate market was
rapidly picking-up, and the Group seized the opportunity to actively
promote sales, which resulted in a satisfactory sales performance.
During the year, the Group achieved 948,000 square meters in
contracted sales area and contracted sales income of approximately
RMB16 billion, representing a sharp increase of 116% over the same
period of last year. The average selling price was RMB16,857 per
square meter, representing an increase of 45% over the same period
of last year. During the year, the Group collected sales proceeds of
RMB16.87 billion.

2015 Contracted Sales Summary

UpperHills Shenzhen Complex

R E el o
Tanglang city* Shenzhen Residential
YERAM F =
Jinshazhou Guangzhou Residential
M =0 =
Guanlan Rose Garden Shenzhen Residential
LN B Zell =
Qingshuihe Auto Park Shenzhen Warehouse/Commercial
(Taifu Auto Park)
VB 7K BB T B EE R wI Bk EE
(REERM)
Shumyip City Shunde Residential
R [ =
Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Ma’anshan Residential
BRILREER gl =
Rui Cheng Changsha Residential
B £ fEE
Wanlin Lake Huizhou Residential
=0 Vi =M F=E
Garden Hill Huizhou Residential
eV ) =N =
Changzhou Shumyip Huafu Changzhou Residential
BHIREER M =
Terra Building (Terra Jingu) Shenzhen Warehouse/Commercial
BTAKE (FREeR) wA Bk EE
Saina Bay Heyuan Residential
N E AR =
Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Residential

AR RR S

EEE®EDN

ERABERR  FRARYIEHERSARERE
- AEEIEEGS - BISRESHEETE-
HETEETERE - AEEFANERS BB
EMBEMSET K ARABEERANAR
¥16018 7T - RILL AR FR116% - BT H K
TS EERK A16,8577T ¢ b EFRIE IR
45% ° FIN - HERIRARKE168.7(E7T ©

2015F S EHE

96,726 6,708 69,351

53,327 2,082 39,042
77,776 1,349 17,345
50,658 1,261 24,892
35,542 991 27,883
114,609 743 6,483
111,490 568 5,095
82,312 370 4,495
64,075 364 5,681
56,916 267 4,691
33,802 223 6,597
4,628 1568 34,140
42,574 156 3,664
12,393 130 10,490
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Project Name City Type Sales Area Sales Unit Price
BEEE i A E HEHEE HELHE BfE
(sg.m.) (RMB million) (RMB/sg.m.)
(AR¥T/
(FRK) (AR¥EBEET) FAXK)
Yundonghai Sanshui Residential 16,590 119 7,173
ERE =K F=
Shanglin Garden Taizhou Residential 24,288 112 4,611
v ZN F=
Splendid City Jiangyan Residential 29,378 108 3,676
ke ZIE T=
Yihu Rose Bay Chengdu Residential 27,798 104 3,741
TRMBERL R &P F=
Royal Spring Chaohu Residential 6,308 60 9,512
FHERHE C i F=
European Garden Dongguan Residential 3,741 41 10,960
==Yt = F=
Noble Times Shenzhen Residential 1,613 38 23,559
FRER Ll =
Purple Kylin Hill Garden Shenzhen Residential 1,000 21 21,000
LHILTEE sl T=
Total &5 947,544 15,973

* This project was co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group, with 50% equity * ZHEBHEZIMMBEESERE  AEEF
attributable to the Group, and it is accounted for using equity method. B50% R - ARKUERAZE -

UpperHills )&% 5
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Project Development: During the year, the Group had a new EHEBRBR : FR AEBEHHALIERELY
construction area of approximately 1,560,000 square meters, 1568 F 5K » At £3Rk94.3% - T T E &
representing an increase of 94.3% over the same period of last year, #1008 F 72K » [tk £R20.8% ©

and a completed area of approximately 1,000,000 square meters,

representing an increase of 20.8% over the same period of last year.

Newly Construction Projects in 2015 2015 M TIEE

Shumyip Zhongcheng (Land plot 05-01)  Shenzhen Complex 338,873 245,383
REFR R (05-01338) el mee

Shumyip Zhongcheng (Land plot 05-03)  Shenzhen Complex 24,611 20,419
REEFR YL (05-034038) el mae

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Phase 3.2 Ma’anshan Residential 190,872 146,774
BRILRFETIH2EE B F=

Shumyip City Phase 3.2 Shunde Residential 124,728 101,905
R 3. 28] JIEfE T=

Gaobangshan No. 1 Garden Phase 1 Huizhou Residential 135,893 100,511
=L 15R/EE 1 ER =M F=

Garden Hill Phase 3.1.1C(1#) Huizhou Residential 21,072 20,921
F10Z 531 H—1EC(1#) BN F=

Rui Cheng Phase 2.2 Changsha Residential 73,757 73,363
E2.28] 92 =

Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 3 Shenzhen Warehouse/Commercial 35,770 15,000
BB T EE S E 3 wA R UEES

Taifu Square Phase 1&2 Shenzhen Complex 283,843 88,050
RERES1R2H wA maR

Shenyang Old Complex Project Shenyang Complex 40,200 -
BHELRAEIRE &5 meee

Chaohu Royal Spring North Phase 2 Chaohu Residential 12,874 11,364
L OBl LW T=

Tanglang City West Shenzhen Complex 278,798 105,963
YERAS PR R 3l meER

Total &5t 1,561,291 929,653
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Completed Projects in 2015

2015 = TIHE

Shumyip City Phase 3.1a Shunde Residential 146,292 115,040
REWS.1Ea B F=

Saina Bay Belle Riviere Phase 1 Heyuan Residential 100,927 84,379
EWNERRF1H b F=

Jinshazhou Phase 2 Guangzhou Residential 164,712 122,005
& IMN2ER =0 F=

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Phase 1.2 Ma’anshan Residential 223,959 151,712
BRIREEFN1H2/8E Bl F=E

Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 2(8-9#) Wuhan Residential 29,945 24,359
AR E2HS (8-9#) Rz T=

Wanlin Lake Phase 8.3 & 8.4 Huizhou Residential 187,179 123,583
EM8.3 8.4 =N =

Shenyang Wuai Bus Station Project Shenyang Complex 59,889 -
B AE RIESGETE B &S et

Tanglang City East Shenzhen Residential 77,605 56,000
AR R wI =

Chaohu Royal Spring North Phase 1 Chaohu Residential 7,037 7,037
&AL = 1 8 b F=

Total &5t 997,545 684,115

Land Reserves

As of the end of December 2015, the Group had a total planned GFA
of 9.63 million square meters in land reserves (of which the Group
had rights and interests in 8.78 million square meters), and a capacity
building area of 7.23 million square meters (of which the Group had
rights and interests in 6.56 million square meters), of which, the
projects under construction had a total planned GFA of approximately
4.09 million square meters (of which the Group had rights and
interests in 3.75 million square meters) and a capacity building area
of 2.89 million square meters (of which the Group had rights and
interests in 2.64 million square meters).

TR

BE"T-hFT-_AE tHRFEEHRIE
§2 S H HE963E ¥ 77 K (#E & &P 10878E F
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Distribution of Land Reserves (As at 31 December 2015)

EEENWEDN

T fEE D (A20155128318)

By City — Planned GFA°s 7.3 (sq.m.) By City — Capacity Building Area’°®*s23 (sg.m.)

Whofm—RBZEE@MBE 3 (ELHXK)

3,279,199
1st-tier City — Shenzhen
— &R — AR

1,745,102
2nd-tier Cities

D6 — SHEREER 2 (FHK)

2,223,728
1st-tier City — Shenzhen
— &R — AR

1,454,968
2nd-tier Cities

—iRmTh — BT
4,609,800 3,550,509
3rd & 4th-tier Cities 3rd & 4th-tier Cities
= - PR = - R
By Type — Planned GFANos 73 (sq.m.) By Type — Capacity Building Area’°*s23 (sq.m.)
RO M —HREBEERE™ ° (FHXK) BFRA M —TREEERE2° (FHXK)
6,284,074 4,936,464
Residential Residential
FEHE | FEHE
i i
3,216,447 i < 2,177,025
Complex | ! | ‘ ‘ | ! 1 i Complex
e i | i i | i | e
} }
133,580 i 115,716
Industrial Industrial
EEME EEME
Notes: Biir

1 Planned GFA: the sum of the gross floor area of all the floors above and under
the ground of the single building or buildings within the scope of the land for
construction.

2 Capacity Building Area: the sum of the gross floor area which is used in the
calculation of the plot ratio within the land for construction.

3 Excluded the land in Heyuan project which is to be returned to the local
government.

BMEELAEE  2ERABERNERIZ R
EREVIIEIA EREUNTSEREEREZ
@A o

RARREEE  BRABBEAMBAER
TR R 2 AT
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Optimizing Structure of Land Reserves

Asset Injection: On 21 December 2015, the Company and Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited entered into an agreement to acquire 95%
of the equity interest in Fairwind Power Limited at a price of RMB1.914
billion (equivalent to HK$2.264 billion based on the agreed exchange
rate), which will be paid by the Company in cash. The remaining 5% of
the equity interest in Fairwind Power Limited is held by an independent
third party. Fairwind Power Limited, through its subsidiaries, holds
the Shumyip Dongling project. The acquisition was completed on 15
March 2016.

Shumyip Dongling project is a redevelopment project in Huangbeiling,
Luohu District, Shenzhen. The project is situated at the junction of
Feng Huang Road and Shennan East Road, which is an established
residential area and central business district in Luohu District with
access to Line No. 2, Line No. 5 and the planned Line No. 8 of
the Shenzhen Metro. The project has a land area of 55,184 square
meters, divided into Land A and Land B, which will be developed into
a comprehensive living complex comprising an open city commercial
street, a metro shopping promenade, office towers, hotels and health-
oriented residence.

Land A is the second-class residential land and commercial land,
with a capacity building area of 343,593 square meters (including
resettlement area), of which residential building with a GFA of
approximately 149,000 square meters, commercial building with a GFA
of approximately 3,900 square meters, and 200 parking spaces will be
reverted to the previous owners for free. The construction work of the
project commenced in 2011 and is expected to be completed by the
end of 2017.

TR EEEEL

BEIAN R_ZT—RF+_A=-+—H"
AREFARRE (£F) BRARZEH
FUARB1I914ET REEEXRTHE
2264188 L) MERNUE S F N KBE
#75 2 Fairwind Power Limited 95%%#E -
Fairwind Power Limitedfk T2 5%/% 1 H—
B E=#A ° Fairwind Power Limited:®
BEFRAAFERIIAERSZIER - BHENK
BRZZ—R"F=-ATAZTX °

RERBRHRY TTENRE B B8 —ESGE
B - MEEERERERERER - R
ORI 2SR AR - B AR S AR B P mO8TE AR
MERRKAEERELPOAKE - HEBMAE
HEIE55,184F J32K » 73A - BM{E DI 5 2
RARBARTEEY wEAXY 87
B EERBEEER—BNEERAE -

MRAR —HEEERAMEEERL T2 E
R R AT E AB43,503F 5K (BIEEEY
%) HAPEEmEL149,000F FKmEE
FiE -+ #13,900F 5 K 897 % F B & 2001 (=
B AEEBFEERE - ZMRER =T
——FHT - WHEHRA T —EFERT -

Shumyip Dongling jR % & %8



Land B is a commercial land, with a total capacity building area
of 57,200 square meters, and is intended to be developed into a
commercial building with a total GFA of approximately 76,700 square
meters. The construction work of Land B had not been commenced.

Disposal of Inefficient Lands: During the year, the Group had taken a
variety of measures to advance the negotiation with local government,
and made great efforts to dispose the projects in the third or fourth-
tier cities. In January 2016, an agreement was reached with the
relevant government department of Heyuan to return about 620,000
square meters of undeveloped land in Heyuan Saina Bay to the local
government.

The Group plans to proceed with the disposal of inefficient projects
in Taizhou, Sanshui, Jiangyan, Changzhou and Maanshan. As the
market values of certain projects in the third and fourth-tier cities may
be lower than their book values, for the sake of the prudence of the
accounting, the Group made a provision for impairment of certain
projects in the third and fourth-tier cities amounted to HK$372.4
million during the year.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group has a total area of approximately
one million square meters in investment properties, which are mainly
located in Shenzhen. During the year, the rent levels in Shenzhen
rose owing to a blooming real estate market. The Group continued
to promote the optimization of its property portfolio and improve its
management, and its property investment business continued to
maintain a steady growth. During the year, the Group achieved a rental
income of HK$789.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
15.9% over the same period of last year, while the gross profit
margin of its property investment was approximately about 87.8%,
approximate to that of the same period of last year. As a result of the
increase in rental level and the increase in property value, the Group
recorded for the year a revaluation gain of HK$1,082.2 million in its
investment property portfolio. In addition, there was a revaluation gain
of HK$432.1 million arising from the properties completed and held
for sales purpose being transferred to investment properties. The
change in fair value of the abovementioned two kinds of investment
properties had already been accounted for as profit for the year. With
the completion of projects including UpperHills and Taifu Square, the
Group’s income from, and the scale of, investment properties will
increase significantly.

Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYERBRAT
Annual Report 2015 F &

WIEBAEE B HAAERGELEEAE
R57200F F K BIASEREEBEARLY
76,700 F KM EETF o FMBMHBRET
ERARET o

BEERMTHIEER - FA AEEEAZE
G BEHGE R BUTHA - S =

WG MEEETESE  WR_ZT—RF—
A BEDRBRT AR S PTER B - SR

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ*%%ﬁ%im
RIEHREHIT -

RNEBMFEEEHERMN - =K ZE -8
M- BBUSEEMESTE  ARMERN=
Mg mIE B misEEAEENEER
B HREHEENRTHEZE  AEEF
WE M =OAREE HRAERE - &5
372.4B8ABTT -

R-TE—FHE+-_A=+—0 KEBKRE
%%@ﬁ#%um%iﬁ¥'ﬁ¢ﬁ%@ﬁ
RFI e FA - BENEHETISELE
wmﬁmiﬁﬁiﬂ'$%l%£mEﬁT
MEEEHEL  HZEE ETYWERE
EBEERIFEBELSER -FAEREERA
789.5EEB T L EFEE EAL15.9% ¢
MEREEHEEFNERLNE7.8% » H FFRH
HE - BERASKEN LA RMEEER
e FRAAEEMBREMEMRESHIG
B1,08225 88T SINERIEHERE
CEERMESBREREMEE LS HIE
B432.1EBBL LAMBHEBEDER
REEHEFARFENE - EERRREL
m REESEHEBEEN  AEERENE
B U A FOAR AR 1 KR £ o



3
=
[0
Q

ent Li

Shenzhen Invest
FYHERER AT
Annual Report 2015 F R

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWEDN

Property Investment
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Distribution of Rental Income by Property Type
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Property Management

The Group holds six property management companies with first
class property management qualifications at the national level. The
property management team is committed to improve services, support
the development of real estate business, and help to enhance the
corporate brand. As of the end of the year, the total area of properties
under the Group’s management was approximately 40 million square
meters, including a variety of property types such as government
offices, office buildings, residential estates, villas, and science and
technology parks mainly located in Pearl River and Yangtze River
deltas as well as the central region. During the year, the property
management business contributed an income of HK$1,369.0 million to
the Group, representing an increase of approximately 13.0% over the
same period of last year.
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Hotel Operations

The Group has three hotels in operation
and three under construction. Those
in operation are Suzhou Marriott
Hotel (with 293 guestrooms), Chaohu
Shumyip — Bantang Hot Spring Hotel
(with 20 spring villas), and Holiday Inn
Resort Chaohu Hot Spring (with 203
guestrooms). Those under construction
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190 guestrooms planned), Shumyip UpperHills Boutique Hotel (with
90 guestrooms planned), and Tanglang City project hotel, which is co-
developed with Shenzhen Metro Group (with 200 guestrooms planned).

During the year, the three hotels in operation achieved a turnover
(under other operating segment) of HK$182.0 million, representing an
increase of 2.9% over the same period of last year. Chaohu Shumyip-
Bantang Hot Spring Hotel achieved an occupancy rate of 45.74%,
representing an increase of 6.51 percentage points over last year;
Holiday Inn Resort Chaohu Hot Spring achieved an occupancy rate
of 48.65%, representing an increase of 6.65 percentage points over
last year; and Suzhou Marriott Hotel achieved an occupancy rate of
70.2%, representing an increase of 1.3 percentage points over last
year.

The Group’s manufacturing business mainly represents the LCD
manufacturing and metal materials processing and other business
which has been engaged in by the companies under the Group over
the years. During the year, the manufacturing business achieved an
operating income of HK$430.8 million, representing a decrease of
0.5% over the same period of last year.

Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited (a 51% owned
company of the Group), the principal activity of which is to assist local
governments in primary land development arrangement, made a loss
contribution of HK$187.3 million to the Group for the year as the local
government did not have any arrangement to launch such lands during
the year, while it made a net profit contribution of HK$52.8 million for
the same period of last year. In addition, Shenzhen Langtong Property
Development Company Limited (a 50% owned company of the Group)
contributed a net profit of HK$194.4 million to the Group for the
year, while it made a loss contribution of HK$6.3 million for the same
period of last year. This is the project company which co-developed
Shenzhen Tanglang City project with Shenzhen Metro Group.

Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYERBRAT
Annual Report 2015 F &

B)  ZELHBERBEE (BRBEOHMER)
N ERY M E B A ENERWMIEEBE
(BRAE200ERE) o

FR - ZFEETHBEERAELCERA
(B & DB T) 182.08 BE L ALt
FRR2.9% - EMREFSERERBEFA
AEHER45.74% » R EFIERE651EET D
2 HHRERRBEERBEFATEA
F%48.65% * & - FIER6.651HE 7% 5 #
M8 SEERRAERI02% B EFEE
1.3EB D -

REENUEEREIZREMBLESFU
R—ERENREBERSEERSBR MM
ITEXEB - TR HEXBLEEWRAETER
430.8B 8% IT - R TF£0.5% °

REEBBES1%ERORTMNMRAERE
BRAERDRANF EZ XK M E BT ET
T —RFHE - ARFAE BN ARLHE
BATHEL  ZARARNFRAAEESREE
187.38 88 - EFRBAENEFRSL2.8
BEBIT - B0 REEFASORE R HIR
JpBEHEREERARAFEAAEET
KM ER44EES T AFRBAB
BE.3BEBIT o Z AR AR EREE
TERZRYIIIERA 2 1B B A A] °

35



36

Shenzhen Investment Limited
HYIZRBRAT
Annual Report 2015 F R

During the year, the performance of associates invested by the Group
was within expectation. Of which, Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park
(Group) Co. Ltd., made a net profit contribution of HK$439.9 million
to the Group, representing an increase of 11.8% over the same period
of last year. Road King Infrastructure Limited, a listed company in
Hong Kong, made a net profit contribution of HK$224.2 million to the
Group, representing a decrease of 18.5% over the same period of
last year. Coastal Greenland Limited, another listed company in Hong
Kong, made a loss contribution of HK$77.6 million to the Group, while
it made a loss contribution of HK$26.7 million for the same period of
last year.

During the year, the Group actively explored financial resources, and
attached great importance to cash flow management to provide
funding for its business development.

In June 2015, the Company placed 670 million new shares to
independent institutional investors at a placing price of HK$4.13
per share and raised a net proceeds of approximately HK$2,700
million, which replenished the Group’s funds for future sustainable
development.

Of the placing proceeds, approximately HK$1,132 million has been
used to pay the first instalment of the acquisition cost of Shumyip
Dongling project, and the remaining proceeds has been used as short
time turnover during the period when the Group repaid the syndicated
loan for new syndicated loan in Hong Kong and for general corporate
purposes, and to be used to pay the remaining acquisition cost of
Shumyip Dongling project.

In May 2015, the Company entered into an agreement with a bank in
Hong Kong for a loan of HK$200 million for a term of 5 years.

During the year, the annual average consolidated interest rate for the
Group’s interest-bearing debts was approximately 4.62%, of which,
the annual average consolidated interest rate for bank loans and other
borrowings was 4.55%, the annual average consolidated interest rate
for the amount attributable to the ultimate controlling shareholder (all
loans from the shareholder was denominated in Renminbi) was 4.89%.
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Financial Position B AR R
Overall Financial Position BRI

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (87T R EMEE 21,375.1 29,398.8

Due to ultimate controlling shareholder JE A AR AR AR AR SR SR IR 4,781.9 4,467.4

Cash (including pledged deposits and Re (RREERTFRRE 13,818.8 9,657.4
restricted cash) ZRRHIRE)

Net gearing ratio with liabilities including FEREX (AGEREE 22.7% 64.7%
bank loans and other borrowings only RITREMER

Net gearing ratio with liabilities including FEEX (BEREMB 36.5% 79.9%
all the liabilities bearing interest HEAE)

The substantial decrease in net gearing ratio was mainly due to the FEEXNABRENEZRAZ  £—
following reasons: firstly, the properties sales and funds collection were FRNEERESOERE 2= FAQF
satisfactory during the year; secondly, the Company raised HK$2.7 A BS27EEL  £= - FRAEHE
billion through shares placing during the year; and thirdly, the Group EEBOHETABRBEEFTIRE

repaid certain loans during the year to reduce the borrowing amount.

Net Gearing Ratio
FEER
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Interest-bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

gy 4,775

Within one year

One to two years —ZE2ZFR 1,726.2
Three to five years =ZhF 3,497.2
Over five years FEUE 920.4

FRERTRAMEBE

499.1

2,782.5

9,274.9

2,391.7 4,752.7 820.7
7,565.4 1,932.3 8,839.5
- 996.3 -

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities Position
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total loans of HK$1,917.6
million (31 December 2014: HK$4,359.9 million) that were pledged
with assets (For details, see note 29 to the financial statements).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had provided guarantees up to
a maximum of HK$8,857.7 million (31 December 2014: HK$2,359.5
million) to banks for housing loans extended by the banks to the
purchasers of the Group’s properties (For details, see note 39 to the
financial statements).

In 2014, the project of Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (“Terra
Company”), a 75.05%-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Wuhan Terra”) was implicated in the
corruption case(s) involving the local government officials and
thus it was being involved in criminal investigation. The People’s
Procuratorate of Jianli County of Hubei Province has frozen certain
bank accounts of Wuhan Terra and Terra Company. As at 31
December 2015, those frozen bank accounts of Terra Company have
been released fully whilst the balance of the frozen bank accounts of
Wuhan Terra amounted to RMB540,000,000. The investigation is still
in progress. The Company believes that the matter is an individual
incident and will not have material impact on the assets, financials and
operations of the Group as a whole.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of 17,995
employees (2014: 17,129) of which 37 were stationed in Hong Kong
(mainly managerial and finance related personnel), and the rest were in
Mainland China. The related employees’ costs for the year (excluding
remuneration of the Directors) were approximately HK$1,084.8 million
(2014: HK$972.9 million).

Employee benefits and bonuses are based on their individual
performance, the Group’s profit condition, benefit level of the industry
and the current market condition. The remuneration packages
are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure internal equity and its
competitiveness in the market. In driving performance, we also grant
share options, under the share option scheme of the Group, to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the
Group.

Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYERBRAT
Annual Report 2015 F &

R_ZE—RAFE+-_A=+—8 KAEBEHE
F17,995% (ZZ — M4 : 17,129) €& -
HAERBIENEIE  F2AEER
MIEAE HRATEBEANIEETL - FAA
HREFAS (TRIEEEME) £51,084.8
BEET (ZT—MNF : 972988 ET) °

AEBREBEZHMREL - MEEER 2R
H - RNEEBFGOR - FIEFHBKE RERE
MRAMEE - WEFRMHFMER AZHA
R RERATSHEFE D - RATRER
SEBREASIREARRERAEEZEER
B AR ATE BN R TR o

Jiangyue Bay JT1%/2

39



40

Shenzhen Investment Limited
HYIZRBRAT
Annual Report 2015 F R

Dr. LU Hua
AEBELT

Dr. LU Hua, aged 52, an Executive Director since 21 June 2011 and
the Chairman of the Board since 31 January 2013. Dr. LU was the
President of the Company during the period from 21 June 2011 to 30
January 2013 and the Acting Chairman of the Board during the period
from 24 April 2012 to 30 January 2013. He is also the chairman of the
board of directors of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited. Dr. LU is also a director of various members of the
Group. Dr. LU holds a doctorate degree in Political Economics from
The Nankai University and a master’s degree in Finance from The
University of Reading in UK. Dr. LU held the position as the president
of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited
from April 2009 to December 2012. Prior to this, Dr. LU served as
the chairman of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd. (000014.SZ) and Shenzhen
Shahe Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. and the general manager of
Shenzhen Property Development Company Ltd.. Dr. LU also served
as a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company
of China, Ltd. (2318.HK) and Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.
HK). As present, he is a director of Shenzhen SEZ Construction
and Development Group Co., Ltd.. He has vast experience of over
twenty years in property development, corporate governance and
administrative management.
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Mr. HUANG Wei
=2EEE

Mr. HUANG Wei, aged 45, an Executive Director and President since
21 July 2015. Mr. HUANG was an on-the-job graduate at Guangdong
Academy of Social Sciences, where he graduated with a major in
law. He holds a master’s degree in Business Administration from
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University. Mr. HUANG is
currently a director and president of Shum Yip Group Limited and
Shum Yip Holdings Limited. He is also a director of various members
of the Group. Prior to joining Shum Yip Group Limited, he served
as the deputy secretary of the Party Working Committee, deputy
director of the Management Committee and director of Social Work
Committee of CPC Shenzhen Dapeng New District and served as a
member of the Standing Committee, director of District Committee
(district government) Office and a district government party member of
Longgang District and the Longgang District Youth League secretary.
Mr. HUANG has extensive experience in management.
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Mr. MOU Yong
EEBERE

Mr. MOU Yong, aged 53, an Executive Director since 1 December
2009. At present, he is also a director of Shum Yip Group Limited
and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited and its various subsidiaries.
He graduated from The Shaanxi University of Technology with major
in Chinese Language and Literature and obtained an advanced MBA
from The Peking University. He is a lawyer of The People’s Republic
of China and an arbitrator of The Shenzhen Arbitration Commission.
Prior to joining the Group in 2009, he held the positions of the head
of Enterprise Leadership Personnel Management and the chief of
General Office at The Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission.
At present, Mr. MOU is also a non-executive director of Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). Mr. MOU has extensive experience in
corporate governance and administrative management.
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Mr. LIU Chong
BRKE

Mr. LIU Chong, aged 56, an Executive Director since 30 December
2010 and a Vice President of the Company since April 2010. Mr LIU
is also a vice president of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited and a director of Shum Yip Shahe (Group)
Company Limited. He holds a bachelor’s degree and postgraduate
qualification from The Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics
with major in Accounting and he is a senior accountant. Mr. LIU is
also a director of various members of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, he used to serve successively as a deputy general manager
and financial controller of Shenzhen SDG Company Limited (&3
e B AR AT, a director and financial controller of Shenzhen
Petrochemical Group Co., Ltd., a director and financial controller of
Shenzhen Health Mineral Water Co., Ltd., a director of Shenzhen
Tellus (Group) Company Limited (200025.S2), and was an independent
director of Shenzhen Shenxin Taifeng Group Co., Ltd. (000034.SZ7)
during the period from May 2009 to February 2014. At present, Mr.
LIU is also a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. (28318.HK). Mr. LIU has over 30 years of
experience in finance and accounting management.
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Dr. WU Jiesi
RiEEEL

Dr. WU Jiesi, aged 64, a Non-executive Director since 11 May 2006.
Dr. WU holds a doctorate degree in Economics and conducted post-
doctorate research work in theoretical economics at The Nankai
University in the PRC and was conferred a professorship qualification
by The Nankai University in 2001. Dr. WU served in various positions
in Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from 1984 to 1995 and
served as the president of the Shenzhen Branch. From 1995 to
1998, he served as the deputy mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal
Government. From 1998 to 2000, he served as the assistant to the
Governor of Guangdong Province.

Dr. WU served as the chairman and honorary president of Guangdong
Investment Limited (270.HK), the director and honorary president
of Guangdong Tannery Limited (1058.HK), an executive director of
Hopson Development Holdings Limited (754.HK), an independent
non-executive director of Yingli Green Energy Holding Company
Limited (NYSE:YGE) and China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd (3968.HK),
respectively, a non-executive director of China Water Affairs Group
Limited (855.HK), an executive director, a non-executive director and
vice chairman of China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (3883.HK),
and an independent director of China Merchants Securities Co., Ltd.
(600999.SH). At present, Dr. WU is a non-executive director of Silver
Base Group Holdings Limited (886.HK), an independent director of
China Life Franklin Asset Management Co., Ltd, and an independent
non-executive director of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company
Limited (966.HK), Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (392.HK),
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited and China
CITIC Bank International Limited respectively. Dr. WU has rich
experience in finance and corporate management.
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Mr. HUANG Yige
=E—REE

Mr. HUANG Yige, aged 47, a Non-executive Director since 27 March
2012. He is a director and financial controller of Shum Yip Group
Limited and a director of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited.
Mr. HUANG is also a director of various members of the Group. He
holds a master degree in business administration from The Hong
Kong Baptist University and an executive master degree in business
administration from The Xiamen University and has the title as senior
accountant and is a certified public accountant in the PRC. Mr.
HUANG served as a director and financial controller of Shenzhen
Metro Group Co., Ltd, a financial controller of Shenzhen Agricultural
Group Co., Ltd, an administrative controller and a deputy financial
controller and investment general manager of A. Best Department
Store Supermarket Co., Ltd, and an assistant to president of Sichuan
Dikang Industrial Holding Group Company Limited (P0)I]38 5z 2 4%
i E B AR A F]). At present, he is a director of Shahe Industrial
Co., Ltd (000014.SZ) and supervisor of Shenzhen Tagen Group Co.,
Ltd. (000090.SZ). In addition, he is also a director of China Resources
SZITIC Investment Co., Ltd. He has extensive experience in corporate
management, finance management and treasury operation.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERERITHAE

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael
RIZEREE

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 66, an Independent Non-
executive Director since 9 October 2002. He was formerly the deputy
chairman of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and a commissioner
in the Strategy & Development Committee of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission. Prior to that, he was the deputy chairman,
chief operating officer and executive director and responsible for the
Intermediaries Division, comprising the Licensing and Intermediaries
Supervision Departments of the Securities and Futures Commission
until 31 December 1997. In addition, Mr. WU also served as an
independent non-executive director of Sunwah Kingsway Capital
Holdings Limited (188.HK), an independent non-executive director
and chairman of Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited (renamed
China Finance Investment Holdings Ltd.) (875.HK) and an executive
director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Ltd. (536.HK).
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Mr. LI Wai Keung
FREEELE

Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 59, an Independent Non-executive Director
since 27 September 2004. Mr. LI graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic and holds a master’s degree in Business Administration
from The University of East Asia. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LI had worked for
Henderson Land Development Company Limited (12.HK). He was also
an independent non-executive director of Sun Century Group Limited
(1383.HK). Mr. LI is currently a non-executive director of Guangdong
Investment Limited (270.HK) and an executive director and financial
controller of GDH Limited, an executive director of Guangdong Land
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited) (124.HK), an independent non-executive director of Hans
Energy Company Limited (554.HK) and China South City Holdings
Limited (1668.HK), and a director of Shenzhen City Airport (Group)
Company Limited (000089.S7). In addition, he is appointed as the
chairman of the Council of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited
on 26 October 2015, and he is also a management accounting advisor
of the Ministry of Finance, PRC, the vice chairman of the Financial
and Accounting Affairs Steering Committee of the Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association, and the executive vice president of Hong
Kong Business Accountants Association Limited.
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Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
EREEL

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David BBS, JP, aged 58, an Independent Non-
executive Director since 13 June 2013. Dr. WONG received a
doctorate degree in Economics from the University of Chicago in
1987. Dr. WONG has extensive experience in manufacturing, direct
investment and international trade. Dr. WONG is active in public
service. He is a Hong Kong deputy of the 12th National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China (E+ 2B ARREKX
). He is also the chairman of the Land and Development Advisory
Committee, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and
the Protection of Wages on Insolvency Fund Board. Dr. WONG was
appointed as a Justice of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was awarded a
Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2012 for his valuable contribution to the
society.

Dr. WONG is currently an independent non-executive director of
China Jiuhao Health Industry Corporation Limited (419.HK), Concord
New Energy Group Limited (formerly known as China Windpower
Group Limited) (182.HK), Redco Properties Group Limited (1622.
HK), Reorient Group Limited (376.HK), and Sinopec Kantons Holdings
Limited (934.HK), which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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, aged 56, engineer, is currently a Vice President
of the Company and Shum Yip Group Limited. Mr. WANG joined
the Group in August 2012. Prior to this, Mr. WANG had served
successively as a deputy general manager of Shenzhen Metro Group
Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Expressway Co., Ltd. He holds a bachelor's
degree in Civil Engineering from The Zhejiang University. He has
over thirty years of extensive experience in engineering design and
construction and corporate management.

, aged 57, is currently a Vice President of the
Company, Shum Yip Group Ltd. and Shum Yip Holdings Co., Ltd..
At present, he is also the chairman of Shum Yip Pengji Holdings
Company Limited and Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co.,
Ltd.. He graduated from The Wuhan University, holding a master's
degree in history. He joined the Group since 2000. Prior to this, he
was the director and president of Shenzhen Futian Investment and
Development Co., a general manager of Shenzhen Futian Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd., and an associate supervisor of Office of Futian
District Committee of Shenzhen. Mr. LIANG has over thirty years of
experience in corporate management.

, aged 43, is currently a Vice President of the
Company, Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited. He graduated from The Hunan University with a master's
degree and a senior engineer qualification. He joined the Group since
2006 and served as a general manager of the real estate department
and investment department of the Company, and a deputy general
manager of Huizhou Canton River Expressway Co., Ltd.. Prior to this,
Mr. DONG used to work in the Transport Commission of Shenzhen
Municipality. He has extensive experience in corporate management,
property investment and operation management.

, aged 45, is currently the General Manager of the Board
Secretariat and Chief Legal Officer of the Group. He holds a master's
degree of Civil and Commercial Law from Law School of The Peking
University. Presently, he is a PRC Lawyer and arbitrator of China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (CIETAC),
Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration, and Shanghai International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission. He joined the Group
since 2003. Prior to this, he worked in China Merchants Group. Mr.
LU has extensive experience in corporate operation management, law
affairs, compliance and risk management control.
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, aged 51, is currently the General Manager of
Planning and Finance Department of the Company and Shum Yip
Group Ltd.. Dr. DAI graduated from The Faculty of Agricultural
Mechanical Engineering of China Huazhong Agricultural University with
a bachelor of engineering degree in 1986 and from The Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law with a master degree in economics in
1992. He also obtained his Ph.D. degree in economics from The China
Ministry of Finance Institute of Fiscal Science in 1998. He is currently
an accountant. Dr. DAI joined the Group since 1998 and held a
position as general manager of administrative office department, audit
department and risk management department respectively. Prior to
this, he used to work in Hubei Province Agricultural Engineering Head
Limited and Wuhan City Branch of the Agricultural Bank of China. Dr.
DAl possesses extensive professional knowledge and experience in
corporate finance, investment and financing management.

, aged 42, is currently the General Manager of
Capital Market Department of the Company. He obtained a master's
degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong University
of Science & Technology. He joined the Group since 2004, and held
positions as general manager of investment department and strategic
management department of the Company. Prior to this, he worked in
Shenzhen Construction Investment Holdings Ltd.. Mr. ZHU is familiar
with the real estate market and property development process and has
maintained good communication with investors and capital markets.

Rt RAERRRRE
SEERARF M B HALE - HiIBLRN
—NNARNFEERTEEFREABRER
W BIBLEM  —AN_FEERH
MMERE  BEESBELSEMN - IR —H
NNFEERRN BRI BB R EF AT
ERESHLIEM RS0 - BiIFLR
—ANANFENAREER - EHREEHA
= EGE RREEREMALE Fit s
Al REERHIEE RERBB QT RP
BERRITHZENDIT - BIELTRNEEMH
REREEEDEAESLENEEMBME

Ot RAEARRRERNE
LEREIE  RERBTAMBRARBEIHER
BLBM - FR_ZZWUFMALEER - E
EARAHRE 80 K BOE B 12 AR ARAC IR Rt
ZH O REEBRR A MREREEZRA
Bl REERBFEHED G MWERER
2 BREEREATSREERTABR -



Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERER AR
Annual Report 2015 F R

Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance. The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
strongly believes that good corporate governance is essential for
effective management, a healthy corporate culture, successful
business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The Company
has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the year
2015.

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance practices
under continual review to ensure their consistent application and
to improve our practices having regard to the latest developments
including any new amendment to the CG Code.
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Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company, supervising
and evaluating business and financial performance of the Company,
determining appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to
the Company’s circumstances and ensuring operational efficiency and
effectiveness by establishing a comprehensive corporate governance
framework with appropriate risk control measures and aiming to
enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated certain functions to respective committees,
including Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, the details of the responsibilities, membership and
activities during the year of each of them are set out in the section
headed “Board Committees” below. These Board committees assist
the Board to discharge its duties while the responsibilities of the
day-to-day operations and business management are delegated to
the executive directors and senior management. Matters specifically
reserved to the Board include approval of financial statements,
dividend policy, significant changes in corporate structure, mergers
and acquisitions, major investments, material acquisition and disposal
of assets, selection of directors, changes to remuneration policy
for directors and senior management, terms of reference of board
committees, as well as major corporate policies.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
management, and are provided with full and timely information about
the conduct of the business and development of the Company,
including reports on significant matters. Besides, all Board members
are provided with monthly management updates which contain
periodic financials with summaries of key events, outlook and business
related matters of the Group. Should independent professional advice
be considered necessary by the directors, such kind of services would
be made available to the directors upon request.

The Company has arranged Directors & Officers Liability and Company
Reimbursement Insurance for its directors and officers in respect of
legal proceedings and other claims against them arising from their
office and execution of their powers, duties and responsibilities.
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The Board currently comprises four executive directors and five
non-executive directors of whom three are independent non-executive
directors. Our independent non-executive directors constitute not less
than one-third and non-executive directors constitute more than half
of the Board.

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung, our independent
non-executive directors, had served the Board for more than nine
years. The Board considers that they have continued to exercise
independent judgment on the matters of the Group and there is no
evidence that length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their
independence. The Board therefore considers that Mr. WU Wai Chung,
Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung remain independent, notwithstanding
the length of their tenure.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director a confirmation of his independence pursuant to the criterion
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all
independent non-executive directors are independent.

None of the directors of the Company has any relationship between
other Board members, chairman nor president of the Company.

All directors, including the non-executive directors, have a specific
term of appointment which is not more than three years. Each
director has entered into an appointment letter with the Company and
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every director,
including the non-executive directors, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. One-third of the directors (or
if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
one-third) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting and
eligible for re-election by shareholders. Also, any director appointed
to fill a casual vacancy shall retire at the next general meeting of the
Company and be eligible for re-election by shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed for the re-election of each director.

Brief biographical particulars of the directors are set out from pages
40 to 50 of this annual report.
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The roles of Chairman of the Board are performed by Dr. LU Hua,
whereas the roles of President were performed by Mr. GAO Shengyuan
until his resignation on 21 July 2015 and are performed by Mr. HUANG
Wei since his appointment on 21 July 2015 respectively. The Chairman
of the Board is responsible for leading the Board to formulate good
corporate governance practices and procedures together with the
directors, determine the strategic directions, business plans and
investment proposals of the Company, assess its performance and
supervise the business affairs of the management in ensuring the
effectiveness of the Board, whereas the President is responsible
for overseeing overall operations of the Company and ensuring the
implementation of plans efficiently.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. Four
regular Board meetings and four special Board meetings were held in
2015. At the Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters
including the Company’s business development, proposals for final
and interim dividends, annual report and half-year report, dicloseable
and connected transaction and the placing of shares under general
mandate. At least fourteen days’ notice of a regular Board meeting
was given to all directors who were provided with an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers were sent to Directors at least three
days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft and final
versions of minutes of each Board meeting were circulated to directors
for their comment and record respectively. In addition to the Board
meetings, the Chairman of the Board also held a separate meeting
with non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
without executive directors present on an annual basis.
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Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings

The attendance record of each director at Board meetings, Board
committee meetings and general meetings in 2015 is set out below:
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No. of meetings held
Executive Directors HTES
LU Hua (Chairman) EENEY ) /8
HUANG Wei " Y (President) e F ) 3/3
GAO Shengyuan M2 (President) SESRCAE ) 1/5
MOU Yong BB 7/8
LIU Chong EES 8/8
Non-executive Directors FHITES
WU Jiesi HED 6/8
HUANG Yige el /8
Independent Non-executive Directors BY EHTES
WU Wai Chung Michael RER 7/8
LI Wai Keung EEE 8/8
WONG Yau Kar David BRE 8/8
Notes:
1. Appointed as an executive director and president with effect from 21 July
2015.

2. Resigned as an executive director and president with effect from 21 July 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct of the Company
for dealing in securities of the Company by the directors. Having
made specific enquiry to all the directors, all directors confirmed that
throughout the year, they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code. In addition, the Board has also adopted
the principles and rules of the Model Code as written guidelines for
relevant employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director will be provided with necessary
induction information to ensure that he has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his
responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an on-going process, all directors are encouraged
to participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company also update
directors on any latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

In 2015, the Company had arranged an in-house directors’ training on
the laws/rules relating to financial assistance under the Listing Rules
and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The Company had also arranged a site visit to the Company’s
property development projects in the PRC for the directors.

A summary of the training records (including participation in site visit)
reported by the directors for the year of 2015 is set out as follow:

LU Hua B

HUANG Wei =R
MOU Yong 25
LIU Chong B
WU Jiesi RER
HUANG Yige R i)
WU Wai Chung Michael REE
LI Wai Keung g
WONG Yau Kar David ERE

Notes:

1. Participation in briefings/training seminars/conferences/courses/workshops
on subjects relating to directors’ duties, corporate governance, legal and
regulatory, finance and accounting, economic and industry specify matters etc.

2. Reading materials/regulatory updates/management monthly updates

3 Site visit
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The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its
functions. The respective roles, responsibilities and activities of each
Board committee are set out below:

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, who are all equipped with commercial and financial skills
and experiences required for understanding of accounting information.
It is chaired by Mr. LI Wai Keung and other members are Mr. WU Wai
Chung, Michael and Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, including but not limited
to, the recommendation of the appointment of external auditors,
supervision of internal audit and oversight of the integrity of financial
information and its disclosure, monitor risk management and internal
control system of the Company and ensure internal audit functions and
external auditors are adequately resourced. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee were amended on 27 August 2015 to incorporate
the amendments to the CG Code relating to risk management and
internal control. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Company’s website and the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

the Audit Committee had reviewed 2014
annual financial statements and 2015 half-year financial statements
and recommended the same to the Board for approval. The Audit
Committee oversaw matters concerning the Company’s external
auditors including reviewing the scope and quality of audit, the
external auditors’

During the year 2015,

independence and objectivity as well as their fees
and making recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment
of the external auditors, the nature and scope of their audit and their
fees. The Audit Committee also reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Company and the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance

controls.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee
is set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board
Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this
report.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and other members
are Mr. LI Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee
is responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive director and senior
management according to its terms of reference. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration matters of non-executive directors,
the setting up of adequate and transparent procedures for setting
such remuneration. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

No director or any of his associates is allowed to determine their
own remuneration. In making recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of directors and senior management, the Remuneration
Committee shall consider factors such as time commitment and
responsibilities of directors, employment conditions of other
positions within the Group and whether their remuneration are
performance-related.

During the year 2015, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed
the director fees of non-executive directors and the remuneration
of executive directors and other incentive rewards such as grant of
share options to directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee also made recommendation to the Board for the
remuneration in respect of the appointment of Mr. HUANG Wei as
executive director and president.
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The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended
31 December 2015 is set out below:

HE-T—AF+-_A=+—HLEFE &
FMESEZ DS REEAE ZFHBH T 0
o

Less than HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 or above

1,500,000 7T
1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,000/5 7T
2,000,001 Tk A £

Further particulars regarding Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration
and the five highest paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee
is set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board
Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this
report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members of which two
of them are independent non-executive directors. It is chaired by Dr.
WONG Yau Kar, David and other members are Dr. LU Hua and Mr. LI
Wai Keung.

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to determine
the policy for the nomination of directors, to set out the nomination
procedures and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
directors. The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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During the year 2015, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board and opined that it is adequate for
independent and effective decision making. The Nomination Committee
also reviewed and recommended to the Board in relation to the appointment
of Mr. HUANG Wei as executive director and president and the re-election
of the retiring directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 18 June 2015. The Nomination Committee also assessed the
independency of the independent non-executive directors.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is
set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings,
Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board, a copy of which
is available on the Company’s website. The Board recognizes the
benefits of a diverse Board with members possessing a balance of
skills, experience and expertise which complement to the business
success of the Group, and seeks increasing diversity at Board level to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to achieve a sustainable
and balanced development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will continue
to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The Board is responsible for, and has performed during the year, the

following corporate governance functions:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;
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e {0 review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors;

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Board as a whole shall be responsible for supervising the
operations of all business units within the Group. Suitable candidates
shall be appointed by the Company to sit at the boards in subsidiary
and associated company levels in order to oversee their operation
performance. The management is accountable for the operations and
performance of their business units.

The Board reviews annually, through the Audit Committee, the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control system of the
Group, including the consideration on the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
An evaluation report on internal control and risk management system
for year 2015 has been issued by the risk management department
and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Board considers that all
the material aspects in risk management and internal control of the
Group including financial, operational and compliance control were
adequately and effectively monitored during the year.

Internal audit function is carried out by the risk management
department and its function had been reviewed by the Audit
Committee to ensure it is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group.

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy which provides
employees with reporting channels and guidance to raise concerns
about possible improprieties related to the Company, a copy of which
is available on the Company’s website. In 2015, the Board had not
received any whistleblowing enquiry or complaint.
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The Company has appointed a representative from an external secretarial
services provider as the company secretary of the Company, who has
confirmed his compliance with the relevant training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our primary corporate contact person is
Ms. Edith Wong, our General Counsel.

In order to bring the articles of association of the Company in line with
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
which came into force on 3 March 2014, as well as to modernize
and update the articles of association of the Company, the Company
adopted a new articles of association of the Company (“New Articles”)
by a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 18 June 2015. The New Articles are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period which shall
consistently adopt suitable accounting policies and to comply with the
accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and to reflect the financial position, the results
during the period and cash flow of the Company in a true and fair
manner.

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is
set out from pages 90 to 91 of this annual report.

During the financial year of 2015, the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young comprised audit
fees of HK$5,270,000 (including HK$4,250,000 for annual audit and
HK$1,000,000 for interim review and HK$20,000 for reporting on
continuing connected transactions).
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The Board has established a shareholders’ communication channel
setting out the dialogues that the Company are in place to promote
effective communication with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring
shareholders are provided with timely information about the Company
and encouraging them to engage actively in communication with the
Company and to exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed
manner.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about
the Group to public in a timely manner. The Company maintains a
corporate website (www.shenzheninvestment.com) where important
information about the Group’s activities and corporate matters such as
annual and interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public’s access.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for
face-to-face communication between the Board and shareholders.
Separate resolutions are proposed on each issue at the general
meetings.

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business
activities to persons with legitimate interests and respond to their
questions. We meet with investors on a regular basis to update them
on our business progress and strategy. In addition, we endeavor to
share both financial and non-financial information that is relevant
and material, for instance, we publish unaudited contracted sales
performance voluntarily on a monthly basis, and respond promptly
to enquiries arising from general public and individual shareholders.
However, in all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside
information is disclosed to selected parties.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “CO”), the Listing Rules, and the articles of association
of the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) may call general meeting, put forward
proposals at annual general meetings (“AGM”) and direct enquiries to
the Board in accordance with the following procedures:
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Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company may
request the directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the CO.

In accordance with Section 566 of the CO, the directors are required
to call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do
so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general meeting. Such
requests must state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting; and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such
requests may be sent to the Company and attention to the Company
Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of
the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science
Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Board) or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); and must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it. In accordance with
Section 567 of the CO, the directors must call a meeting within 21
days after the date on which they become subject to the requirement
under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must be held on a
date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the
meeting.

To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholders are requested to
follow the requirements and procedures set out in Sections 615 and
616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice
of a resolution if it has received requests to do so from (a) the
Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
AGM of the Company to which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50
Shareholders who have the rights to vote on the resolution at the AGM
to which the requests relate.

Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYERBRAT
Annual Report 2015 F &

EREZBXREAFEARRZHERATD
R+ 2 —HERRAIBREZRERFE
125665 E5681% A MR HIASE °

R R FHE B £ 5661& - fn AR a1 U EIE 2
BAENBRREAS LRERR 2 2RISR
EOE%MBRREKLBAREAGHE R -
AIZERBAFARRERE - ZERNVBMBAR
RELEENEHEN—REE  TAIaER
B LHEBERRDENRERANS -
BERAUNAEN (BREXZEARR A
Mt EE - i AEBNEADER BEE
OEHEIBEEPLE) HEFHN (FEB
B & 1 852-2723-2263) HE AR Al Z A F
MEY - WEKRDHOALTTUESE - RIE
N EMEFIEE567 15 - EHBIERIE A A&
FoeolEEREREBR21IBNEAHERE
# LEHSBEANARERBE A28
HAERLT o

RRBRRBFRE LIRZRER - RREAK
RAFEDIE615GE6161F2 2R MIEF -

N AHEBIE615EETE - MAARKEIAT
RER(@EEEBEREZERMBTREE
FRE L BRETAERROBRENBRRE
B D25%HIIRE + 2i(b)& D504 B %
EXFEATHRRBFAG ERZRERR
BRI - PR ZERBANE R - AlER
A o

65



66

Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYNZERBRA R
Annual Report 2015 F#

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the
Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9
Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2723-2263);
(b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given; (c) must
be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) must be
received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM
to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice
is given of that meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the
Company that is required under Section 615 of the CO to give notice
of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s own expense
to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the AGM (a) in the
same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time
as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the
meeting.

The detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director can be found on the website of the Company
headed “Investor Relations” under the “Corporate Information” section.

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board in writing through
the Board Secretariat at the below contact details:

Address: 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science Museum
Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email:  ir@shumyip.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2723 8113

Fax: (852) 2723 2263

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited, at the below contact details:

Address: Level 22 Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong

Kong
Email:  is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2861 1465

BHER@QANDARER (BREXEAR
AP EER - It ABFBSNERDEE
BB G EF L8E) HETFHR
(F B E A - 852-2723-2263) F & AR A
ZARMWEW  (b)BEREEFHLBENS
THEIRER  OBLBREZERHAR
F o RABAETERONZERATETHRER
EERGRITAMGMEER : k(i) (&)
BHZASBREMSHEATEEARAR - AF
EBIZEB16IKHRTE - BRI BEHI 615154
RAERERBERELBE - ABQEAS
BEMREAFR  ROERLRSBRENRA
BRAEREAgRER  TAEMNYENTT
BRT  BREBBZRBEBEHA
ERXGRERERIIBRBT ARG BENR
% o

BRRREREFAENREFFBIARAR
AWM [IREEBERIBTH[RAER] —

B o

R AEE T IR A TR EREBRES
ENERMESSIELEN -

it BB NERPBERBEBORIR
ERgEFLSE
FH : ir@shumyip.com.hk

|iE 0 (852) 2723 8113
BEH :  (852) 2723 2263

HREOEREEZEEMS @ PlROEP
RER  AWIMIZEE  REFLIE
IR BRI AR B F BRRE 2 ER
ERR DA - BRERMT

ik BEBEREKXERI18IFEAMAL22
g

BEL - is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com

B (852) 2980 1333

BHE :  (852) 2861 1465



The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in
presenting to shareholders their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The principal activities of the Group consist of property development
for sale, property management and property investments for rental
income. The property development process is vertically integrated
from land acquisition, project planning, material sourcing, construction
and project management through to sales and marketing to ensure
high standards in every aspect. The Group’s professional property
management team manages a variety types of properties including
government offices, office buildings, residential estates, villas and
science and technology parks mainly located in Pearl River and
Yangtze River deltas as well as the central region. Our investment
property portfolio includes commercial, residential and industrial
buildings and car parking bays, which are located mainly in Shenzhen.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in note 1 and note 20 to the financial
statements, respectively. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the
financial position of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 92 to 242.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK13.00
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK13.00
cents per share), which subject to the approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, is payable
on or about Thursday, 11 August 2016 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 10 June
2016. Together with the interim dividend of HK3.00 cents per share
which was paid on 16 October 2015, the total dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounts to HK16.00 cents per share (2014
HK16.00 cents per share).
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The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” respectively from pages 10
to 19 and pages 22 to 39 of this annual report and the paragraphs
below.

The Group is principally engaged in property development, property
management and property investment in the PRC and is therefore
subject to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, including
but not limited to, constitution, company law, contract law, law of
state-owned assets of enterprises, law on land management, city
immovable administration law, labor contract law, etc.. In addition,
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited apply to the Company. The Company attaches
great importance to legal compliance, and carries out all the business
activities in compliance with the requirements of the applicable laws
and regulations.

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, operational results or growth prospects leading to
a divergence from expected or historical results. The following
paragraphs list out the key risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below, and there
may be other risks which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could become material in the future.

The overall economic downturn and capital market risk. The downside
systematic risk in China’s economic transformation and the risk of the
shrinking wealth effect aroused by fluctuating capital market will bring
all kinds of uncertainty to the Group’s operating environment.

There is a downside risk in the real estate market in China, in
particular the real estate market in Shenzhen. The income from
property business accounted for approximately 80% of the Group’s
total operating income, and in the Group’s income from real estate
sales, the income from the real estate sales in Shenzhen has a higher
proportion. Therefore, if there is a downside risk in the real estate
market, especially the real estate market in Shenzhen, this will have an
effect on the Group’s sales revenue and profitability.
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There is a downside risk in Renminbi exchange rate. The Group’s
main assets are located in mainland China while the Group’s reporting
currency is Hong Kong dollar. The decrease in Renminbi exchange
rate can cause the depreciation of the Group’s assets and earnings
dominated in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the reporting
currency.

The Group did not adopt any financial instrument to hedge against
exchange rate risk in the year. In future, the Group will monitor the
exchange rate risk, apply financial instruments to hedge against the
currency risk, and consider prudently to increase the percentage of
the debt denominated in Renminbi at appropriate time.

The Group’s operations will be affected by multiple risk factors related
to the real estate business. Inadequate internal processes or personal
misconduct and external partner’s breach behavior, or other factors
beyond control may have certain negative impacts on the Group’s
operation.

The development of an enterprise cannot be achieved without the
support from stakeholders. Therefore, the Group also attaches great
importance to the opinions of various stakeholders. The important
stakeholders of the Group include government authorities, investors,
business partners, customers, employees, suppliers, industry
association, etc. In addition to the incorporation of communication
mechanism with targeted stakeholder into the daily operation,
we also carried out a special stakeholder research project on the
environmental, social and governance issues of the Group during
this financial year. Through questionnaire survey, small group
workshop, interview and other measures, the Group exchanged views
thoroughly with 297 stakeholders on the environmental,
governance issues of the Group. The relevant results are not only the
important reference to which we review and promote the sustainable
development agenda of our group, but also provide a powerful basis
for the material selection and preparation of our first environmental,
social and governance report.
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The Group efforts to achieve a win-win situation for enterprise,
shareholders and business partners at the same time, also actively
take on the corporate citizen responsibility to protect the environment.
The Group is endeavored to carrying out the various environmental
protection policies, taking various measures to incorporate the
environmental protection concept into the development and operation
of our projects, including employing environmental friendly materials
and low carbon equipment, reducing resource consumption, energy
saving, and strict management on wastage and emissions, etc. In
addition, the Group carries out the environmental protection concept
into its daily work, also encourages its employees to take an active
role in all kinds of environmental protection and greening volunteer
activities. Many of our real estate construction projects have been
awarded building rating program certification both national and
international, such as the LEED by US Green Building Council and
the two-star green property management project identification by
Shenzhen Greenery Property Management Professional Committee (%
NHGEHEERERZEGIRN _ERGEYEEIRERGFH). For
further information about the environmental performance of the Group
for this financial year, please refer to the first social, environmental and
governance report to be issued by the Company. You can browse and
download the report on our Company’s website after its publication.

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interest of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements as appropriate, is
set out on page 7. This summary is not part of the audited financial
statements.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year is set out in note
13 to the financial statements.
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Particulars of major properties held by the Group are set out on pages
243 to 252.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associates are
set out in note 1 and note 20 to the financial statements respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to HK$1,380,921,000 of which HK$959,922,000 has been
proposed as final dividend for the year. Details of movements in the
reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in
note 46 and note 36 respectively to the financial statements.

Interest of approximately HK$676,238,000 was capitalised during the
year in respect of the Group’s property development and investment
projects.

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less than 30% of
the Group’s sales and purchases respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest of the
Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

During the financial year, the Group has made donations of
approximately HK$24,674 for charitable or other purposes.

The list of Directors is set out on page 4 of this annual report. Except
for Mr. HUANG Wei who was appointed as a Director with effect from
21 July 2015, all the other present Directors whose names are listed
on the Directors list served throughout the year. Mr. GAO Shengyuan
resigned as a Director with effect from 21 July 2015.
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In accordance with article 100 of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. HUANG Yige, Mr. WU Wai Chung Michael and
Dr. WONG Yau Kar David will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The list of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year of this report is available on the
Company’s website at www.shenzheninvestment.com under the
“Corporate Governance” section.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 40 to 50 of this annual report.

The change in information of the Directors since the date of the
Company’s Interim Report of 2015 is set out below:

Dr. LU Hua resigned as non-executive director of Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK) and Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. (2318.HK) on 11 December 2015 and 8
January 2016 respectively.

Mr. MOU Yong was appointed as non-executive director of Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK) with effect from 11 December 2015.

Mr. LIU Chong was appointed as non-executive director of Ping An
Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd (2318.HK) with effect from 8
January 2016.

Mr. LI Wai Keung was appointed as the chairman of the Council of the
Hong Kong Orchestra Limited with effect from 26 October 2015.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

No Directors had a material interest in any transactions, arrangements
nor contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries were entered into or subsisted during the year.
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Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors has any direct or
indirect interest in a business which competes or may compete, with
the business of the Group as required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.

Dr. LU Hua is the chairman and a director, Mr. HUANG Wei is the
president and a director, Mr. MOU Yong and Mr. HUANG Yige are
directors, and Mr. LIU Chong is the vice president, of both Shum Yip
Holdings Limited (“SYH”) and Shum Yip Group Limited (“SYG”). SYH
and SYG, through their subsidiaries and associates, have interests in
property investment and development businesses in PRC.

In addition, Mr. MOU Yong is also a non-executive director of Road
King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK), an associated company of the
Company, whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and engages in property investment and development
businesses.

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments and of the
five highest paid employees in the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9
to the financial statements respectively.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 June 2002 (the
“Old Scheme”), which had expired on 5 June 2012. Upon expiry of
the Old Scheme, no further options may be granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect and all outstanding options granted under the Old Scheme
are continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.
At the date of this report, there were no outstanding options granted
under the Old Scheme.
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After the expiry of the Old Scheme, the Company adopted a new
share option scheme on 22 June 2012 (the “New Scheme”). The
major terms of the New Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentive and
reward to the participants to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefits of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

2. The eligible participants of the New Scheme are the employee
or director (including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive director) of any member of the group comprising
the Company, Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, Shum Yip Group Limited, the
holding company of Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, and
their subsidiaries and associated companies from time to time (the
“SY Group”) or any employee, partner or director of any business
consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal
adviser of and to any member of the SY Group, as the Board may
at it absolute discretion determine.

3. The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of adopting
the New Scheme. That 10% limit was refreshed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 19 June 2014 whereby
the Company was authorised to grant further options carrying
rights to subscribe for up to 538,252,770 shares, representing
10% of the total number of the Company’s shares in issue as at
the date of the said meeting, under the New Scheme. As at the
date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the New Scheme was 656,812,770 (of which options to
subscribe for 126,406,000 shares had been granted and were
outstanding), representing approximately 8.90% of the shares in
issue of the Company.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted pursuant to the
New Scheme to each participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue,
unless otherwise separately approved by the shareholders of the
Company in a general meeting. Further, any grant of option to a
participant who is a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, which would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted under the New Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to him in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate more
than 0.1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue;
and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, is subject to the approval of the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting.

The exercise period of any option granted under the New Scheme
is to be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, and
shall expire no later than the 10th anniversary of date upon which
the option is granted and accepted in accordance with the New
Scheme.

There is neither any minimum period for which an option must be
held, nor any performance target which is needed to be achieved
before the option can be exercised unless otherwise determined
by the Board and specified at the time of the offer.

The period open for acceptance of an offer of the grant of the
option shall be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
provided that it shall not be opened for acceptance after the 10th
anniversary of the date upon which the option is granted and
accepted in accordance with the New Scheme or after the New
Scheme has been terminated in accordance with the provisions of
the New Scheme, whichever is earlier. The acceptance of an offer
of the grant of the option shall be made with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee.
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8. The exercise price shall be a price determined solely by the
Board and shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
on the date of grant; and (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the date of grant.

9. The New Scheme shall be valid and effective until 22 June
2022 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms
stipulated therein.

Please refer to note 35 to the financial statements for further
information of the Old Scheme and New Scheme.

During the year, 7,846,000 options were granted under the New
Scheme, 47,193,830 options and 9,494,000 options were exercised
under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme respectively, and
2,615,770 options and 4,064,000 options were lapsed under the
Old Scheme and the New Scheme respectively. As at 31 December
2015, no options granted under the Old Scheme were outstanding
while 126,406,000 options granted under the New Scheme were still
outstanding.
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The particulars of, and movements in, the share options outstanding TXEHFFANERT BRI EIET WRITE
under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme during the year are set 2RI B R
out below:

Directors £

LU Hua BE 4,016,000 - (3,878,000) (138,000) - - - 19/7/2010  19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 2.39
1,558,000 - - (1,558,000) - - - 10/4/2013  19/7/2014-18/7/2015 3.16
7,830,000 - - - - - 7,830,000 28/1/2014  28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.85

GAO Shengyuan &t 1,120,000 - (1,120,000) - - - - 10/4/2013  19/7/2014-18/7/2015 3.16
7,440,000 - - - o (7.440,000) S 28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2019" 285

(Note 1) (FifzE1)
HUANG Wei & - 3,196,000 - - - 3,196,000 27/7/2015  28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 3.396
(Note 2) (Hf3%2)

MOU Yong 43 4,016,000 - (3400000) (616,000 - - - 1972010 19/7/2012-18/7/2015" 239
5,246,000 - - i - - 526000 28/1/2014 28/1/2016-27/1/2018" 285

LIU Chong 3z 4,016,000 - (3,430,000) (586,000) - - - 19/7/2010 19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 2.39
5,246,000 - - - - - 5,246,000 28/1/2014  28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.85
40,488,000 3,196,000 (11,828,000) (2,898,000 - (7,440,000 21,518,000

Other employees  EftES

In aggregate At 37,761,600 - (36,485,830) (1,275,770) - - - 19/7/2010  19/7/2012-18/7/2015* 2.39
8,374,000 - (8,374,000) - - - - 10/4/2013  19/7/2014-18/7/2015 3.16
95,304,000 - - (2,506,000) - 7,440,000 100,238,000 28/1/2014  28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 2.85

(Note 1) (HizE1)
- 4,650,000 - - - - 4,650,000 27/7/2015  28/1/2016-27/1/2019* 3.396
(Note 2) (HizF2)

141,439,600 4,650,000 (44,859,830) (3,781,770) - 7,440,000 104,888,000

181,927,600 7,846,000 (56,687,830)  (6,679,770) = = 126,406,000




Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERER AT
Annual Report 2015 F 3§

Directors’ Report

EEERE

* Options shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to * BREBERTIARTEELZRATZR
performance review:— R -

40% at any time from 28 January 2016 to 27 January 2017

ZE-RNF AT NREZZE—tF At tAZAMNKE
70% at any time from 28 January 2017 to 27 January 2018

—E—+F—AZF+NBEZZT—)\F—A=-+tBZEREH
100% at any time from 28 January 2018 to 27 January 2019

—E- N\ F-A-+NBE-ZE-AF-A-t+tBZAMEMN
Notes: MI5E -

(1) Mr. GAO Shengyuan resigned as an executive director and president of the (1) SETEERA-ZT-—RFtAZT—HEH
Company with effect from 21 July 2015 and remains an employee of the EARRBNNTESEREH - BINAKXRAR
Company. HES -

(2)  The closing share price was HK$3.34 per share on 24 July 2015, being the 2 BORZZE—AFEA-+ImA (NEESE
day immediately before the day on which such options were granted. BAERERHERZA) 2UMEAETR
3.348 7T °



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests in short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) adopted by the Company were
as follows:—

Long positions in the shares (“Shares”) and underlying
shares of the Company:

Beneficial owner

LU Hua 1,122,383
B EnfEAA
HUANG Wei Beneficial owner -
aiE ERERA
MOU Yong Beneficial owner -
£8 EnEAA
LIU Chong Beneficial owner =
EIES EREAA
WU Jiesi Beneficial owner 3,400,000
HER EnlEAA
LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner 1,131,866
FER ERERA

Note: The percentage was calculated based on 7,384,016,988 Shares in issue as at
31 December 2015.
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EEERSE

EEvRiER
R-_ZE—RF+-_A=+—8 ARQRAz=E
ERERITERABRARR RAEMABEE
B (FRABLFARBEGRN ([BFRAEK
Bl 1) EXVER) 2% - ABEERG REHTE
BREEZ LEBEROIEXVEETRESH E
BREARARBZ 2= RKE (BT
RIEEH REERD 2 ZEEHE EaR
BREEBZERIXE)  HRERBRIEES
REAEGHIE3526EFE 2 Bt 2 2
PKE - HRBARRRMNZ LT RRIES
EITHEHFRSEESFR ((BEFH) AR
BARRBRER T ESIORB T ¢

AAarle ((RB)) REBRGZHF
=

7,830,000 8,952,383

0.12

3,196,000 3,196,000 0.04
5,246,000 5,246,000 0.07
5,246,000 5,246,000 0.07
= 3,400,000 0.05

S 1,131,866 0.02

W Ao EEEE—E—AFt+-_A=1+—
A2 B 3178 1H7,384,016,988 % & -
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Interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company are
stated in detail in the preceding section “Share Option Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had, as at 31 December 2015, any interests or short
positions in any Shares and underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests in short positions which were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company
or its associated corporations and none of the Directors, or their
spouse or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe
for equity or debt securities of the Company or its associated
corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

EENAARIBREZ #ESN L8 (B
REET R REAHT -

B EXHEEEN BE-T-—0F+-A
=t—B BEARFAEERESITRASR
RARBREEMABBEE (ERREHFK
HIR R G SEXVED) 2 (R (AT AR {0 Ko AR R A £ 3K
BERHEAREESF BB GRIIEXVEET
RESDHAMEARRNE KRBT Z RN
Ke (BREBEESMABGRIIZEBEX
WEFXRSER I ERIRE) » KL
RIRBESEBEGIIEIGAFEZE
Rtz ERIORR - IRIBIZEETH AN S
ART R s SRR

B EXFRIEE SN RFEREMERE - A2
A EEMKNEARRES B EF L £
EETHARBARRREMEEEEZ RO
BHES (BHRES) MERN - TEEFE
F AREZEBHETNARATFRHES
TR RBE AR B REAREE 2 RN E
BEH 2 MK ITRAERZSER



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
shareholders (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:—

Interest in Shares
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Annual Report 2015 F R

Directors’ Report

EEERSE

FERR
RARRTMESSTSITHRABMEM -
R_ZB—RE+_A=+—8  BRE (XA
RIEEKZEETHRABRIN RAQRRKRG
RBEROTHEEREES RBE KRGS
XVEBEE2 R 5535 B 2 X M AR Al 45 58 2 1
BERHKRE  REBRARAREES RBE
GBI E33IEBTEZ Bz EZ AR
LUNNE

R 10 18 35

Shum Yip Group Limited*
AEEBBRRLA

Interest in controlled corporation
XEE

Beneficial owner
ETHEEA

Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited
RE (RE) BRRA
Interest in controlled corporation
REEB R

4,480,478,142 -

60.68
(Note 1)
(PH&E1)
4,419,373,328 - 59.85
61,104,814 - 0.83
(Note 2)
(PzE2)
BT

Notes:

1. Shum Yip Group Limited* is deemed to be interested in 4,480,478,142 Shares
which Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“SYH”) is interested in by virtue of
SYH being its direct wholly-owned subsidiary.

2. These 61,104,814 Shares were held by Goldclass Industrial Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Successful Years Holdings Limited, which in
turn is wholly-owned by Shum Yip Finance Company Limited (“SYF”). SYF
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SYH and accordingly, SYH is deemed to be
interested in these 61,104,814 Shares.

1. FELEERRAFDEBFE(EE) R
RAI(TRE(EE)]) AEEEZ2ENE
DAl WEABNRE(EE) BEERZZ
4,480,478,1420 B 17 h #E A 2k ©

2. #%%61,104,814/% % {7 BBSuccessful Years
Holdings Limitedz 2 & E@ ARG FEES
[RARHFA - MSuccessful Years Holdings
Limited RE SR BER R A ([RES
M) 2EHES - RESBRARE (KE) M
2EWBAR - Bt - RE (KE) BRA%E
B#2561,104,8148 A0 A2 o
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3. The percentage was calculated based on 7,384,016,988 Shares in issue as at
31 December 2015.

*

The English translation is for identification purpose only

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than Directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
Shares and underlying shares of the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end
of the year.

The Company has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for certain related
party transaction which constituted non-exempt connected transaction
and non-exempt continuing connected transactions (as summarized
below). Details of the related party transactions for the year in accordance
with applicable accounting standards are set out in note 40 to the
financial statements.

3. BEOLIEBEHE—_ZT—HFE+_A=+—
B2 B 31T7%177,384,016,988% & °
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Set out below is the information in relation to the connected transaction
carried out by the Group during the year, particulars of which were
previously disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company.

On 21 December 2015, the Company, Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited (“SYH”), the controlling shareholder of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which, the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire and SYH has conditionally agreed to sell 95,707
ordinary shares of Fairwind Power Limited (“Fairwind”) with a par
value of US$1.00 each, representing approximately 95% of the
issued share capital of Fairwind (the “Acquisition”). The target
project, which is called “Shumyip Dongling (& % % %8)”, being a
redevelopment project at Huangbeiling, Luohu District, Shenzhen,
the PRC which is in progress, is indirectly held by Fairwind. Pursuant
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the consideration for the
Acquisition is RMB1,914,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,264,233,290
based on the agreed exchange rate of RMB1.00 = HK$1.182985) of
which () HK$1,132,116,645 is to be paid by the Company in cash
at completion date and (ii) the balance of the consideration, being
HK$1,132,116,645, is to be settled by the promissory note to be
issued by the Company to SYH at completion date. As SYH is the
direct controlling shareholder of the Company, SYH is therefore a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Acquisition constitutes a discloseable
and connected transaction of the Company and is subject to the
reporting, announcement and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Acquisition
was approved by the independent shareholders on 11 March 2016
and its completion took place on 15 March 2016. For further details,
please refer to circular of the Company dated 23 February 2016.

Set out below is the information in relation to certain continuing
connected transactions carried out by the Group during the vyear,
particulars of which were previously disclosed in the announcements
and circular of the Company.
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On 27 January 2014, Shum Yip Group Limited (“SYG”) and Shenzhen
Nongke Holdings Company Limited (“Nongke”) entered into (a)
an agricultural land entrustment agreement (“AL Entrustment
Agreement”) pursuant to which SYG will appoint Nongke (i) to hold
and manage certain agricultural lands and related assets; and (i)
to authorize Nongke and its wholly-owned subsidiaries to manage
such agricultural lands and related assets in accordance with their
existing operations, in each case, at the cost of SYG for a term
commencing on 22 August 2014 and ending on 31 December 2016,
and Nongke is entitled to a management fee with an annual cap of
RMB1.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 and RMB1.7
million for each of the years ending 31 December 2015 and 2016
respectively; and (b) a floral market entrustment agreement (“NFM
Entrustment Agreement”, together with AL Entrustment Agreement,
the “Entrustment Agreements”) pursuant to which SYG will appoint
Nongke to handle legal procedures with respect to the investment
and operation management of BB EMEHFEBREER (Agricultural
Popular Science and Flora Expo), the social car parking space and
certain commercial facilities at a parcel of land at Futian District; and
(i) to demolish all the building structures currently erected thereon
pursuant to the relevant requirements, at the cost of SYG, for the
period from 22 August 2014 to 31 December 2016. Nongke is
entitled to a management fee with an annual cap of RMBO.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and RMB1.0 million for each
of the years ending 31 December 2015 and 2016 respectively. As
SYG is the ultimate holding company of the Company and Nongke
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since 22 August 2014,
the transactions contemplated under the Entrustment Agreements
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company. As
the Entrustment Agreements are on better terms to the Company,
the transactions contemplated under the Entrustment Agreements
are subject to the reporting, announcement, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the then
Listing Rules notwithstanding that all the applicable percentage ratios
are less than 0.1%. The Entrustment Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved by independent shareholders
on 29 May 2014. For further details, please refer to the circular dated
12 May 2014.

N
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The Independent Non-executive Directors had reviewed the foresaid
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that they have been
entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. For
the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor of
the Company, has provided a letter to the Board confirming that
nothing has come to their attention to cause them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions:

i

) have not been approved by the Board;
(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company if the transactions involve provision of

services by the Company;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the cap.

A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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To obtain further funding for the Group’s business development, on
9 June 2015, the Company placed a total of 670,000,000 ordinary
Shares held by Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“SYH”),
the controlling shareholder of the Company, to not less than six
independent placees at the placing price of HK$4.13 per Share under
a top-up placing, and then on 12 June 2015 the Company allotted
and issued a total of 670,000,000 new ordinary Shares to SYH at the
subscription price of HK$4.13 per Share (the “Subscription Price”)
under the general mandate (the “Placing”). The net proceeds raised
from the Placing were approximately HK$2,730 million, equivalent to
a net Subscription Price of approximately HK$4.07 per Share. The
closing price of the Shares was HK$4.57 per Share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on 4 June 2015, being the last full trading day
immediately prior to the signing of the documents in connection with
the Placing.

On 21 August 2015, 1,273,869 new ordinary Shares were issued to
the shareholders who have elected to receive their 2014 final dividend
by way of scrip dividend in lieu of cash.

For Shares issued under the Share Options Scheme, please refer to
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this Report.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, throughout the year and up to
the date of this report, there is sufficient public float, as not less than
25% of the Company’s issued Shares are held by the public.
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Banking facilities with covenants in relation to specific performance of
the controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (“1st Facility Agreement”) dated 16 September
2011 entered into between the Company as borrower and a syndicate
of lenders, a US$209 million transferable term loan facility and a
HK$1,026 million transferable term loan facility (“1st Facility”) were
provided to the Company on the terms and conditions as stated
therein. The 1st Facility shall be repaid by the Company in instalments
with the last repayment date falling 48 months from the date of the 1st
Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“2nd Facility Agreement”) dated 21 June 2012
entered into between the Company as borrower and a bank, a
HK$200 million transferable term loan facility (“2nd Facility”) was
provided to the Company. The 2nd Facility shall be repaid by the
Company in one lump sum on the date falling 36 months from the
date of the 2nd Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“3rd Facility Agreement”) dated 25 June 2013
entered into between the Company as borrower and a bank, a
HK$300 million (or its equivalent in US dollars) transferable term loan
facility (“3rd Facility”) was provided to the Company. The 3rd Facility
shall be repaid by the Company in one lump sum on the date falling
36 months from the first drawdown date.

By an agreement (“4th Facility Agreement”) dated 9 October 2013
entered into between the Company as borrower and certain banks, up
to a principal amount of US$235 million (or equivalent to approximately
HK$1,833 million) transferable term loan facility and up to a principal
amount of HK$1,654 million transferable term loan facility (“4th
Facility”) were provided to the Company. The 4th Facility shall be
repaid by the Company in four instalments of various percentages
of the total amount of borrowings, with all outstanding amount shall
be fully repaid on the date falling 60 months from the date of the 4th
Facility Agreement.
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By an agreement (“5th Facility Agreement”) dated 25 August 2014
entered into between the Company as borrower and certain banks, up
to a principal amount of US$435 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,393 million) transferable term loan facility and up to a principal
amount of HK$2,510 million transferable term loan facility (“5th
Facility”) were provided to the Company. The 5th Facility shall be
repaid by the Company in three instalments of various percentages
of the total amount of borrowings, with all outstanding amount shall
be fully repaid on the date falling 60 months from the date of the 5th
Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“6th Facility Agreement”) dated 4 December 2014
entered into between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a
principal amount of HK$400 million transferable term loan facility (“6th
Facility”) was provided to the Company. The 6th Facility shall be fully
repaid in 36 months commencing from the date of the 6th Facility
Agreement.

By an agreement (“7th Facility Agreement”) dated 29 May 2015
entered into between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a
principal amount of HK$200 million term loan facility (“7th Facility”)
was provided to the Company. The 7th Facility shall be fully repaid by
the Company in three instalments with the last repayment date falling
60 months from the date of the 7th Facility Agreement.

By an agreement (“8th Facility Agreement”, together with the 1st
Facility Agreement, 2nd Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility Agreement,
4th Facility Agreement, 5th Facility Agreement, 6th Facility Agreement
and 7th Facility Agreement collectively referred to as the “Facility
Agreements”) dated 7 March 2016 entered into between the
Company as borrower and a syndicate of lenders, a US$230 million
transferable term loan facility and a HK$1,000 million transferable
term loan facility (“8th Facility”) were provided to the Company on the
terms and conditions as stated therein. The 8th Facility shall be repaid
by the Company in instalments with the last repayment date falling 60
months from the date of the 8th Facility Agreement.
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Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum
Yip Holdings Company Limited ceases to own beneficially at least 35%
of the issued share capital of the Company, ceases to be the single
largest shareholder of the Company, ceases to have management
control of the Company, or ceases to remain beneficially owned as to
at least 51% by the Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government of the
People’s Republic of China and at any time after the happening of an
event of default, all amounts due under the facilities may be declared
to be immediately due and payable.

As at 31 December 2015, all advances made under the 1st and 2nd
Facility Agreement had been fully repaid.

The articles of association of the Company provides that each
Director, Secretary or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance)
which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties
of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company
has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in
respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers.

The Group’s results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Information on the work of Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
51 to 66.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Board has resolved to
recommend the appointment of KPMG, Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong, as the auditor of the Company following the retirement
of Ernst & Young and such proposed appointment is subject to the
approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

This report is approved and signed for and on behalf of the Board by

LU Hua

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report
M % BRD R &

Ernst & Young TS ETENERET
22/F, CITIC Tower EBPIRAZE1R
ﬁ i 1 Tim Mei Avenue RIERE2212
? Central, Hong Kong

To the members of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 92 to 242, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

BRINERER QRS RR
(REEEMERLZBEREEAF)

EEEERINFNFEI2E 2428 R
BRAE (TERE)]) REMBARNGS
MBHmE - WY BRRBER_F—AF+
“A=tT - HOEEMBRRNREREZA
LFEENFEABERR  FezmlaR R
EREEFPRNGESREMER  WRTE
ST BRMEREMM EER -

EENGEMBRBRARENSR
BERREFAAERBEEESTMASHEM
MEBVBREENRETERRHRPIREA
EEMAFRBRBEANGEEMEREK &
AT ERENA 2% 5 N BB B R R RE IR AR BAR & B
RN EFF AR T G EH) B 55
ARER AL

JF?%(EEHE’\J%&

VB ERREESHNEZHZS
%%%%%e o%%ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁﬁ%%
40518 BV EE - 2 &
%'%%mﬁ%Kﬂﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁoﬁﬁﬁ
THARENAD - HEMEMALTBEESK
EEEERE -

EECRBEEB SN ASEMNE B R
ERETER - R SFRNEREFETEE
B WHRIRNITEZ  AERELS
REeMBREEETNFAEMERBERR



Auditors’ responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
30 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBE&EK

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE_Z-—AFT-A=1+—HIFE
2015 2014
—B-5F 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HELEER
REVENUE s 5 18,428,172 13,827,105
Cost of sales SHERAR (12,053,688) (9,754,161)
Gross profit E7 6,374,484 4,072,944
Other income and gains HEiw WA RFIE 5 615,289 2,449,129
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of equity investments — BEBIBHIRA L EHE 2 RIERE
at fair value through profit or loss, net ZARBEM/ORD) FE 580 (1,522)
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMENRBEEM 18 1,082,176 764,085
Recognition of change in fair value of completed BEFEZEBRME
properties held for sale upon transfer to investment EREREMER
properties BRALAELE 18 432,102 846,820
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERZ (483,087) (412,084)
Administrative expenses THAX (867,298) (1,000,185)
Other expenses HiH% (542,978) (820,054)
Finance costs BB A 7 (708,484) (742,762)
Share of profits and losses of: Tﬁllﬁ’%‘fﬁ AJ‘J&EETE :
Joint ventures SR 7,092 46,484
Associates RN 600,753 650,117
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS #& &4 £#% v B anEF 6 6,510,629 5,852,972
Income tax expense FIEHREX 10 (3,423,377) (2,348,878)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING SELEET
OPERATIONS FERRF 3,087,252 3,504,094
DISCONTINUED OPERATION FRBEREER
Profit for the year from a discontinued operation JEiE B A 23 R - 1,947
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EREF 3,087,252 3,506,041
Attributable to: ToIRELR
Owners of the parent NAlER A 2,868,796 3,131,316
Non-controlling interests R ER 218,456 374,725
3,087,252 3,506,041
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY &ARIE@EREREAE A
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT L EREF 12
Basic A
— For profit for the year — ERHEF HK40.56 cents#{l | HK53.62 cents/fll
~ For profit from continuing operations — RBER2EBEN HK40.56 cents#{l | HK53.62 centsifll
Diluted B
— For profit for the year — ERHF HK40.56 cents#{l | HK53.60 centsifll
~ For profit from continuing operations — RBEREEBEN HK40.56 cents#{l | HK53.60 centsifll

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RezmEkaE X

Year ended 31 December 2015
BEZZ—RAF+-A=1T—HLHFE

2015 2014
—E-hHE —mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 3,087,252 3,506,041
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih 2w
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified Hi{2 i EFHHIELBR 2
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hib 2wk :
Available-for-sale investments: Eﬂ,ﬁ\ﬁ’%?ﬁﬁ :
Changes in fair value NAEE (6,261) 29,688
Income tax effect FriSfig £ 1,565 (4,252)
(4,696) 25,436
Share of other comprehensive loss FE(GES = N A
of associates /H\ﬁﬂi@éﬂa (175,080) (565,986)
Exchange differences on translation of HBEBINERS
foreign operations ZIEH =% (1,767,065) (823,940)
Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon HE—FHNBAR MRIELE
disposal of a subsidiary and deemed — B & R R AR A 14 B [0l 2
disposal of equity interest in an associate [ B B = (131,230)
Net other comprehensive loss to be Hﬂ{éﬁ;ﬁFEj BEFHEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent B K2 |
periods EiEEE (1,946,841) (985,720)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income not MRS TR EN A
to be reclassified to profit or loss EiEmz  H2H
in subsequent periods: (F518) e -
Gain on revaluation of property, EHWE - BE
plant and equipment KEEE 2 FE = 242,536
Income tax effect Frisfis & = (60,634)
- 181,902
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income  [E(GEEA AR EMEE (EE),
of associates e zs (72) 1,640
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income not MR TeEHNHE
to be reclassified to profit or loss iTémZE’r\ﬂ%E
in subsequent periods (B518) Wt (72) 183,542
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE 4 RE b2
YEAR, NET OF TAX B8 - BRBig (1,946,913) (802,178)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAZH
FOR THE YEAR ek 4B %A 1,140,339 2,703,863
Attributable to: THIpES
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZFEIN 1,038,058 2,350,324
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R R 102,281 353,539
1,140,339 2,703,863
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RaE BRI R

31 December 2015
—E-BF+-A=+—H

Notes
B aE

31 December

2015
—E—FHF

T

HK$°000
FTHET

31 December
2014
—E—mF
SPEs e
HK$'000
FHEIT
(RESEE)]
(g=75)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEMENE E
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR E 13 4,144,176 3,240,502
Prepaid land lease payments TE S T A E IR 14 40,355 43,237
Goodwill EES 15 322,542 322,765
Investment properties B E 18 20,908,173 20,018,594
Investments in associates Bt N R E 20 6,310,203 6,134,980
Investments in joint ventures S5ENREE 19 565,134 1,904,139
Available-for-sale investments Al E A 21 123,684 140,471
Other long term assets HihREE = 22 1,778,889 1,793,370
Deferred tax assets EETRIEEE 32 1,386,915 1,213,842
Breeding biological assets EEEEMEE 24 7,075 7,200
Total non-current assets ERBNE ERER 35,587,146 34,819,100
CURRENT ASSETS BN & E
Inventories R 23 98,803 136,448
Completed properties held for sale BIEFEZ DB ME 16 9,031,517 14,708,217
Properties under development Ry 17 30,311,525 30,794,948
Trading biological assets SEHEM S EE 24 9,576 10,188
Trade receivables FEUBR SR 25 528,154 714,764
Prepayments, deposits and other JaREIE « ST REAM

receivables JE UG FR I8 26 1,696,026 3,660,743
Equity investments at fair value through BRBRIEAREFEZ

profit or loss IR & 27 3,696 3,116
Pledged deposits ez 28 - 31,228
Restricted cash X PR IR & 28 4,110,729 1,250,679
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEEY 28 9,708,046 8,375,476
Total current assets MB)EEAREE 55,498,072 59,685,807
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Interest-bearing bank and other SHEEITR

borrowings HEfEE 29 5,274,153 12,057,310
Trade payables FETE ZERERK 30 1,013,126 4,314,398
Other payables and accruals HipEB R ETER 31 13,920,890 9,975,943
Due to the immediate holding company FEN B B AR A R FKIE 40(d)(ii) 158,301 51,171
Due to the ultimate holding company FE N AR A Bl 7KIE 40(d)(i) 3,816,007 3,054,840
Tax payable FE R 6,494,559 5,389,732
Total current liabilities mEN B EREE 30,677,036 34,843,394
NET CURRENT ASSETS BB EFE 24,821,036 24,842,413
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BwEER

CURRENT LIABILITIES mEafE 60,408,182 59,661,513




Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERARA R
Annual Report 2015 F &

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B RR R
31 December 2015
—ZF—AF+=A=+—H

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mF
b ey 2 P e e S P s ey ]
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BfsE F#ET FHTT
(Restated)
(g=75)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBER
Interest-bearing bank and FHEERIT R
other borrowings HinEE 29 16,100,940 17,341,508
Due to the immediate holding company FET E B AR A B3k IE 40(d)(ii) 348,894 323,208
Due to the ultimate holding company FEN AR A Bl 508 40(d)(i) 965,897 1,412,597
Deferred income PR IE I A 33 32,088 28,183
Deferred tax liabilities REBIHAE 32 7,391,297 7,782,382
Total non-current liabilities SEmB B BB 24,839,116 26,887,878
Net assets BESFE 35,569,066 32,773,635
EQUITY T
Equity attributable to owners of BAREEA
the parent EihER
Share capital RE AR 34 17,478,481 14,564,800
Other reserves H b iE 36 15,847,384 15,931,060
33,325,865 30,495,860
Non-controlling interests FEIRRRERS 2,243,201 2,277,775
Total equity VTS AR 35,569,066 32,773,635

HUANG Wei LIU Chong
=& e
Director Director

5= B=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

G4 R %

4=4

n =y}

B ®

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE_Z-—RAF+_A=+T—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATREARE
Avalable-
forsale
Shre Coptal ~ Share Asset investment Exchange Non-
Share  premum Other redemption ~ opfion  Capitd revluation - revaluation  Stafutory  fluctuation  Retained controling Total
Notes captal  account® resee  resene’  resene  resene  reseve  rfeseve  reseve  resene  Profts Total inferests ~ equy
Bl
i fhEE  ERE rEl  REEf EYEY ik
it B BR BMEE  BE  BE EMBR  BE  BRE fRRE 0 BE REEM 4B BB BauE
HKS'000 ~ HKG000 - HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS00D  HKS00D  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000 ~ HKSO000  HKSOOD  HKS000
QT i e Tt et 7] A e A e ke Ve e T e T
At January 2014 R-5-IE-R-A 269053 10964217  (311388) 2036 45196 59019 64666 (1165) 1576740 4066470 8602077 25337811 224153 27579346
Proft for the year Efg = = - - - - - - - - 3131316 3131316 374725 3506041
Other comprehensive inoome Rt
forthe year; 2la:
Changes n e value of -~ TREEREZ
for-sale ivestments, nef of tax DMESY BEK - - - - - - - B - - - B4 - B4
(Gin on revaluation of property % BEREEES,
lent and equipment, netoftax I+ e - - - - - - 180 - - - - 1B - 1w
Shate ofother comprefiensive EitBENTEL
income of associates E3il - - - - - - 1640 - - (55%) - (o3 - (o3
Fxchangs fltuaton esenve HERBRR
released upon disposal of BIELERENT
a subsidary and RhER,
deemed cisposal of equiy Eif
Inferest i an associate it - - - - - - - - - (131.280) - (131290 - (131290
Exchange dffrences on trandlation~ BEENER 7
0f foreign operations EfzE = = - = - = - - - - 0274 21,186 (823940)
Tota comprehensive income EpAE
for the year i - = - - - - 18302 2543 - (989970) 3131316 2360324 363539 2,703,863
Fine 2013 hidends i he forn LX% 1&-1&1‘%2
of e shars SECERERE M SIGN - - - - - - - - - NS (124309 - (12430
Interim 2014 dividends “E-MERERE 1 = = = = = = = = = - (19968 (199,682 - (199,68
Acquistion of a subsidary YE-EHELE 3 2800463 - - - - - - - - B - 306747 - 3067467
Acquiston of non-controllng nterests SRR = - - - - - - - - -0 Bk 740
Disposl of subsdates HENBLA - - - - - - - [ - B2 - (14000 (124092
Bxercise of share options f1EEBRE % 5,524 - - - (419 - - - - - -4 -4
Lapsed and surender of share optons - BRI RREER ¥ - = = - (389 = = = = - 36 64 - 64
Equiy-seted Share opton expense /XxHTZ?%HHéi % - - BTN - - - - - (58 2330 - BR
She o reseres 0f associates EEREN kR - - - - - - - - - - W - 4w
Dividends peid to non-contrling iﬁ HIRRRL
shareholders & - - - - - - - - - - - - (168366 (168,366)
Transferto no-par value regime EpnanAtE 310,966,253 (10964.217) - 203 - - - - - - - - - -
Transferfrom retained profs BRAREE - - - - - - - - D18 - (2,189) - - -
At 31 Degember AE-ME
014 +2f=1-8 14,564,800 - - 0952 9019 216214 24211 1799651 3341494 10700013 30496860 2277775 32,773,635

# Retained profits have been adjusted for the proposed final 2014 dividend in

accordance with the current year's presentation, which is described in note 2.4

to the financial s

tatements.

FRERFNDRIBEARNFRENZ2INHER—F

PO REIRR S T AT -

2.4 -

ESUSNCREETEL)



Shenzhen Investment Limited
RYIERARAE 97
Annual Report 2015 F &

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEER®E K

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZE—AE+-A=1+—BHILFE

Atributable to owners of the parent

BATRRARL
Available-
for-sale
Share Asset  investment Exchange Non-
Share  Other  option  Capital revaluation revaluation  Stafutory fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
Notes capital  reserve  reserve  reseve  resene  reseve  resee  resenve  Profits Total interests  equity
e

FhR BEEt  REE Ei8 2k
Hit B5 BERE R ERER O RE B MREE  BR REEM 0 A8 BE  BudE
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKS000
Thn Thr  TE T TA T TR T Th TR TR TR

At January 2015 R-5-15-F-H 14564800  (7927) 69525 89019 26214 24271 1799651 3341494 10,700,018 30495860 2,277,775 32,773,635
Proft for the year g = = = = = = - - 2868796 2868796 218456 3,067,262

Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ ERERZENE:

Changes n far value of avalebe-forsele. — WEEREREZ DG ERS)

nvestments, ngtof tax Rtk - - - - - [46%) - - - (46%) - (46%)

Share of ther comprehensiv loss ElBR0TAN

of associates 3 - - - - 1) - - (175,080) - (17515 - (505

Exchange ciferences on translaton of RIS )

foregn operations EXZE - - - - > = - (1,650890) - (1,650890)  (116,175) (1,767,065)
Tota comprtensieroome o heyear - 2 hLE - - - N - (89T Q%6796 108058 102081 1140389
Finel 2014 didends 1134 4346 - c c - c c - (5008 (964759 - T
Interim 2015 chidends 1l - - - - - - - - angy) ) - ()
Acquistion of non-controling inerests - 0% - - - - - - - 097 (70.987) -
Contrbuton by non-controling inerests - - - - - - - - - - RS R
Exercise of share options B 178,560 - (%766) - - - - - - 14079 - 1479
Lapsed and srender of share options R - - (426) - - - - - 42 - - -
[ssug of shares R4 2,730,275 - - - - - - - - 2100205 - 210205
Equty-settled share option expense WA ERER B - - U - - - - - - U - U
Dividends peid to non-contoling shareholders  XFERRE 2 RS - - - - - - - - - - (8842 (88425
Transfer fom retaned profts ERERERH - - - - - - B - (33 - - -
At 31 December 2015 RE-RET2Az1-A 17476481 (08,140 57504 59019 206,142 19575 1.837.976" 1515524 12340784 33326865 2,243,201 35,569,066
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of * ZERBEEREBREEMBMRAERR 24

HK$15,847,384,000 (2014: HK$15,931,060,000) in the consolidated statement & H Mt {# #15,847,384,000% 7t (ZZF — I

of financial position. £ : 15,931,060,000/87T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= 2= =
HERERER
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—AFT-A=1+—HIFE

2015
—g-nf

HK$'000
FTHERT

2014
e D
HK$'000
FiBIT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REKLEELE 2
ACTIVITIES HERE
Profit before tax: BB Al -
From continuing operations KA ERE R 6,510,629 5,852,972
From a discontinued operation K E—TEIEFE R ER - 2,482
Adjustments for: BB 2 IE S
Finance costs =YD @N 7 708,484 742,762
Finance income BEFEUR A (344,594) (768,482)
Depreciation e 13 155,936 149,449
Increase in fair value of investment WEMEARE
properties 384 18 (1,082,176) (764,085)
Recognition of change in fair value ER DR EYERISIE
of completed properties held for sale HEZEERMEZ
upon transfer to investment properties NAEZENFER 18 (432,102) (846,820)
Dividend income from available-for-sale REAHEEREZ
investments f& B A (1,329) (1,254)
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures BlIEE & A RRA &EE (7,092) (46,484)
Share of profits and losses of associates FE(REE N RlE B R BB (600,753) (650,117)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments & + 3 70 & FIE #E 14 1,309 1,600
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment HREEE ZFE 5 - (11,523)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 NG 5 (26,302) (63,684)
Gain on a bargain purchase —IEREBEENSG 5 - (1,069,722)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZME 5 - (395,704)
Increase in fair value of trading biological SEFEMEMEEAR
assets N 24 (1,274) (713)
loss on disposal of equity investments at HESBEmEANE
fair value through profit or loss TR RERE 2 EE = 1,646
Deemed disposal of equity interest in RIEHE— & AR
an associate & 6 - 59,225
Impairment of an investment in an —HEE A RRE
associate ZRE 6 - 149,000
Impairment of properties held for sale BEREMEZRE 6 254,118 169,472
Impairment of properties under development R 2 RE 6 118,272 287,893
Net fair value loss/(gain) on equity FRBRRANEFEZ
investments at fair value through profit IRIERE 2 AR FE
or loss B () (580) 1,522
Equity-settled share option expense ARAZ A2 BiRiERS 35 24,171 24,903
5,276,717 2,824,338
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERETRE X

Year ended 31 December 2015

BEZZ—RAF+-A=1T—HLHFE
2015 2014
—E-—FF —EF-MFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET FHIT
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEULE ZERZURA /(38 0) 173,156 (213,045)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BAFIE - FIe Rk
other receivables LA SR IE R > 280,329 990,973
Increase in prepaid land lease payments a1 £ 3 B FRIE AN (329) =
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL (Em) 37,645 (3,268)
Decrease in trading biological assets SEEEEY B ERD 1,430 1,919
Decrease in completed properties held BEFEZEERK
for sale MR A 9,319,042 7,367,153
Increase in properties under development R R EEE N (5,669,648) (7,812,516)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FER B SRR OB L),/ 1N (3,103,027) 50,758
Increase/(decrease) in other payables o e RIE R EET B A
and accruals #hnOmd) 4,115,535 (173,541)
Increase in an amount due to the immediate  fEff B E SRR A A
holding company SRIAE AN 104,774 18,023
Decrease in an amount due to the ultimate JEAS S 4R P2 AR A 7]
holding company FRIER A (262,144) (5,161)
Increase in restricted cash R 41| T8 4 18 0 28 (2,860,050) (337,296)
Cash generated from operations CEEEEE ZIRE 7,413,430 2,708,337
Interest paid 2 F & (1,489,374) (1,849,583)
Mainland China taxes paid B EAREREA (2,168,433) (1,073,981)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating EESEENETS (BT
activities B neFE 3,755,623 (215,227)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REREZHZ2HESRE
Interest received [SALEIPS 181,289 368,892
Income from available-for-sale investments RE A EHEIRE 2 A 1,329 1,254
Dividends received from associates 2 A AR A 118,774 113,629
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEW¥E K= LEE
plant and equipment 18 B FT15 7018 4,013 23,208
Proceeds from disposal of investment Hjﬁ¢x§¢%¥
properties ERCEe! 88,162 230,167
Purchases of items of property, plant and ﬁ%]\%% lﬁﬁ%
equipment REER (268,394) (116,513)
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B8 — R BT B 1 7] = (1,177,628)
Increase in breeding biological assets EEME A EEE N (198) (136)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEHE QRS RIE 141,358 419,160
Proceeds from available-for-sale investments A {ft 5 &% & 15 7208 2,799 1,720
Proceeds from equity investments at ﬁﬂ%@mﬁ’&jﬂﬁ,ﬁrﬁz
fair value through profit or loss & #ESS & TS 5K 0E = 3,034
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEAHEERE - (49,964)
Additions to investment properties B SEIEN (329,524) (359,380)
Loans to joint ventures HBTFERERNRIZER - (1,315,590)
Additions to investments in joint ventures BE DR ZIEEEM = (204,858)
Repayment of loans to WEBTEEREZ
joint ventures T A(E R 3,020,426 -
Loans to associates B AT 2 ER = (4,885)
Repayment of loans to B4 TR E R A2
associates BREE 3,515 -
Decrease/(increase) in other long term assets E{ﬁgﬁﬁﬂﬁ Vi1 J\/(i@ﬁjju) 12,491 (863,148)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits EEATIORL () 28 31,228 (357)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEEBAG,(FTA) 2
activities BEREFE 3,007,268 (2,431,395)
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares
Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

Increase/(decrease) in an amount due to
the ultimate holding company

Repayment of loans from fellow subsidiaries

Repayment of loans from non-controlling
shareholders

New bank and other borrowings

Repayment of bank and other borrowings

REMEZHZRERE
TR PR 1S SRIR
EffEE
S IR R 2 IR
TR R

ZXE
i ANES Sy UNCIE /@

gm,ORd)
EERREMBRRZER
EI& IR R

ZER
FIgRIT R EMER
ERRTRAEMEE

2015
—g-nf

HK$'000
FTHERT

2,873,071
(1,176,280)
(88,425)

22,557

675,562
(253,336)

(2,374)
8,123,125
(15,382,937)

2014
e D
HK$'000
FiBIT

4,327
(324,078)
(168,366)

(723,203)
(17,409)

(12,440)
20,780,289
(15,382,313)

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing

MEEY (FR)/FAE2

activities REREFE (5,209,037) 4,156,807
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERBREEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS B HNFE 1,553,854 1,510,185
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHzRE MRS

of year ZEY 8,375,476 6,645,378
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  SMNES[ERE )5 2 5(E (221,284) 219,913
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRES

AT END OF YEAR ZEY 9,708,046 8,375,476
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReERBALEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS RO

Cash and bank balances Re RIRITA 28 7,646,777 7,622,469
Non-pledged time deposits with original AR RIEA

maturity of less than three months PR=E@EAZ

when acquired IR IR E FF X 28 2,061,269 753,007
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in R IFARRE

the statement of financial position/ RenEaRIRER

the statement of cash flows HEEEY 9,708,046 8,375,476




CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Shenzhen Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of
the Company is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9
Science Museum Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following principal
activities:

—  Property development

—  Property investment

—  Property management

—  Manufacture and sale of industrial and commercial products

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum
Yip Holdings”, /&% (£E) AR A7), which is a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The ultimate holding company of
the Company is AESEBR AR (“Shum Yip Group”), which is
a state-owned company established in Shenzhen, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Y/ R
S

Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (note b) PRC/Mainland China
REBAHE (£8) BRAR (Kzb) hE/ HEARE
Shum Yip Centre Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (notes c) PRC/Mainland China
RERLER (RY) BRAR (Fizkc) hE/ REARE
Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Terra”) (note d) PRC/Mainland China
REFN (RE) ROBRAR ([REFR]) (W) hE / REARE

HK$1,702,500,000
1,702,500,0007

HK$40,000,000 100 =
40,000,000 70 MERE

RMB800,000,000 51.00 75.05
AK#800,000,0007
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ARAREMER
RIERER AR (AR B
REBEMKL ZBREEAF - AR
Al ERA N E BN ER R RE
ORISR T LBIE °

REEA - ARFREKEAR (5HE
BIREE]) 2BTUTEZERE
B :

- WERHE
- MERE
— UEERE
— IXREEERIEEREE

EERR ARAZERERRARAR
BREMAILZARA —RE (&
B) ARARE ([FRE(EE)] - AR
Az B&RERARARPEARLNE
(T B ) FRINKZL 2 BIE DR —RE
SEBERAR (DREEE]) -

FRNEARNER
AAREEMBRRFFBFMAT :

Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registered  interest attributable to
share capital
BREE/
BT RERDHL TEER

Principal
the Company activities

LG

Direct  Indirect
B 4

100 - Property investment
and development

NERERFAR
Property investment
Property investment

and development
NERERFE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REAREEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EREMBARMNER (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered  interest attributable to Principal
and business share capital the Company activities
AT/ R BRAEE/ KRFEEZ
EXhE AR RERAL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
Ef 3
Shenzhen Terra Construction Co., Ltd. (notes a & ¢) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 75.05 Manufacture and
AT RERRERTEARAE (Hrake) RE /FEARE AR%10,000,0007 sale of aluminum
products
HERHERASER
Shenzhen Terra Property Management Service Co., Ltd. (notes a& ¢) ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,060,000 - 75,05 Property management
MITRANZEERBERAA (Fzfake) RE/ REAE AR %5,060,0007 NEER
Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property Development Co., Ltd. (notesa & ¢) ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB137,000,000 - 75.05 Property development
REMAERARHEREERAR (MiTake) Rl /REAE AR #187,000,0007 kS
Shum Yip TaiFu (notes a & ¢) PRC/Mainland China RMB323,596,169 - 97.74 Operation of
RERE (Fake) HE /EARE AE323,596,1697T warehouses and
property
development
BEERRYERE
Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd. (note b) PRC/Mainland China RMB932,050,000 100 - Property investment
RxEE (58) ERAF (Hb) HE /EARE AE932,050,0007 and development
WERERFE
Shenzhen Pengji Property Management Services Limited (notes a & ¢) ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 - 100 Property management
MImEENFERREERAF (Hiake) hE / REAR AR%40,000,0007C NFER
Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. (notes a & c) PRG/Mainland China RMB19,920,000 - 100 Manufacture of steel
RAIREREARAR (Wikake) hE/REAR ARH19,920,0007 products
SERSEMD
Shenzhen Wondershine Residence Company Limited (notes a & c) PRG/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 - 100 Property management
MIMEERXERAH (Kiake) hE /REARE AR16,000,0007T NEER
Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (note b) PRC/Mainland China US$150,000,000 100 - Investment holding

REER (RY) BRAT (Hb) hE/hEAR 160,000,000% ¢ RAZR



1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Changsha Pengji Property Limited (notes a & c)
ROEEMEBRAR (MFake)

Huizhou Pengji Investment Limited (notes a & c)
ENEEREARAA (Witake)

Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property Management Limited (notes a & )
REEE () mEERERAR (Hzake)

Dongguan Shum Yip Property Development Limited (notes a & c)
REMAEEHEERAR (fFake)

Foshan Shunde Shum Yip Property Development Limited (notes a & c)
BlmEERFEEEERAR (HiFake)

Changzhou Shum Yip Property Development Limited (note b)
ENAZHEERAR (Mitb)

Shum Yip Land Company Limited (notes a & c)
REENERAR (Hiake)

Shum Yip East China Property Development Co., Ltd. (notes a & c)
REERMERRERA (Hiake)

China Shum Yip (Group) Property Investment Company Limited

(notes a & c)
HER% (SE) pEREARAR (Witake)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

A
S

PRC/Mainland China
BE /REAE

PRC/Mainland China
HE /EARE

PRC/Mainland China
HE /EARE

PRC/Mainland China
R/ FEARE

PRC/Mainland China
HE /EARE

PRC/Mainland China
HE /EARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE /FEARE

PRC/Mainland China
HE /EARE

B.VIL/
Mainland China
EEEREE/
lEN

B

5%
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1. ARAREEER (&)

FHEMEBLARNER (B)

Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity

registered  interest attributable to Principal
share capital the Company activities
BRAEE/ KRFEEZ

BaES RERDL TEEK

Direct  Indirect

Ef 3
RMB75,000,000 - 80 Property development
AR%75,000,00070 ELE
RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development
AR%10,000,0007 EL S
RMB30,000,000 - 100 Property management
A& 30,000,007 NEER
RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development
A&10,000,0007C R
RMB20,000,000 - 100 Property development
AR520,000,0007 nERE
1US$99,300,000 100 - Property development
99,800,000 ¢ ELES
RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development
ARE#50,000,0007 EL
RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development
AE50,000,0007C EES
US$200 - 100 Investment
200%7T holding
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Shenyang Wuai Shumkang Transportation Centre (Limited) (notes a & c)
BRRERAREE (BRAR) (HFake)

Shenyang Wuai Shenzhen Real Estate Development Company

Limited (notes a & ¢)

BRIERARNEREERAR (Wiake)

Suzhou New Development Investment Limited (notes a & c)
EFMMERIRERRAR (itake)

Shum Yip Land (Shenzhen) Property Management Limited (notes a & ¢)

REEH (R NEERERAT (Hitake)

Shenzhen Kezhigu Investment Limited (notes a & c)
TR REEERAR (fizakc)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

A
S

PRC/Mainland China
wE /REARE

PRC/Mainland China
HE /EARE

PRC/Mainland China
RE /REARE

PRC/Mainland China
HE /EARE

PRC/Mainland China
HE /EARE

Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture Company Limited (“Shenzhen Bio-Agricutture”) B.V.L./

MIENBXERAR (RIENRE])

Mainland China
REERES/
EIARE

1. ARAREEER (&)

FHEMEBLARNEN (B)

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRAEE/
BaES

RMB400,000,000
A& #400,000,0007C

HK$62,403,000
62,403,000 7C

RMBB8(00,000,000
A& %:800,000,0007

RMBS5,000,000
AR#5,000,0007

RMBT84,528,950
AR #784,528,9507C

USS1
B3

Percentage of equity
interest attributable to

the Company
rREEEZ
RERDL

Direct
B

100

Indirect
k4

80.352

80.352

100

100

Principal
activities

B

Property development
and investment and
transportation station
management
NERERRENR

Property development
ESE

Property development
and hotel operation
NEREREESE

Property development
EE

Property development
and property
investment

NERERNERE

Investment holding
RERERK
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)
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1. ARAREEER (&)

FHEMEBLARNER (B)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  Percentage of equity
registration registered  interest attributable to Principal
and business share capital the Company activities
ERAL/ ERR BRAEE/ KRFEEZ
EXhE AR RERAL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
Ef 3
Shenzhen Nongke Group Limited (‘Nongke”) (notes a & c) PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100 Investment holding,
RmENEEERAR (B8 ]) (HiFake) wE /REARE AR #200,000,0007C property investment
and property
management
REBR  DERAR
NEER
Shenzhen Nongke Property PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Limited (notes a & ¢) HE /REARE A&#30,000,0007 and property
MImENFHEREARAR (HiFake) investment
WERERDERE
Notes: MisE

a. Indirectly held by the Company
b. Established in the PRC as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
©x Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise with limited liability

d. Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign joint venture enterprise

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

a. HMARAEERS

b. RHBKIZAIEBERE

c. RHPBRIBEANEREFELE

d.  RAEBERI/PIIEEDLE
ERBINESRR/BAFEREBKE
EXBSEANEEBREEFEZTER
DZARRBNBRABEE - EFRR

FIEE ALK B A BB EHERBR
TR e
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, certain buildings classified as property,
plant and equipment and equity investments which have been
measured at fair value. Disposal groups held for sale are stated
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs
to sell as further explained in note 2.4. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

21 REEE

ZEWBBRDEBEEEGAMAE
(HEEEMAE]) RHENEENG
HEER ([FEFBREER]) (B
FEEEVBBSEN  FEGHE
Al([EE &£ k28 B8
AREARAURBERREHIRE - B
BMRIIZELRAEPIRE - HRE
ME ETHEAMEZET BER
RERBERERARERE » FEF
EZHEHAARAERHERRABRL
ERAMENEIEE AR (FRRR K&
2.4) - BRIERTTHA - BRIZFH R
RUAEBT (BLT]) 28 - BB
MiE A ABZRKEIN TR -

REREZEE
REMBRREBEARAREMEAR
Al (REAIAER]) HE_FT—RF
ToA=tT—HIFEZMBERE - Mt
BRAAARAERKERIENNER
(BREERIEER)  EAKEH2HK
BHREBHFHLHAERBRKES
BAAREEBHEREHSROES (10
AEEEBTRAENANTIEREY
SEMESHRFEN) FEZZER
i - BIEUS R4 o

AR BEEAEMEEFLONREHR
REBIRERBLEN R - AIARE
BRFEEREHAHREERNEN
HeEE—UHRSTERER - 84 :

(@) HEEREHRHEMEEFEAZAE
HIZHE

(b) EMBENRPMEEZEN &

©) AKBZRERLBERTZE -



2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

ok ok
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2.1 MBEE (&)

FRERBZEE (&)

BRI M BHRERTIIREARFER
ZHREHRER-BNETHRRH -
B AR 2 8B AEBIRGEGES
REZAEAR  UYRHERAARERE
HRER I AEIRIE -

B R AR ERENE DS BRAIE
EL L F NGl EE PN E oo
BG4 % 5 B 8 B PR 5 A
BREBTTA - FEREERAFANZX
SHEMMEERAE B KA - B
FARREREOERARER2RE
o

5B R ERER LB A B &5
KAy =B HIE R 2 — A Z AN
REH  AEESEHNFEEIS TS
REHR - HERANEAEERE
CRBREERE) BESIH AR

(DR SEIP S R Ll G N 2o
B RIERIEERANZMBRARZEE
(BEEE) REE - (i)fErEERER
ZIREE R (i) RS NN RETER
R WEBERER)TKRNKEZR
B (EAIRE Z R E B A A (8 K iii)
EELEENBERKER o ARTEE
i 2 T W R HERR O R SR B R (5 BD 0 1R
HASBEERHENREEXARBRE
KRR E M EN DR EERL
RERHM (WER) °
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 Bt EEREEZ2E
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

REBEERAFEZHBRR ERER
THIRERTER -

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee BB ER EREIEFETE -
Contributions FAR 2 EFT =574
Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of BB B HEER BT —NF—A
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle  HKFRSs issued in January 2014 —FE—FFEF M2 ZIBEE
—E——FHE MBHREELZ
ZEE K 1E&T
Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of BB GG ER BT —MHFE— A
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle  HKFRSs issued in January 2014 —E——FF Mz ZIBER
—E—=—FHE HBREELZ
2 EEH A 1&&T
The nature and the impact of each amendment are described FHEEFTRREZHEE R EH AN
below: T s
(a) Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions from (@ BBGHERIFI1REZEFER

A& B 35 = 75 17 #8848 A 5t &
TR - ZFETMEALIFFAER
RIGFEMER RO SFTREE
planEEHeEEA DL ERE

employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions
that are independent of the number of years of employee
service, for example, employee contributions that are

calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the
amount of the contributions is independent of the number
of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such
contributions as a reduction of service cost in the period in
which the related service is rendered. The amendments have
had no impact on the Group as the Group does not have
defined benefit plans.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are effective for the
current year are as follows:

e HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity
must disclose the judgements made by management in
applying the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including
a brief description of operating segments that have
been aggregated and the economic characteristics
used to assess whether the segments are similar. The
amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of segment
assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating
decision maker. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(©)

(continued)

o HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and HKAS 38
Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment of the gross
carrying amount and accumulated depreciation or
amortisation of revalued items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group has
adjusted the accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation to equal the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount of the asset
after taking into account accumulated impairment loss,
and the Group does not apply the revaluation model for
the measurement of intangible assets.

e HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a
management entity (i.e., an entity that provides key
management personnel services) is a related party
subject to related party disclosure requirements. In
addition, an entity that uses a management entity
is required to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not receive any
management services from other entities.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20117-2013 Cycle
issued in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. Details of the amendments that are effective for the
current year are as follows:

e HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that joint
arrangements but not joint ventures are outside the
scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope exception applies
only to the accounting in the financial statements of
the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is applied
prospectively. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group as the Company is not a joint arrangement
and the Group did not form any joint arrangement
during the year.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(©

(continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the
portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can be applied not
only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but
also to other contracts within the scope of HKFRS 9
or HKAS 39 as applicable. The amendment is applied
prospectively from the beginning of the annual period in
which HKFRS 13 was initially applied. The amendment
has had no impact on the Group as the Group does not
apply the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13.

HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that HKFRS 3,
instead of the description of ancillary services in HKAS
40 which differentiates between investment property
and owner-occupied property, is used to determine if
the transaction is a purchase of an asset or a business
combination. The amendment is applied prospectively
for acquisitions of investment properties. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group during the
year.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came
into effect for the first time during the current financial
year. The main impact to the financial statements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

(2011)
Annual Improvements
2012 - 2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'

Investment entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements’
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial

statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not

applicable to the Group
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 BEEMEERERZEBUK

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from
1 January 2016.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer of an
interest in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint
operation constitutes a business must apply the relevant principles
for business combinations in HKFRS 3. The amendments also
clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not
remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the
same joint operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a
scope exclusion has been added to HKFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control,
including the reporting entity, are under common control of the
same ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to both
the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption on
1 January 2016.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In September 2015, the HKICPA
issued an amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral
of the mandatory effective date of HKFRS 15 to 1 January 2018.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial statements.
The amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and
the statement of financial position may be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single line item,
and classified between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

ok ok
Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERBRA R

Annual Report 2015 F#

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% 3R 3k M A
31 December 2015
—T-hF+=A=+—H

23 EEMEESRERZEEBMHE

WmEER (48)

BB REERFE 155 EL —EF R
BEXBEX - B AREBEFELH 2K
o BIRE B ISR E LB E1555
Wi ARE PEEE R RGN
TURR  ERERMZEBEANR
BMERIRGEERESHNRE - BEH
B EERE155% 2 JRARET 2 RFER
ettt —EE BB L - %%
BI7RE| ABZ B E 1 & TE SRR E -
BREIBKGERE  FRRBERENE
B SHECzEENEERBERE S
R Y B 2 DA K% B 3 1 B R (st o RR 2B
R BEBMERELERIBETHMEIR
TWHERETE - R=ZFT—HFNA -
ERGTM A EM BRI BiHEEL
F15E 2 E5] - HEMEBEHBRE
HERIF155 2 R El AR A BHEE—F=
—E-N\F—HA—H - AEEEHR=
T \F— A BEMABBHBRELE
BIZE155% - LA B R IERH A ER AN B S BT
SRR EASRNTE -

TR SR ERE VR ZEFTHE LT
R 2SI FE I A A S H 2L

o RFEFESE

() BESHEABIHRANERER

iE

(i) BEEREMBARRAZKER
BRI AL

(i) BEAEBREZINHMBHRRMEN
IBFFiEE AN © &

(iv) BERBEEARN DG S QA
REERAMEMEE KT LA
FREBREERZY Y HE
REX TSR RERT I EERR
B ER B REEITERE o



PRk
Shen:

RIZERBRA A

Annu

X

zhen Investment Limited

rrrrr

al Report 2015 &3k

Notes to Financial Statements
BF 7 3R 3R} MY &

31 December 2015

—E—AF+_-_A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply
when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of
financial position and the statement of profit or loss. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business
(of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not expected to
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not
used a revenue-based method for the calculation of depreciation
of its non-current assets.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

J

SERZHEPRELAABAFEER
BEMENBIERE - AAERMSH2E
ENGERREAFR ST HERERM
W E R BB NHER - AAE
AENRRHEEERBRABNRS
REEXBBEEIEMSN (EEXEH
BZBERAT) ZABBMHET - T8
IRABEMIZA/ANEETEANT
5% AERABENAABDERTSHZ
HEREEXRBETEERMANRRS
B (RRME2LEERBREFNREL

BEMEEITE)

FERMEENRIABENERAFTETESES
BEFBEMZRBEEZ R MKERR
FHZEELETHERERE RRE
REM»— Mg 2 HE mEELERSE
BEE N

AEBRANBERARTRBEREBETD
BEAHAEAAENGBERTT - UFE
ERRAETERRABREER DK
ARG AE -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
construction contract assets, financial assets, investment
properties, goodwill and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, (only if there are revalued assets in the financial
statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person,

(i)

(if)

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the
fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and
equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the extent
of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 25%

Motor vehicles 9% to 20%

Plant and machinery 10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Properties under construction or development for future use as
investment properties are classified as investment properties
under construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined,
the investment properties under construction will be measured
at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or
construction is completed.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a
transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For this
to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or
disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable. All assets
and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the
Group under operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in other income and gains in the statement of profit
or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in the market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other expenses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of profit
or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The
interest income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, an amount due
to the immediate holding company and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale
after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property development
project is expected to complete beyond the normal operating
cycle. On completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment
of the total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold
properties. Net realisable value is estimated by the directors
based on the prevailing market prices, on an individual property
basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Biological assets

Biological assets represent breeding pigeons recorded as non-current
assets and trading pigeons and cloned orchid flowers recorded as
current assets. The biological assets are measured at their fair value
on initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period less
estimated costs to sell. The fair values of the biological assets are
determined based on the most recent market transaction prices. Any
change in fair value less estimated costs to sell of a biological asset
is included in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as to
use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) income from the sale of properties and goods, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
properties and goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(c) income from the provision of transportation services, when
the transportation services have been rendered;

(d) services income, when the relevant services have been
rendered;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. In prior
years, final dividends proposed by the directors were classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Following the
implementation of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, an average capitalisation
rate of 4.8% (2014: 8.1%) has been applied to the expenditure on
the individual assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note
35 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfiled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEEHBERZHBE (B)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China participates
in the central pension scheme (the “CPS”) operated by the local
municipal government for all of its staff. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute 8% to 20% of their payroll costs to the
CPS. The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
CPS.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on the settlement or transaction of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses carried forward to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on
all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves judgement
regarding the future performance of the particular legal entity or
tax group in which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A
variety of other factors are also evaluated in considering whether
there is convincing evidence that it is probable that some portions
or all of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such
as the existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning
strategies and the periods in which estimated tax losses can
be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and
related financial models and budgets are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and to the extent that there is sufficient
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available
within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses
carried forward, and that the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to the statement of profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax
(“LAT”) implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains arising
from the transfer of real estate properties in Mainland China with
effect from 1 January 1994 are subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including land use rights, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT, which has been
included in income tax. However, the implementation of these taxes
varies amongst various Mainland China cities and the Group has
not finalised its LAT returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises these liabilities based on management’s best estimates.
When the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will impact the
income tax and provisions for land appreciation taxes in the period
in which the determination is made.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangement
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. The Group considers whether a property
generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held
by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased
out separately under finance leases, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and properties
under development

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement
is made by management on determining whether a property
is designated as an investment property or a property under
development. In general, the Group considers its intention for
holding the properties at the early development stage of the
related properties. However, in response to the market demand
for investment properties, the Group would from time to time
amend the corporate strategies on the Group’s property portfolio.
During the course of construction, the related properties under
construction are accounted for as properties under development
included in current assets if the properties are intended for sale
after their completion, whereas the properties accounted for
as investment properties under construction are included in
non-current assets if the properties are intended to be held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion
of the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred to
completed properties held for sale while the properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to
completed investment properties.

K ok
Shenzhen Investment Limited
YRR BR AT

Annual Report 2015 F &

Notes to Financial Statements

£l

Bt 7% 3R 3k M A
31 December 2015
—T-hF+=A=+—H

BEREHE R (&)

H R ()
REWERRREFYEZTE

REBZERFESEYE RIS ERIVE
R/ REXEEREZYME - BE
EEFEHABEE BAMERTHEER
BREMESERPYE - —RMF - &
SEREENEERVNPZEBEFAZ
EMENER - A REBREME
TS HER  AREFTRETBRA
SEYFRASMERERE - HOEHRR
EREILE  RERBRET - HENE
ERMEMARIEERTYE  FTA
MBEE - A MY EERIFERRAES
R/HEREERE  BAWEIA
RIMEERTREYE  fTAFRBDE
B FURENE  BEGENENS
BEREHFEZSERDE  MIFIER
Rk HEREERENYET
BRECDERRENE -



Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYERBRA R
Annual Report 2015 F &

Notes to Financial Statements
Br 7% 3R & MY &

31 December 2015

—B&+-A=1—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

£l

BEREHE R (&)

fhit 2 T RERE
BRARRZEERFAREMRIREH
R MEMBFEEEERREREE

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the HRERNARRERE 2 EZMEFHTARE
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial ESE R N

year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill B E

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least AEEEVEGFETHESRRE B

on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2015 was
HK$322,542,000 (2014: HK$322,765,000). Further details are
given in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill) HLHEERE (BEE)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment AEERSWMERARTEMEEESHE

for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there

ERBAETMRENR - HbIFE/E
EETA B R 5 FE 7 B T {8 7T B B D2 Ui [ e

are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. ETREAR EESRSEESMK
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a AEBSE O ReER - abEA
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the AREREERAREREE - AIFER

higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based

B FATEARERHERAR - AR
i%f‘i?fﬁ{ué?tﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂiﬂ HY 5

o

on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s ERGAGEE A BEmERLESR
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices FE’?EP‘JJDEJZK o ZERAFERAER
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in SEER  BREAMGTEESNRESE

use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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EEETRENFEZETREREZ
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, management determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its
judgement, management considers information from (i) current
prices in an active market for properties of a different nature,
condition or location by reference to available market information;
(ii) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the dates of transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)
discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts, and (where possible) by external evidence
such as current market rates for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2015
was HK$20,908,173,000 (2014: HK$20,018,594,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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4.

AF+=—RA=+—H
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services, and has five
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the property development segment engages in the development
of residential, industrial and commercial properties;

(b) the property investment segment invests in residential, industrial
and commercial properties for their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management
of both properties developed by the Group and external parties;

(d) the manufacture segment engages in the manufacture and sale
of industrial and commercial products; and

(e) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the hotel operations,
manufacture and sale of aluminum alloy products and
agricultural products, design and construction of gardens and
other businesses.

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s
business units separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax from
continuing operations. The adjusted profit before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that interest income, finance costs,
dividend income, fair value gains from the Group’s financial
instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, pledged deposits,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. KEFFER (B)
(CONTINUED)

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings, an amount due to the ultimate holding company,

tax payable, an amount due to the immediate holding company,

deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and

ERFHRRITREMEE - BNRKE
BRRIFRIA - EANHIA - BN ERER
RAFIE - BERBERBEREM RS A
BRERELRARABNREEEEE

corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-Z-1%1t-A=1-H
LLFE

Property
development

NERR
HK$'000
TAT

Property
investment

HK$'000
TAT

B HOoRBBEYTEENALERE-

DEEHERERDIE2ERFE =K
SNEE RERNRTHEELETX

5 o

Property

management

Manufacture Others Total

NEER 2 Eft a8

HK$'000

HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
Tt

TAL

Segment revenue: AN
Sales to customers HETRP 15,056,911 789,473 1,369,006 430,800 781,982 18,428,172
Intersegment sales NERMEE - 7,060 25,913 - 148,154 181,127
15,056,911 796,533 1,394,919 430,800 930,136 18,609,299

Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment sales HENEMHE (181,127)
Revenue Wizs 18,428,172
Segment results before increase i~ REMER A EE A

fair value of investment properties InEEE 4,853,632 610,977 84,901 11,438 (58,830) 5,502,118
Increase in fair value of investment BREME

properties DR EEN - 1,082,176 = = - 1,082,176
Recognition of change in fair value BRRERE

of completed properties held for ZEERME

sale upon transfer to investment A2 EEE

properties ERENE = 432,102 - - - 432,102
Segment results after increase in REVMEDRERNA

fair value of investment properties ~ 2 E£%& 4,853,632 2,125,255 84,901 11,438 (58,830) 7,016,396
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment results HENERER (30,621)
Finance income BA 344,694
Dividend income and unallocated REMAR

gains R RN 217,066
Fair value loss on financial SRIEZDAERE

instruments, net FE 580
Corporate and other unallocated AR A

expenses RARER (138,902)
Finance costs BERAK (708,484)
Profit before tax B A A 6,510,629




Shenzhen Investmem lelted
154 | syzrsaraz
Annual Report 2015 %

Notes to Financial Statements

B % sk
31 December 2015
—E-BF+-A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEHEEH (E)
(CONTINUED)
Property Property Property
Year ended 31 December 2015 development  investment management Manufacture Others Total
HE-2-1E+-A=t-H
LEE L NERE NEER B Hit ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T THL T
Segment assets PREE 48,747,765 22,729,484 162,570 184,983 3,924 577 75,749,379
Reconciliation #%
Corporate and other unallocated AR REM
assets AORBE 15,335,839
Total assets BEE 91,085,218
Segment liabilities B8R 16,624,958 1,057,481 623,955 39,371 499,493 18,845,258
Reconciliation Eid
Corporate and other AR REM
unallocated liabilities RARARE 36,670,894
Total liabilities agfE 55,516,152
Other segment information: Htt 2 &R
Depreciation il 66,968 17,927 10,903 8,403 51,735 155,936
Amortisation of prepaid land B LiHE
lease payments SR - - - - 1,309 1,309
Share of profits and losses of NG
associates S RER 336,962 207,355 10,507 - 45,929 600,753
Share of profits and losses of EEE2 A0
joint ventures S RER 7,092 - - - - 7,092
Impairment of properties YERNE
under development A 118,272 - - - - 118,272
Impairment of completed BHERFEZ
properties held for sale BEKMERE 254,118 - - - - 254,118
Investments in associates BENRRE 6,039,866 80,084 28,613 15,133 146,507 6,310,203
Investments in joint ventures AEARKRE 431,534 - - - 133,600 565,134
Capital expenditure* AR 6,094,347 816,255 5,792 18,913 8,600 6,943,907
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BATHBEABEYE  BERF
equipment, investment properties, properties under development and - REWME  FERBUERSES

completed properties held for sale. EZBERME -
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4. REDEEHR (B)

(CONTINUED)
Property Property Property
Year ended 31 December 2014 development investment management  Manufacture Others Total
BE-T-MFT-A=1-H
ILEE MR E 36 Hity Lk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx Tix THL THET THT
Segment revenue: 2 ENE
Sales to customers HETEP 10,938,147 681,151 1,211,043 432,899 563,865 13,827,105
Intersegment sales NEREE - 5,622 15,839 - 111,376 132,837
10,938,147 686,773 1,226,882 432,899 675,241 13,959,942
Reconciliation %
Elimination of intersegment sales HEABRHE (132,837)
Revenue Wizs 13,827,105
Segment results before increase in REME
fair value of investment AREEM
properties AlZB%E 2,460,309 507,624 55,922 1,256 (9,245) 3,015,866
Increase in fair value of investment REmE
properties AREEM - 764,085 - - 764,085
Recognition of change in fair value EARERE
of completed properties held for ZEERDE
sale upon transfer to investment DrEEIER
properties ERENE = 846,820 - - 846,820
Segment results after increase RENEMNE
in fair value of investment Bhge
properties TEEE 2,460,309 2,118,529 55,922 1,256 (9,245) 4,626,771
Reconciliation Eod
Elimination of intersegment results HENEHERE (45,944)
Finance income BB 768,649
Dividend income and unallocated BREMAR
gains RO 40,207
Gain on a bargain purchase —BREHEEANE 1,069,722
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZAE 395,704
Loss on deemed disposal of equity BEHE—HBE AR
interest in an associate (note 20) WiEz B8 (Fis20) (59,225)
Fair value loss on financial ERIAZAAERR
instruments, net FE (1,522
Corporate and other unallocated NN
expenses APRER (198,628)
Finance costs BEKK (742,762)
Profit before tax B AEF 5,862,972
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIBER (B)
(CONTINUED)

Property Property Property

Year ended 31 December 2014 development investment management  Manufacture Others
BE-Z-ME+-A=+-H
IL5E VELES NERE NEER 35 Hit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T THx THL THT
Segment assets TEEE 56,089,928 22,736,199 160,784 172,823 4,331,038 83,490,772
Reconciliation i
Corporate and other unallocated NN
assets FOREE 11,014,135
Total assets BEE 94,504,907
Segment liabilities PEEE 15,395,207 1,850,390 486,945 39,575 944,574 18,716,691
Reconciliation Eoid
Corporate and other unallocated AR REM
liabilities FAEEE 43,014,581
Total liabilities B 61,731,272
Other segment information: HEpEER
Depreciation e 34,317 13,805 12,256 12,242 76,829 149,449
Amortisation of prepaid land B tHeE
lease payments B - - - - 1,600 1,600
Share of profits and losses JEBEE AR
of associates i RER 464,342 151,525 6,244 - 28,006 650,117
Share of profits and losses A E DT
of joint ventures WA R EE (6,299) - - - 52,783 46,484
Impairment of an investment —BHERF
in an associate REZRE 149,000 - - - - 149,000
Impairment of properties under BKEME
development HE 287,893 - - - - 287,893
Impairment of completed properties ~ H{EFEZ
held for sale BERMERE 169,472 - - - - 169,472
Loss on deemed disposal of RIEHE—RBEAR
equity interest in an associate RiEz BB 59,225 - - - 59,225
Investments in associates BANARE 5,833,837 85,552 19,368 15,133 181,090 6,134,980
Investments in joint ventures AENAKRE 1,625,678 - - - 278,461 1,904,139
Capital expenditure™ EAZ 16,767,989 521,955 10,674 6,833 15,725 17,323,176
As the Group generates substantially all of its revenue from HARAEEBARBO W amEE BN F
customers domiciled in Mainland China and most of its non-current BIAREZBF BRI IEREEEHN
assets are located in Mainland China, no geographical information PR B R e - BNl AR 2 51 3 [ B R o

is presented.
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5. W~ HWARFE
WatERAHEMR  AXRIXEM

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, represents proceeds from the sale of properties, commercial

and industrial goods, rental income, management fee income and FrfgsIE - e WA~ BEERBRARE
others. fb U A e

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing BELEER 2 e - EMARFE
operations is as follows: 2T

2015 2014
= S —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Revenue g
Sale of properties HEME 15,056,911 10,938,147
Gross management fee income BEBW AR 1,369,006 1,211,043
Gross rental income from KEMEHEE
investment properties ION L 789,473 681,151
Sale of commercial and HEMER
industrial goods THES 430,800 432,899
Others Hih 781,982 563,865
18,428,172 13,827,105
Other income Htglt A
Bank interest income SRITA BULA 72,526 80,878
Interest income from Joint ventures BERNRZHBUA 191,723 399,795
Finance income from an independent  KEBIE=FH
third party Z B 80,345 287,809
Estate agency fee income from KE—HRZEMBARZ
a fellow subsidiary HWEREBIRA - 9,220
Others =i 244,393 129,685
588,987 907,387
Gains 5
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HERFERS
investments wEZFE = 1,109
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE BEKR
plant and equipment JEEE 2 FG = 11,523
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYE
properties Z A5 26,302 63,684
Gain on a bargain purchase —JEREEEFE = 1,069,722
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR ZFE = 395,704
26,302 1,541,742
Other income and gains Hilg A R FIE 615,289 2,449,129




P IS
S SRereaRnTRnaTeREn

Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERER AR
Annual Report 2015 %

Notes to Financial Statements

B % sk
31 December 2015
—E-BF+-A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived

at after charging/(crediting):

6. BRBLADEF

AEBEFELERBE2HRBAGEMNEH
B (GEA) TOIRIRRES

2015
—B-HF

HK$’000
FTHT

2014
—E—NF
HK$’000
FHT

Cost of properties and EEMER
inventories sold FERKAN 9,842,550 7,895,780
Cost of services provided R AR TS A AN 2,211,138 1,858,381
Auditors’ remuneration Z ST BN & 5,270 5,250
Depreciation e 13 155,936 149,449
Impairment of trade receivables FE U AR FOR B 25 844 32
Reversal of impairment of FEUS AR FOR B
trade receivables | 25 (157) (86)
Impairment of other receivables H th f& W SR IE R E 3,264 13,170
Impairment of an investment in —HEE R EIRE 2
an associate* B 20 = 149,000
Impairment of properties under ERPYE
development* T E* 17 118,272 287,893
Impairment of completed properties FHERFE 2B 8K
held for sale* YR B 16 254,118 169,472
Direct operating expenses (including gk s=¢ 7/
repairs and maintenance) arising ZEELES
on rental-earning investment (BiEHE
properties RIRE) 98,224 98,852
Minimum lease payments under T REF
operating leases in respect of ZIRERE
land and buildings REED 7,137 4,626
Amortisation of prepaid land AT L ERIE
lease payments i 14 1,309 1,600
Employee benefit expense EERANAx (T8
(excluding directors’ and REERES
chief executive’s remuneration, TRAEMS -
note 8): fizE8) :
Wages and salaries TERFS 965,971 860,336
Equity-settled share option AR A SZ 5 2
expense B AR R 2 24,171 18,020
Pension scheme contributions BRRE T2 R 135,236 120,341
Less: Amount capitalised D= N e k- (40,571) (25,754)
Net: Pension scheme contributions — R{REEFEMERFUFEE 94,665 94,587
1,084,807 972,943




PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

Foreign exchange differences, net

Rental income on investment
properties less direct operating
expenses of HK$98,224,000
(2014
HK$98,852,000)

Changes in fair value of contingent
consideration payable to
the immediate holding company

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Gain on a bargain purchase

Gain on disposal of held-for-trading
investments

Gain on disposal of investment
properties

Loss on deemed disposal of equity
interest in an associate*

SNEZRFE
BEYERS AR
HEEEBELH
98,224,000/ 7T
ZE O
98,852,000/ 7T)
ENEEIERTES
AREz2ANE

b
HEHBRRZFIE
HEME - BE K

SHEEE 2 G
—IEHREBERNE
EERERZFREZ

M5
HEREYEZ

NS
A & — B

NRIREZ B
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6. ERBLATER (8)

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHT T

(7,883) 5,625
(691,249) (582,299)

33,136 7,246
- (395,704)
= (11,523)
= (1,069,722)
- (1,109)
(26,302) (63,684)
- 59,225

development and completed properties held for sale and loss on
deemed disposal of equity interest in an associate are included in “Other

The impairment of an investment in an associate, properties under

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

T HBEARBERTOERFESE

ZERKMERBELE —HBER
Al BIEREZRES AGEE
MR [HEAMRAX] A e
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7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

A A

BERARZ DT

2015 2014
—E-RF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHBIT
Interest on: FEZH
Bank loans RITER 1,015,533 1,465,878
Other borrowings HifEE 139,641 53,205
Loans from the ultimate JERT AR A )
holding company 2B 214,268 316,378
Loans from fellow subsidiaries ENRRMBARIZER 7,575 16,976
Loans from non-controlling FEAS FEFE AR AR
shareholders ZEX 7,705 7,146
Total interest expense on WIEFE BB IR
financial liabilities not at fair value AAEFEZEREE
through profit or loss 2R B e 1,384,722 1,849,583
Less: Interest capitalised o FEER(E (676,238) (1,106,821)
708,484 742,762




DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,
is as follows:
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EERBSTRAEMS

BRI EmRA - BB R EERHIZ383(1)
@~ ) C)ROHERAR (FREEEF
=ER) RO BEBEIAFEES
RESITTBRABMESIT :

2015 2014

—EB-EFE —E—-mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Fees we 1,750 1,750

Other emoluments: Hi g :

Salaries, allowances and benefits e Rk

in kind BV &= 9,792 8,825

Equity-settled share option expense ARG AR 2+ 2 B AR M A =2 5,442 5,255

Pension scheme contributions BRIRDEHEIH R 1,424 1,401

16,658 15,481

18,408 17,231

During the year, certain directors and chief executive were granted
share options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details of which
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.

RAFEAR  ETREZTRERITERA
BERREA/AKERBMREARARFZ
A BIERERE - BRE T
BN BIMKRHMTE35A - ZFEHAR
BzAnE (RERGEBHENERR
WHER) ENX L BHBIEE - st AR
FEFBHRRZSBEFALXEER
RE1THABME 2 HEERA -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERBSTHRAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during REREENBIENTESHS
the year were as follows: PO
2015 2014
=BT e S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT F#IT
Wu Wai Chung, Michael R(EEE 330 330
Li Wai Keung 2 {Fo 380 380
Wong Yau Kar, David ER5 380 380
1,090 1,090
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent NG E N R H M FE S B L FE AT
non-executive directors during the year (2014: Nil). Bxrie (ZT—HF : 8) o
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BITEERIHTES

Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
in kind expense contributions

¥ BER WERGEZ  RAEHY
ik BENRE  BRERX K ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL FHET FTERT THERT FTHET

2015 —E-1f

Executive directors: HIES:
Lu Hua B - 3,405 1,413 515 5,333
Liu Chong 2= - 1,856 947 268 3,071
Gao Shengyuan* BT - 1,665 1,342 238 3,245
Huang Wei* T - 1,609 793 225 2,627
Mou Yong 2B - 1,257 947 178 2,382
- 9,792 5,442 1,424 16,658

Non-executive directors: FRTES

Wu Jiesi RAER 330 - - - 330
Huang Yige B8 330 - - - 330
660 - - - 660

660 9,792 5,442 1,424 17,318




8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

(continued)
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8. EERESTHRAEME (B)

(b) BITESKRIHTES (H)

Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense  contributions Total
IEREE,  RIREE
ik BRER 5 &5
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TAL THT FHL TEx
2014 —E-mF
Executive directors: HITES
Lu Hua BE - 2,924 1,759 483 5,166
Gao Shengyuan** 22T - 2,795 1,494 461 4,750
Mou Yong 2B - 1,251 1,001 183 2,435
Liu Chong 2= - 1,855 1,001 274 3,130
= 8,825 5,255 1,401 15,481
Non-executive directors: FNTES
Wu Jiesi RER 330 - - - 330
Huang Yige 1 330 - - - 330
660 = = = 660
660 8,825 5,255 1,401 16,141
* HUANG Wei was appointed as an executive director on 21 July * HERZ ﬂi‘t A=

2015.

Hoke

Gao Shengyuan resigned as an executive director on 21 July 2015.

*k =|

—hFEA
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9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
directors (2014: three directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining two (2014: two) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor the chief executive of the Company
are as follows:

hEREHES
rERZIARRFHEERBE=2EF
—EMF:ZRER) ZFESF
ZHEFBEHN EXES - AT R
(ZF—MF: MB) FERREFR
ERTTBRABZESHEENRAFEZ
MEeFBmT

2015 2014
= N ZE—NFE
HK$'000

Fi&T

HK$°000
FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZRREYHZR 3,499 8,573
Equity-settled share option expense PARR AR 32 4+F 2 B AR pgE A =2 1,894 2,057
Pension scheme contributions RN ET 2R 535 548

5,928 6,178

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

HeBATHEZIFEZERIFZHITH
ABZERHREEHBANT

Number of employees

EERE

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T % 2,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 723,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001}8 7L £3,500,0007 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,0018 7. E6,000,0007% 7T - -

2 2

In prior years, share options were granted to two non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 35 to the financial statements. The fair value
of these options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

RBEFEARN  MEFEERFEST
BABZ&REHEERKSE RAKER
BMERBEE  BRE—FHBLH
KRB RERMEIBZ HEERA - ZF
BREs A RE (RCRBBHRENE
BRAER) ENEE A HEE - W&t
ARFEMBREZSBEFALIGE
EEZRERBTHRABZ&S HES M
EZREERA -



10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made as the Group had no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year (2014: Nil).

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the provinces in which the Group
operates.

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are
subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25%
on their respective taxable income during the year.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures. LAT of HK$1,937,337,000 is charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year (2014:
HK$1,036,771,000).
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10. 8%

FR - AREZFEENEGHERIEFA
REBEBELEZ AT ERRBENIZ16.5%
T PF  16.5%) ZBHEFHE - &
SEYWEERBELEARRTEN -
Rt I E|AELBANEHES (ZF—
P04 : M) o

rh B K O S B R 2 BB RIS
AEBELBEDZRTBEH -

REBEBBMASEE - FA - PENELR
BIZABLE B R AIZEE R £26%
BREEMAEHR ([REMEHR]) -

FRE £ o R (E B AR L i 38 (E 2 30% =
60% RER BB - b ERNHEY
¥MBRIERBIE L E RSN - &
B RFTA ERES L 2 AT
X o AFE  BEFEBRKXPHNRKR L
b 3% (& ${1,937,337,000/ o (= F —
PO4E : 1,086,771,000/8 %) °

2015 2014

—®-Hf B HgE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current CIT — Mainland China BIEAS ¥ FT1SH — AP B KB 1,763,329 1,060,943

LAT — Mainland China PR (3R] A e £ b SR (B R 1,937,337 1,036,771
Deferred CIT — Mainland China EEDEESR — BB ARE

(note 32) (KHE32) (277,289) 251,164

Total tax charge for the year NEERIBL L 4R 3,423,377 2,348,878
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for the countries (or jurisdictions) in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of
the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective
tax rates, are as follows:

10. FrfEH (48)
NXFRE AR AR R B R H R A S
REMEBER (KEDEER) 0EED
FHEZEBRBEBANE N 2 HIAFRX
HRARREAEZRRR X 2 HER
ERARE (AEME) BERRERZ
ik

2015
—B-HF

2014
—E-mEg

HK$’000
FTHET

HK$’000
THET

Profit before tax from SFELEEB 2

continuing operations BR B AT A 6,510,629 5,852,972
Tax at the statutory tax rate R B K B A E R

in Mainland China HE 2RI 1,627,657 25.0 | 1,463,242 25.0
Lower tax rates for specific BHEADK

provinces or enacted by 75 E B EIE

local authorities ZEIRB R (15,463) (0.2) 6,267 0.1
Profits and losses NS

attributable to associates w5 & &5 18 (150,188) (2.3)| (139,083 (2.4)
Profits and losses attributable & %A 7 fE(L

to joint ventures w1 (1,773) = (11,678) 0.2)
Income not subject to tax BERHUA (4,901) (0.1)| (267,342) (4.6)
Tax losses not recognised RERZ T IEEE 202,720 3.1 157,987 2.7
Tax losses utilised EBAZRIEER (4,238) (0.1) (89,670) (1.5)
Expenses not deductible for tax S a] st 7 8 036 2 F3 52 359,550 65 325,626 5.6
Effect of withholding tax on A Bz A BT A A

distributable profits of the Z A DR 2

Group’s PRC subsidiaries BT E 165,825 2.5 125,919 2.2
LAT 4 b IR E R 1,937,337 29.8 | 1,036,771 17.7
Tax effect of LAT THRER 2 H BT A (693,149) (10.6)| (259,161) (4.4)
Tax charge at the Group’s BAREBBUHERNGZ

effective rate g 3,423,377 52.6 | 2,348,878 40.2

ASEBHERAREEARABRES
630,027,000% T (= T — M F:
636,362,000/ 7T) B A4r & 1 &
[EEE QR RE &R A REE ]
A o

The share of taxes attributable to associates and joint ventures
amounting to HK$630,027,000 (2014: HK$636,362,000) is included
in “Share of profits and losses of associates and joint ventures” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. K&
2015 2014
—E-FE e e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Dividends recognised as distribution BREFRNDIK
during the year: IR
Final dividend declared for 2014 - NF SRR
— HK18.00 cents per share & 5 — & %13.00% 1L
(2014: declared for 2013 (ZZ—m%F :
— HK12.00 cents per share) —E—=F5)kAKH
iR S — &hk12.007%10L)
Scrip shares KBRS 4,846 521,507
Cash e 954,759 124,396
959,605 645,903
Interim — HK3.00 cents (2014: RIS — BIRE @
HK3.00 cents) per ordinary share 3.00l (= — W4 :
3.007 L)
Scrip shares RERMD = -
Cash B 221,521 199,682
221,521 199,682
Proposed final dividend of HK13.00 cents ##/xk 7 HBR% B & A% & i %
(2014: final dividend of HK13.00 cents)  13.00/& (L (=& —PO4 :
per ordinary share REARR 2.13.007%11L) 959,922 865,287
1,181,443 1,064,969

On 30 March 2016, the board of directors proposed a final
dividend of HK13.00 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: HK13.00 cents per share). The proposed
final dividends will be paid in cash but shareholders will be given
the option of receiving such dividend wholly in new fully paid
share(s) of the Company in lieu of cash, or partly in cash and
partly in the form of scrip shares.

The proposed final dividends for the year are subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

R-ZZE—RF=ZA=+H EFEHK
HE—"Z-—AFt+-_A=+—HILFE
2 REANE S AR13.008 L (== —1
F o FRR13.007 L) o # K K 5% B
AR & S - MR ATE B 2 SR
REIZHHRBRORBRSLEHIUNER
& K Eh AR B AR 5 75 = U B b SR HA A%

B o
N

RERERARARSAFTARBRRR
FEERRBFERE L4ER - TAE

e
=
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BRRAEBREREE ARG

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 7,073,029,529 (2014: 5,839,586,236) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on:

BREF
EREARFSENZRBEE QAR LA
BEZFEEABLGFANZFNRFEANEL
1T % AR I £ 5 247,073,029,529
f% (== —PU4F : 5,839,586,236/%) &t
;’é o

FESRBERNSRRE AR ER
BHESFEAREFRENTE - AE
IR EZ BBENEFSBAFAE
BT EERE A (ARG EESRER
BNE) ARBRERAAEEEHEER
BARVETT R Sk E i B B A By B R 7T
B E BN I B o

BRERREERF TR T 5 & IEE
&

2015 2014
—EB-EHf —E—-E
HK$'000

HK$’000
THET ik (ERT

Earnings EF
Profit attributable to ordinary equity AU EERER K
holders of the parent, used in the BEEN 2B AT
basic and diluted earnings per share TERESEAEA
calculations FE (G
From continuing operations KBRS TS 2,868,796 3,129,758
From a discontinued operation REFFECEER = 1,658
2,868,796 3,131,316

Number of shares
BB E

Shares g}
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year used in FRNEBITEBER
the basic earnings per share calculation NNAE 8

Effect of dilution — weighted average BEr e — TRk
number of ordinary shares: TnkEFHEL
Share options il

RUAGHESRERRANZ

7,073,029,529 5,839,586,236

617,725 1,974,878

7,073,647,254 5,841,561,114




13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and
buildings

in Mainland
China under
medium
term leases
REEAR
HEIRRRE
ZIHRET
HK$'000
TR

Leasehold
improvements

RENELEE
HKS'000
Tin

%

ot
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13. ¥13% - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor

vehicles

Plant and
machinery

Construction
equipment

in progress

Bl RER
R -
HKS'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR

HRER#E
HK$'000

TEn

KEIR aE
HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn TiEn

31 December 2015 “F-RF+t-A=1-H
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-WE+-A=1-HR

at 1 January 2015: “5-1%-F-R:
Cost or valuation KRS E 3,228,917 270,457 258,648 95,009 171,197 30,831 4,055,059
Accumulated depreciation 2:t5E (340892) (105399 (206504 (66611  (95151) - (14557
Net carrying amount FmFE 2,888,025 165,058 52,144 28,398 76,046 30,831 3,240,502
At 1 January 2015, net of RZE-RE-A-A"

accumulated depreciation TR 2strE 2,888,025 165,058 52,144 28,398 76,046 30,831 3,240,502
Additions AE - 57,994 42,240 2,41 930 191,839 295,474
Transfer from investment ERaRE

properties (note 18) W% (Fizkie) - - - - - 800,637 800,637
Redlassfication EFitord 4379 (3773) 342 - 163 (1,119) -
Transfer from completed BREREFEL

properties held for sale EERNE 69,714 - - - - - 69,714
Disposals e (2,042) (411) (1,394) - (270) - (4,117)
Depreciation provided REENE

during the year B (16733 (35,381)  (27,5%) (8,444) (7,78) - (15593)
Exchange relignment Ejag (89,848) (5,261) (1,417) (961) (3.276) (1,335 (102,098)
At 31 December 2015, net of R-E-AET-A=1t-H"

accumulated depreciation TR EtrE 2,793,495 178,226 64,319 21,464 65,811 1,020,861 4,144,176
At 31 December 2015: RoE-RF+-A=1-H:
Cost or valuation A {EE 3,181,121 313,113 282,157 96,519 161,052 1,020,861 5,054,823
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (387,626) (134,887) (217,838) (75,055) (95,241) - (910,647)
Net carrying amount FaFE 2,793,495 178,226 64,319 21,464 65,811 1,020,861 4,144,176
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - BERRE (8B)
(CONTINUED)
Land and
buildings
in Mainland
China under Fumiture,
medium Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
term leases  improvements equipment vehicles machinery i progress
Pk
HEARERE - RER
JIMEET  RENERE B ot Wiz Rie fRIR 8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FiET T Fhn AT Titn Tt
31 December 2014 “E-mET-A=1-A
At 1 January 2014; RZF-ME-A-A:
Cost or valuation A (EE 2,614,347 233,281 229,332 85,510 198,297 9,227 3,369,994
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (248,510) (80,323) (165,736) (56,435) (121,365) - (672,369)
Net carrying amount e 2,365,887 162,958 63,596 29,075 76,932 9,227 2,697,625
At 1 January 2014, net of R=F-mE-A-A"
accumulated depreciation BARZHE 2,365,837 152,958 63,596 29,075 76,932 9,221 2,697,625
Additions AE 21,710 40,381 16,964 2,991 5,009 23,770 116,885
Acquisition of a subsicary WE-BHERA 375,025 437 8,024 5908 6,549 11,288 407,281
Transfer from properties under ~ EEEXES
development (note 17) & (fi17) 9,934 - - - - - 9,934
Reclassification EN0E = - - - 13,082 (13,082) -
Transfer to completed BRESRERE
properties held for sale LBERIE (33,066) - - - - - (33,066)
Disposals ik (619) - (1,987) (171) (8,958) - (11,685)
Surplus on revaluation EfER 242,536 - - - - - 242,536
Depreciation provided REENE
during the year BE (65,167) (26,558) (33,602) (8,922) (15,200) - (149,449)
Exchange realignment EiA% (34,225) (2,160) (901) (483) (1,368) (372) (39,509)

At 31 December 2014, net of RZE-ME+-A=1-R"

accumulated depreciation BB 2:4E 2,888,025 165,058 52,144 28,398 76,046 30,831 3,240,502
At 31 December 2014: R-E-ME+-A=1-H:
Cost or valuation RRE 3,228,917 270,457 258,648 95,009 171,197 30,831 4,055,059
Acoumulated depreciation 2iH7E (4089 (105399 (208504 (66,611) (95,151) - [B14557)

Net carrying amount REE 2,888,025 166,058 52,144 26,398 76,046 30,831 3,240,502




13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Nongke, a
subsidiary acquired by the Group on 22 August 2014, and an
independent third party on 3 September 2012, Nongke agreed to
dispose of certain of its buildings to the independent third party
for a cash consideration of RMB250,457,000. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of the buildings was HK$14,652,000.
Further details of the agreement are included in note 18 to the
financial statements.

At 31 December 2015, the Group has not yet obtained the
ownership certificates in respect of the buildings with a net
carrying amount of HK$344,270,000 (2014: HK$357,994,000).

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s land and buildings
in Mainland China with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$728,180,000 (2014: HK$1,104,045,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 29(a)(i)).

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
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13. W% - BMERKE (B)

BERR (AERER-_Z—HENAZ
TZRNE —HRBAR) BB E
=FRZZE—ZFNA=ZBIZZH
Z BNMRAERABYE=ALEEET
BF  RERERARK250,457,000
T -RZZE—RAF+=-A=+—8 "' %
L F 7 RHEEA14,652,0007% 7T °
k< HE— R IS E B B R M a
18 °

RZZE—hFE+-A=+—H A&H
i#) A B 45 R T F {8 5344,270,0005% 7T
(ZZ— 4 : 357,994,000/ 7T) 2 1%
FrEHEDSE -

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—8 ' &x&
B & T EREFEL A728,180,0007 7T
(ZZ— 4 : 1,104,045,000/% 7T) 2
AR BABERA 2 i M F Tk
BAREBEFTERBITRERZER (HiE
29(a)(i)) °

14. AL HERE

2015 2014
—E-EHF el
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZERHE 44,688 46,940
Transfer from properties under EREEETYE
development (note 17) (HIsE17) 319 177
Recognised during the year FRER (1,309) (1,600)
Exchange realignment b i, A% (1,957) (829)
Carrying amount R+=A=+—8B2
at 31 December FREE 41,741 44,688
Current portion included in prepayments, STAFERFIE - ST hE
deposits and other receivables fth FE WK IR 2 BN ERER 5 (1,386) (1,451)
Non-current portion FEBNHAEL 7> 40,355 43,237
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15. GOODWILL 15. B8
HK$’000
FAT
Cost at 1 January 2014 REZZ—NFE—A—RH 2R 322,856
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% 1)
Cost and carrying amount RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—HzZ
at 31 December 2014 PR AR K AR EE 322,765
At 31 December 2014: RZE-—NFE+ZA=1+—8 :
Cost XA 322,765
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE -
Net carrying amount FREHE 322,765
Cost at 1 January 2015 REZZE—RAF—A—HZKA 322,765
Exchange realignment b 5, 2 (223)
Cost and carrying amount RZZE—RAFF+ZA=+—HZEKEK
at 31 December 2015 BREE 322,542
At 31 December 2015: R-ZE—h&F+_A=+—8:
Cost (D% 322,542
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE -
Net carrying amount BREFE 322,542
Impairment testing of goodwill BERENR
Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated to BREBEHMKEZEEESEET
the following cash-generating units for impairment testing: PR @ EE BAEITRERIR
e Property development cash-generating unit; and o WHERBRESELEBM: R

e Property investment cash-generating unit o WEREBMESELESN



15. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units have been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The key assumptions adopted
on growth rates and discount rates used in the value-in-use
calculations are based on management’s best estimates. The
growth rate of 2% (2014: 2%) is determined by considering both
internal and external factors relating to the relevant segments.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 12%
(2014:12%).

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
units is as follows:

Carrying amount of goodwill HEREE
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15. & (&)

BERENR (8)

HeELBEM A lESBEREES
REBAEHEZ AFHBMETEERS
B REEAFEZFERAEEET
£ P {EE T SR L = R & B3R R IR
ZEEBRRXDBEEERE 2 &EMFTM
BE e MERIY (ZT—UF :2%)
BEEEBHEBIBEZARIEERE
E e BemnERAERZREA12%
(ZZF—MU4F : 12%) °

REREELSBM 2 HERAEEN

- P

Property development
LIE Sk
2015 2014
—T-mE
HK$’'000
FAET

322,765

=B-HhE
HK$’000
THET

322,542

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
property development cash-generating unit for 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Raw materials price inflation — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to raw materials price inflation is the forecast price
indices during the budget year for country from where the raw
materials are sourced.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development
of property industry, discount rate and raw materials price inflation
are consistent with external information sources.

REBEZZE—RAF+_A=+—HkK=
T—NFE+—_A=1+—H  PEMER
CELBNZFRABEDNEE TRER
B FHEITRE o TXEHAEEERIE
HIA &R 28R #17 B R E R B R AT
RENSEEZRRE

BEENEX-AREBEEOETREE
MEMEEMRANEESZRRE
BRI —FAMBERNFHENE - AR
BEHNRREARBROTSERME
FRERTT -

FHRE-ARBZIFRERRBA L
G B B AL < R R R

R EHER R -AREERETRM
FER LRNBEMRANEERTRR
FREARMERIRE TR ERR -

DETHMRTENTZFE - TREXR
R EHER LR ERRROEETIE
SMNERE B AR — B °
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16. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 16. HIEGEZEBERYFE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, completed properties
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$589,317,000 (2014: HK$782,652,000) were transferred to
investment properties upon change in use as evidenced by the
signing of relevant tenancy agreements. The excess of the fair
value of these properties at the date of transfer over their carrying
amounts, amounting to approximately HK$432,102,000 (2014:
HK$846,820,000), was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

During the year, impairment provision of HK$254,118,000 (2014:
HK$169,472,000) for certain completed properties held for sale
located in Mainland China was recognised in “Other expenses”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In making the
impairment assessment, the Group’s management has determined
the recoverable amount of these properties on the basis of their
fair value less costs to sell on a market value basis.

In addition, the application for ownership certificates of certain
completed properties held for sale located at Li Lin Terrace (Z#k
38) and Li Cui Court (22 %)) of Nongke and its subsidiaries (the
“Nongke Group”) with a total carrying value of HK$13,125,000
as at 31 December 2015 was still in progress. Pursuant to the
Acquisition Agreement between Nongke Group and Shum Yip
Holdings in 2014, any interest in the properties located at Li Lin
Terrace (##48) and Li Cui Court (22 %)) with the total carrying
amount of HK$13,125,000 as at 31 December 2015, of which the
ownership certificates have not yet been issued, shall be deemed
to be owned by Shum Yip Holdings if certain conditions are not
satisfied by the Nongke Group within a specified period of time.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s completed properties
held for sale with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$66,738,000 (2014: HK$16,419,000) were pledged to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 29(a)(ii)).

HE-_Z—AF+-A=1+—HALHF
E - BRH 4 8 %) /589,317,000 7T
(ZZ— U4 : 782,652,000/ 70) 1
FEZEZRYERBRETHERE
HEMRA AL SR EEREY
¥ oREERH ZEVENDAER
B E AR EE 3 5 49/5432,102,0000% 7T
(ZZ—[U4 : 846,820,000/ 7C) B M

REBEERER o

FRNBETALRPBEKREZFE
HFEZEERMESTRAEER
254,118,000/ T (= & — M F :
169,472,000/ 7t) B R4 & B @m &
BRa [ EMAZ] - RIELRETE
- ASEEBEESKREAABERBE
BRA (TS EER) BEEZEMEZA
Uz el %8 o

i RZE—REFE+_-_A=1+—
B EBRERENMBAR (ERE®E])
NREZEMERZRECEERRER
13,125,000 L 2 & THIEFEZE
ERMIEZFTEREEEZ BB INIEETT
FoREEBEBERE (5F) K=
T-NEEF 2 WERZE  WERSEE
R TE BARR RS TR - RIAZ R
HMGER B BB MABET AR
ZEME (R-_Z—RF+-_A=+—
H 4 BRE{E 513,125,000/ 78) Z I
BERARRSE (RE) A -

RZE—HFE+ZA=+—H  Xx&E
B /% {8 4966,738,000/8 7T (= Z — Y
& 116,419,000 70) ZFHEFEZE
SER I T IRE RN R B P R T
Bz R (FsE29()(ii) °



Land in Mainland China held under

medium term leases, at cost:
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17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

AR HAFR 4970 o B K FE

FAZIH AR

31 December 2015

—E-AFt-A=+-A

17. BEPYE

2015
—E2-HF

HK$’000
FTHET

2014
T
HK$’000
THET

At beginning of year F£1) 25,521,732 21,076,061
Additions NE 1,088,470 1,181,745
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—REKHEAFR = (150,545)
Transfer from other long term assets EREHMRAEE = 115,877
Acquisition of a subsidiary U i — IR B A A = 8,377,658
Transfer to completed properties EREFEFEZ
held for sale BEmR (1,695,796) (4,882,946)
Transfer from investment properties R A EYE
(note 18) (FizE18) 21,533 185,948
Transfer to prepaid land lease payments ERERMN T HHEE
(note 14) FE (KHisE14) (319) (a77)
Exchange realignment PE 5 58 2 (980,809) (381,889)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 23,954,811 25,521,732
Development expenditure, at cost: FB WL R
At beginning of year F47) 5,561,109 7,280,810
Additions NE 4,920,995 7,105,248
Disposal of a subsidiary = — KB AT - (1,341)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeiE — M E A F) - 4,556
Transfer to completed properties HERSEEGFEZ
held for sale BEERME (3,431,005) (8,689,078)
Transfer to property, plant and HEBEBYE  BEK
equipment (note 13) A (Mi3E13) - (9,934)
Exchange realignment [ H A% (288,220) (129,152)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 6,762,879 5,561,109
Provision for impairment B (406,165) (287,893)
30,311,525 30,794,948
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17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 17. BEHYE (B)

(CONTINUED)
2015 2014
=®-hH% AR B
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET THT
Properties under development expected TEHA AT Yz (el
to be recovered: BRPME
Within one year —F R 5,001,472 7,535,889
After more than one year HBE—FE% 25,310,053 23,259,059
30,311,525 30,794,948
During the year, impairment provision of HK$118,272,000 (2014: FN - A TRPREKRREZEZERFRY

HK$287,893,000) for certain properties under development
located in Mainland China was recognised in “Other expenses”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In making the
impairment assessment, the Group’s management has determined
the recoverable amount of these properties on the basis of their
fair value less costs to sell on a market value basis.

Properties under development included interest expense of
HK$676,238,000 (2014: HK$1,106,821,000) for the year ended
31 December 2015 that was incurred and capitalised.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s properties under
development with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$615,389,000 (2014: HK$1,962,590,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 29(a)(iii)).

As at 31 December 2015, the application for certificates of land use
rights in Mainland China for land held under medium term leases
with a net carrying amount of approximately HK$6,132,337,000
(2014: HK$6,513,970,000) was still in progress.

TR (E % $5118,272,000% 7T (=
= — Y4 : 287,893,000/ 7T) B R4
SRR RERR [HEMFAX] - BE
BE G ASREERECIEERS
BEREERAN (RMSEME) EEHZ
2z PI Bl &% o

s
s
AN

JL
&

BRAVEREEE_Z—AFT=A
=+t HLEFEEELERBEALZ
F 2 B 676,238,000/ 7T (= Z — Y
4 :1,106,821,000/87T) °

RZZE—AF+=-A=+—8  ~5H
2 B8R T ¥ {2 #9615,389,000/8 7T (= &
— PO 4F : 1,962,590,0007 7T) Z % E
RYEBREAEBRRRITER 2K
# (HIEE29(a)(iii)) °

R-ZE—RAF+-A=+—H E@&
% 8 #96,132,337,000/8 7T (= & — Y
% :6,513,970,0007% Jt) 2 LA R #R AR
R BIAREERG 2 L EREZAE
HIE#EITH o
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWH

Carrying amount at

RZE—RF—A—H2Z

Completed
investment
properties
at fair value
A RETIER
ZEEK
REWHE
HK$’000
THET

Investment
properties
under
construction
at fair value
®A RETIER
ZERSF
HK$’000
FHET

HK$’000

FTHET

1 January 2015 R E 13,163,533 6,855,061 20,018,594
Additions NE - 615,598 615,598
Transfer to construction in ST

process (note 13) T72 (KisE13) = (800,637) (800,637)
Transfer from completed ERERERE ZBEER

properties held for sale (note 16) Wz (K5E16) 589,317 - 589,317
Recognition of change in fair BWRIFERFE

value of completed properties 2 ESER Y

held for sale upon transfer to N B TR

investment properties (note 16) 2EREME (KMizE16) 432,102 = 432,102
Transfer to properties under RS IEER

development (note 17) Mz (BEE17) - (21,533) (21,533)
Increase in fair value of HEME

investment properties RN EIE N 925,294 156,882 1,082,176
Disposal HE (61,860) - (61,860)
Exchange realignment B 5 3 B (562,386) (383,198) (945,584)
Carrying amount at RZZE—RF+_=A8

31 December 2015 =t+—HZEAEE 14,486,000 6,422,173 20,908,173
Unrealised gains for the year FFAEZIZFNR

included in profit or loss R U = 1,331,094 156,882 1,487,976
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. REM= (&)

Carrying amount at

R_E—NmNFE—A—HZ

Completed
investment
properties

at fair value
N I=E I
RESARY,
REY
HK$’'000
THET

Investment
properties
under
construction
at fair value
A RETER
Z I
REYE
HK$’000
THET

Gk
HK$'000
i (T

1 January 2014 AREE 8,870,561 6,428,988 15,299,549
Additions RNE - 502,624 502,624
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE —FE B 2 7] 2,917,954 = 2,917,954
Transfer from completed ER B FERE 2B &K

properties held for sale (note 16) YE (BfsF16) 782,652 - 782,652
Recognition of change in fair ERFHERE

value of completed properties pA=E-35% 7/ ES

held for sale upon transfer to NI

investment properties (note 16) =&Y (M15E16) 846,820 - 846,820
Transfer to properties under EREEER

development (note 17) W (K5E17) (185,948) - (185,948)
Transfer to completed HESREGEZ

properties held for sale EER % (446,051) - (446,051)
Increase in fair value of HEME

investment properties R EIE N 739,508 24,577 764,085
Disposal HeE (166,483) - (166,483)
Exchange realignment 0B i R (195,480) (101,128) (296,608)
Carrying amount at RZZE—NHFE+=A

31 December 2014 =+—HZEEE 13,163,533 6,855,061 20,018,594
Unrealised gains for the year SFABRZEA

included in profit or loss REE WS 675,824 24,577 700,401

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China

and are held under medium term leases.

AEBEZREMELRPEALE - IR
REEAEE -



18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

On 5 January 2011, Nongke, a subsidiary acquired by the Group
on 22 August 2014, entered into an agreement with a real estate
developer (the “Counterparty”), an independent third party.
Pursuant to the agreement, Nongke agreed to exchange certain
of its investment properties, which are located at Longxi Garden
(BE)ZTEME), Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC, for new properties
with total gross floor areas of 8,469.85 square metres to be
built by the Counterparty. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying
amount of the investment properties was HK$368,000,000. The
new properties will be built by the Counterparty at the current
location of Longxi Garden upon demolishment of the existing
properties owned by Nongke. On 3 September 2012, Nongke
entered into a supplemental agreement with the Counterparty.
Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, Nongke agreed to
dispose of certain of its buildings under property, plant and
equipment, which are also located at Longxi Garden to the
Counterparty for a cash consideration of RMB250,457,000. As
at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of these buildings
was HK$14,652,000 (note 13). The demolishment of these
buildings will be commenced within 30 days after full payment
of the amount of RMB250,457,000 by the Counterparty. On 27
September 2012, an advance payment of RMB30,000,000 was
received by Nongke. At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the remaining balance of RMB220,457,000 is not
paid by the Counterparty, and the timetable for the demolishment
of these properties is not determined yet.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment
properties of the Group with a net carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,226,953,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK$1,758,953,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant
certificates.

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s investment property with a
net carrying amount of approximately HK$1,884,717,000 (2014:
HK$5,758,608,000) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to
the Group (note 29(a)(iv)).

The Group’s investment properties consist of several commercial
and industrial properties in Mainland China. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of two classes of asset, i.e., commercial and industrial, based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2015
based on the valuation performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professionally qualified property valuers, at
approximately HK$20,908,173,000.
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18. BEWE ()

R-_T——F—AFHA  BR(K&EH
R-E—mMENA-+-—BkEZ —
R B AR BEEE =7 i f %
(87 ]) Gl L o RIBZ B -
EREE B BRYITEHEER
ERNE TREMESERHEFTELN
44 3 A H 75 58,469.85F 7 K FT )
¥ -R_ZE—HAF+-_A=+—H &
& ) % 2 BR M B 5368,000,00078 7T °
MYUEBRRSEFREBERRIAERY
XBREXTRENMNERY - K=
T—_—FNA=H  BEREYHHFIIL
WAz - BEFEAGE ENRAE
MEFEEME  BERZEETHE
FEF (MuRzEEER)  BHeR
A AR¥250,457,0007C ° R —T —
AFE+_A=+—"8 ZEWEZE
T (& A&14,652,0007% 7T (M} 5E13) ° #F
BZEREFRREF2BINARKE
250,457,0007T 2 5K IBE&308 AR LA °
R-E——FAA-++H ERKE
FEfT 3 A R #30,000,0007T ° Re&E 8T
BHRREFHBE - HHEARZTHRREA
R #220,457,0007T * RIFBZEWE
2RISR BARERE ©

R-E—RE+-A=1+—HALEKE
% (B # /1,226,953,000 7T (= F
— PU £ : 1,758,953,000/ 7T) Z & T
KEMERAEFEEASBIEERE
P NEBNENIZEAEZZF

N
=

R—ZT—hE+—_A=+—H &*&
[ £ # BR [ )% (E #91,884,717,0005 7T
(Z=— P4 : 5,758,608,000% 7T)
BEMEEBAEBERITERZE
1% (HFE29(a)(v)) °

REBZIREMEBRFEZBLMNAFBEAR
FEvEERIFETF - ARRIESER
EWMEZHED FERRKREREDE
ETAMEEE IBERTE K&
B2 EMER_ZT—RHAFEF+=-_A=+
—RRBI S ER Y ERD
EEENERRARARZHEEERAB
4920,908,173,000/ 7T °
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 18. WEWE ()
The Group’s investment properties under construction are AREBZERERKEYE TR AT
measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined 2 BEEAAEEAISMEESEEE
reliably or construction is completed. K ALE -
Fair value hierarchy RAREERERE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TRINRAEBREMEZ R EHE
of the Group’s investment properties: EMPERE

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2015 using
RAUTEE
NEERS AR e TH
ETZARENE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WERBME EATBRE BEATAUERR

ZHRE BAE BAE
ey (=) (B=H) e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TERT FTEx
Recurring fair value REMNRE
measurement for: &
Commercial properties BEEF - - 16,768,302 16,768,302
Industrial properties TEEF - - 4,139,871 4,139,871

20,908,173 20,908,173

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2014 using
G ¢
PR SR S R o
ETZARERE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RiERBTS ERAEER BATAER

ZE EPNE] BWAE
(B—E) (F=) (F=m) mE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TET THET THET THAT

Recurring fair value BEMANE
measurement for: HE

Commercial properties BERTF - - 16,327,052 16,327,052
Industrial properties T#EF - - 3,691,542 3,691,542

20,018,594 20,018,594




18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2014: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation

technique
fRER %

As at 31 December 2015

R-Z—A%+_-HA=+—H

Commercial properties Comparison method
BEET AV

Industrial properties Comparison method
IXEF LEBUE

As at 31 December 2014

R-Z—NE+-HA=+—H

Commercial properties Comparison method
BEET AV

Industrial properties Comparison method
IXEF LEBUE

The fair values of investment properties are determined using
the comparison method by making references to comparable
sale evidence as available in the relevant market. Comparable
properties of similar size, character and location are analysed
and selected for each investment property in order to arrive at a
fair comparison of their fair values. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market unit sale rate.

Significant
unobservable inputs
EARABEHBAE

Market unit sale rate (RMB/sg.m.)
SEMEE (AR¥ET /FHK)

Market unit sale rate (RMB/sg.m.)
mizENER (ARET /FiK)

Market unit sale rate (RMB/sqg.m.)
SEMEE (AR¥ET /FHK)

Market unit sale rate (RMB/sg.m.)
MmiaENER (ARET,/FiK)
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18. REME (&)

RAFEARN F—EBEEFE_EARER
EVEERAVTESEESREAE =B
(ZZ e : #|) -

AT REENMEHEMRZGBETER
TEHABBEIHE

Range or
weighted average
&[5 3% hn AP 19 B

8,600 - 67,400 (26,800)

5,800 - 35,300 (15,500)

8,200 - 43,000 (20,400)

5,400 - 34,000 (13,900)

&ﬁ%%ZQﬁﬁ@ SRR 5 AT ¢
HBRZHEERBREALBETUE
E o REBRFZARELRE  BAZ
BREMEIMPEREAN)  WERME
BUZALLEYE - RAEFERTS
BN EEZEMRBIE -
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. ¥ NEIRE

2015 2014
—E-EHF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Share of net assets JEIEBEFE 546,980 572,257
Goodwill on acquisition IR B EE A 2 P 6,116 6,116
Loans to joint ventures HBTEERNTZER 12,038 1,325,766
565,134 1,904,139

The loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and are BTEERRIZERAEER 28K

repayable after twelve months from the end of the reporting ARImEHRES T @A RER -

period.

The Group’s other receivables due from the joint ventures are

disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s material joint venture are as follows:

Nominal value of
registered capital
“MEAREE

and business
ERMREELE

Shenzhen Langtong Property RMB100,000,000  PRC/Mainland China
Development Company Limited AR100,000000  #E /HEAE
(‘Langtong’)

TR ENEREARAT
(T8l

Taizhou Shum Yip Investment RMB100,000,000  PRC/Mainland China
Development Limited AREE100,0000007 B/ FEARE

(‘Taizhou Shum Yip’)
FMTREREZRERAT)
(TZMEZ])

The above investments are held through the wholly-owned

subsidiaries of the Company.

Langtong, which is considered a material joint venture of the
Group, is engaged in property development and investment and

is accounted for using the equity method.

Place of registration Ownership

interest

Fre R

50

51

REEEIA SR A 2 H b FE W FIE RN
B s R sE26H & o

AEBZTEQERTFBNT

Percentage of

iz BAL
Voting Profit  Principal
power sharing  activities
RERE BHNAE  FEEE
50 50  Property development
and property
investment
NERBERDERE
50 51 Provision of land
development
service
RAE TR ERS

BREEBEBARAZ2EME R RS
ﬁ o

HRRARARBZERRLENR]
EMERBERIRE  WAREAER
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19. EEQATRE (F)
TR A G A BURERIEH AR
ZHBZHBEANEE  UEHERR
ER I HER ZREE

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Langtong adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial
statements:

2015 2014
—E-IF ST
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET ¥ 7T
Current assets TRENEE 4,098,664 3,164,189
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE  TEEFE 55,460 1,710
Goodwill on acquisition of the joint venture KBS Z A RIELZ 2 6,116 6,116
Current liabilities ViEN=NE (3,417,936) (2,738,447)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE = (49,964)
Net assets BEFE 742,304 383,604
Net assets, excluding goodwiill BERE  TEEPE 736,188 377,488
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HIEEAEEREG 2 A
in the joint venture: i
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEEFTE#EZ A 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the REEREGERRIEGZ
joint venture, excluding goodwil BEZE  TBERE 368,094 188,744
Loan to a joint venture LT —HEERRER = 1,314,053
Goodwill on acquisition IR P EE A 2 Py 6,116 6,116
Carrying amount of the investment ®EZ RHEE 374,210 1,508,913
Revenue Wz 1,468,680 -
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmF(EE) 388,739 (12,598)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEKE
for the year (E518) 1258 388,739 (12,598)

Taizhou Shum Yip, which is considered a material joint venture of
the Group, is engaged in provision of land development service

and is accounted for using the equity method.

FMREREAFEB I EBAEA
A HFRGCL PR - LA
EAE -
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

. BERQTRRE (B)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Taizhou Shum Yip adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

financial statements:

TREEREMNEABRRERFLFHE
ZHEMREZMBERNBE  LEHK
FEEMBHRRT 2 REE

2015 2014
—®-HEF —F-mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Current assets TRENEE 2,033,045 1,960,860
Non-current assets IEMENEE 2,902,595 4,029,195
Current liabilities mBAE (1,952,163) (4,498,507)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (2,756,355) (874,370)
Net assets BEFE 227,122 622,178
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HIREREBREZE AR
in the joint venture: THERS
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEFTAEEZ D) 51% 51%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint REBREENRIENLEZ
venture, excluding goodwill BEFE  TREFE 115,832 317,311
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEEZHE - -
Carrying amount of the investment ®EZRHEE 115,832 317,311
Revenue g 1,742,230 -
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (E18),/ &5 (367,212) 103,496
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRNE2@E (BE),/
for the year Wizs 1B %E (367,212) 103,496

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material:

Share of the joint ventures’ profit
for the year

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s

investments in the joint ventures

DERERRZ
F R A
AEBSLERAREZ
AREE AR

TRIRAEEERNBTEENEER

RIZMHBERBR

2015
—E-IF

HK$’000
FHET

75,092

2014
TN F
HK$’000
FH& T

77,915
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20. BEQTRE

2015 2014

—E—FE s EE I

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE&x FHT

Share of net assets EIEEEFE 6,953,737 6,774,999
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEA e 91,577 91,5677
Loans to associates BTEBERRIZER 80,889 84,404
Provision for impairment B A (816,000) (816,000)
6,310,203 6,134,980

The loans to associates of HK$80,889,000 (2014: HK$84,404,000)
are interest-free, unsecured and are repayable after twelve months
from the end of the reporting period.

The loans from associates included in the Group’s other payables
and accruals are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

The provision for impairment is related to the Company’s
investment in Coastal Greenland Limited (“Coastal Greenland”).

i T B & A A 2 & 580,889,000/% 7T
— = — U4 : 84,404,000/ 7C) B R
B\ RARRE BARR =@
R#&ER -

FFAREEEMENKARETERZ
it N BV BRI B T 3R R M FES 1 I

HERBEEARRNGEFERERR
AR ([HEFRERE]) 2RERH -
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

Place of incorporation
Business Iregistration
structure and business

BRTEE/
E7 20 R/ ZMRE£HY FRUE

Road King Infrastructure Ltd. Corporate Bermuda/ HK$73,994,000
(‘Road King") NG Mainland China 73,994,000/ T

BYERERAR ([BY)) BRE /REAE

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park Corporate PRC/Mainland China US$62,000,000
(Group) Co., Ltd. (‘Tianan’) 2R HE / REARE 62,000,000 7%

AREEN (RE) BRAA
(IX%))

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital

20. BERRRE (8)

TEMERNAFBELT :

Percentage of ownership

interest attributable
to the Group
AEEEG

Principal activities

FREREADL TEXEK

2015 2014

—E-F&F —E-[QF

27.34 27.73  Development, operation
and management of
toll roads and property
development and
investment

KERREREER
ERURMERE RRE

37.53 37.53  Property investment and
development
NERERFE

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates all comprise equity
shares held by the Company, except for Road King and Tianan,
the shareholdings of which are held through a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

The financial years of the above associates are coterminous
with that of the Group, except for Coastal Greenland which has
a financial year ending 31 March. The consolidated financial
statements are adjusted for the material transactions between
Coastal Greenland and group companies between 1 January and
31 March. Coastal Greenland uses 31 March as its financial year
end date to conform with that of its holding company.

Road King, which is considered a material associate of the Group,
is engaged in the development, operation and management
of toll roads and property development and investment, and is
accounted for using the equity method by the Group.

AREERBERABNRESEARAFR
BEBRARD - BRI R REI - %F
RAZBAETEBARR 22BN B A
BIFA -

bl NG A SN S Ty
BEEER - EnBReRE M
BEEFER/=R=1T—8 - &Ka8%
BERBABFEREREERFAN—A
—BE=RA=+—HHBMZERR S
HAE - HERERERA=A=1—
EREVRFESHER  REEERA
BIFTERAE B -

BB R/AEEZERBERA] - {
FRBEBNR ER  LERERNALY
ERBRKRE  YHARBEUEREA
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20. BERRRE (8)

TREEREMN S BRRERFLFHE
ZHEDZMBERNBE  LEHRFE
ERAUBRERT ZREE

financial statements:

2015 2014
—E—FE s EE I
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TH T
Current assets TRENEE 31,068,403 35,306,391
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE  TOERE 8,987,904 7,177,398
Goodwill on acquisition WEELE 7 BE 91,577 91,5677
Current liabilities mENaE (18,087,764) (18,028,637)
Non-current liabilities EmBARE (7,992,676) (10,402,600)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAG R R (820,470) (844,661)
Net assets BEFE 13,246,974 13,299,468
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFE  TRERE 13,155,397 13,207,891
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HERE RSB E A A
in the associate: TRES
Proportion of the Group’s ownership RNEEFTA#EZ L 27.34% 27.73%
Group’s share of net assets of the REBREE R BEIEZ
associate, excluding goodwiill BEFE THEHE 3,596,686 3,662,354
Goodwill on acquisition WEEA ZBE 91,577 91,577
Carrying amount of the investment & & ZRMEE 3,688,263 3,753,931
Revenue Wz 12,509,646 12,730,104
Profit for the year F R A 828,310 1,029,383
Other comprehensive loss H b 2 548 (547,096) (54,217)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWEFREEE 281,214 975,166
Dividend received B Uz B 117,175 107,073

Tianan, which is considered a material associate of the Group,
is engaged in the property investment and development, and is
accounted for using the equity method by the Group.

RRWRBAEE BEREAF -
EMERARME L AREES
ENIE
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Tianan adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated

20. HEQTRRE (F)
TREARETE A BRERELBE
ZREZMEEREE - WEHEAR
ERAMBRER ZEEE

financial statements:

2015 2014
—®-H% —F-—mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&xT BT
Current assets TRENEE 13,020,783 13,451,916
Non-current assets EmBIEE 3,566,396 2,876,784
Current liabilities B A E (7,176,635) (6,743,359)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (4,160,921) (4,980,789)
Non-controlling interests IR A 2 1,096,929 879,450
Net assets BEFE 6,346,552 5,484,002
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest E NS
in the associate: REZHER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEFTARE 2D 37.53% 37.53%
Group’s share of net assets of the REBE R E QAR B2
associate, excluding goodwiill BEZE  TRERE 2,381,861 2,058,146
Loan to the associate BTFEBERRIZER 65,493 68,205
Goodwill on acquisition e B e = 7 e - _
Carrying amount of the investment & ZREE 2,447,354 2,126,351
Revenue g 2,727,991 2,950,453
Profit for the year F N 1,172,049 1,048,484
Total comprehensive income for the year FREHE W =B 1,172,049 1,048,484

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group’s other associates that are not individually material:

TS SR AN R [ {1 R A EL (B
LERAAFPBER

Share of the associates’ loss for the year

Share of the associates’ total
comprehensive loss

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s

investments in the associates

FE( Bt & A R 2 F N8

FE(L B E AR 2 2
ERER

REERBLERRREZ
ARE{EAERE

2015 2014
=P ST —F-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THT
(63,306) (18,554)
(38,107) (75,791)
174,586 254,698
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21. JEHHERSE

2015 2014
=f—TE —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FHT
At fair value: BARE
Listed equity investments EREREETZ
in Mainland China RS E 65,583 75,211
Club memberships B etE - 2,799
65,583 78,010
At cost: LR
Unlisted equity investments FEETRRERE 58,101 62,461
123,684 140,471

During the year, the net loss in respect of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$4,696,000 (2014: net gain of HK$25,436,000).

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.

As at 31 December 2015, unlisted equity investments with a
carrying amount of HK$58,101,000 (2014: HK$62,461,000) were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, other long term assets mainly represented
prepayments of HK$1,778,889,000 (2014: HK$1,780,879,000)
related to the acquisition of land use rights.

FRANEEBREMEE RSP ER
Z Al E R E 2 P E183%4,696,000
BT (ZZ— U4 : 4675)25,436,00078
JT) °

ETEREREZ RABTRENSRE
BEE e

RZB—HE+=A=+—H BE
1B 458,101,000 & (= T — U 4F :
62,461,000/ 7T) B IE M ARIEIR B 1%
AR ESER - REASEARER
STREEEA  ESRAEQARBETEE
A SEHET 2 o ANEER A EE S E
% °
22. HhRHEE
RZE—RAF+-A=+—H"  Hitk
HEEF BEpUE T thEAEm
9 78 £ 3%1,778,889,000/8 T (= & —
PU4F : 1,780,879,000/87T) °
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23. INVENTORIES

23. &

2015 2014
= T —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&xT BT
Raw materials R 33,298 41,192
Work in progress EESR 35,659 48,390
Finished goods AKX 29,846 46,866
98,803 136,448

24. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 24. £Y)EE

The Group’s total amounts of the biological assets are as follows:

BREEAYEELRTENT

2015 2014

=B—AHT 5 Bl

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Breeding biological assets EEEEMEE 7,075 7,200
Trading biological assets HFEMEYEE 9,576 10,188
16,651 17,388

The Group’s biological assets comprise mainly pigeons and
cloned orchid flowers.

The Group’s biological assets were revalued by management
at the end of each reporting period on a fair value basis. The
fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs of the biological
assets was determined using the market approach, which was
determined based on the most recent market transaction prices.

AEBZENEETZRESFRRE

BITE

AEENENEERETEEENSRES
REAAEEEEM - EMEENAAR
BERA T E R ATIAT IS AEE
AR MM SR B EREE
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24. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 24. £YEE (18)

A reconciliation of the carrying values of the biological assets is EYEEZREESRAT
as follows:
Breeding biological assets EEMEYEE
2015 2014
= T —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 7,200 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary e — B AR = 7,064
Purchases fBE 641 3,371
Disposals e (443) (3,178)
Exchange realignment [ (323) (57)
7,075 7,200
Trading biological assets HEMEEE
2015 2014
—E-—fHfF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 10,188 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary I — M B AR - 11,394
Purchases = 25,347 22,131
Sales SHE (26,777) (23,827)
Gain arising from changes in fair value AREESHEELZ
less costs to sell 15550 885 & Bk AN 1,274 713
Exchange realignment T (456) (223)
9,576 10,188
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

25. EUWERFR

2015 2014

—2-HF SEAE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FE T

Trade receivables JE U BR FR 562,412 749,058
Impairment A (34,258) (34,294)
528,154 714,764

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit
terms to its customers for the sale of properties. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and to minimise credit risk. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contract date and net of provision,
is as follows:

EERBAT  AKBIEREETFH
VERLERKEIAEED - AEBR

BEORWE 2 e YR R T BAR )
MIEEERR o #ER Ll RERAEE
ZERBERSRZEITRZREER
BAKBYBBESET ZEERR - K
£5 B30 4% 5 L R WOR R A B B (R K
A EMEETR - BUEARKATE

BFRIE -

RIS HRIAS 4 B Bt E I RS
Z MR Z R DATIAT

Within one year —FR
One to two years —FERFA

2015 2014
—B-EHf —E—mE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
513,645 699,534
14,509 15,230

528,154 714,764
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 25. EWERX (&)
The movements in the provision for impairment of trade FEUBR R Z R E R N T -
receivables are as follows:

2015 2014

T TS —T-mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT Fi&T

At 1 January Rn—R—H 34,294 30,100
Impairment losses recognised BRI R AEEE 844 32

Acquisition from a subsidiary Sl = 4,781
Amount written off as uncollectible BEs AT AR E 2 3B (116) -
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables LU BR 575 E # 2] (157) (86)
Exchange realignment [ 5, 5 B (607) (533)
34,258 34,294
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables FT A it JE W BRRRORU (B B 6 /5 18 3l 20K
is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of 1B 2 JiE W BR 3R 4 #5.34,258,00078 7T (=
HK$34,258,000 (2014: HK$34,294,000) with a carrying amount T — U4 : 34,294,000/8 7T) * 1M % E
before provision of HK$34,258,000 (2014: HK$34,294,000). WS B SRR 488 45 AT 2 R TEI (B /334,258,000

BT (ZZF—U4F : 34,294,000/ 7T) ©

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers 18 51 58 18122 A LAz Bl 35k T AL T i B 75 )
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in payments SRR EFEH - RRZEFIE
and the full amount is not expected to be recovered. A EE o
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually 18 B 2k 3£ R 7R A 3 4 (2 B B 2 FE M &
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: SERZEERAITAT
2015 2014
=B—HF —ZE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Neither past due nor impaired AR B IR AR R (B 513,645 705,805
Less than one year past due BHR DR —F 14,509 8,959

528,154 714,764




JSHNA 8N NsNg 99 9 N9 A NN AN AN
S SRereRRrTREees

Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERER AR
Annual Report 2015 %

Notes to Financial Statements

B % sk
31 December 2015
—E-BF+-A=+—H

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 25. BWERRK (/&)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

26.

REHATARRAE < FE W IR Y 2 % (&
TEZRZEFPAR  MKEOHES
RIERFLEE -

EEHEARREZ EBUKIARR S IFH
BeEPER ZSEPRAEEES
RIFBHERE - REBEBELR  BRZ
SHEBCEREERUBEAEHAEHR
MR R E2HEE  BARFEER
REFRZEEHRELRERE -

FANFIE ~ 7] R E AU

RECEIVABLES b1 |
2015 2014
—E—HF ZE—NF
HK’$000 HK’$000
FET THE T
Prepayments SEUN B 177,736 218,355
Deposits and other receivables =T N EH M E W IE 554,083 678,073
Loans to joint ventures BTEERFZER (i) 949,853 2,741,501
Due from associates JE B 5 A A (ii) = 1,641
Due from fellow subsidiaries A G e NG (iii) 13,091 17,352

Due from non-controlling FEUSEE RS (iv)

shareholders R R 1,263 3,821
1,696,026 3,660,743

() There are loans to a joint venture amounting to
HK$598,518,000 which are unsecured, have no fixed terms
of repayment and bear interest at a rate of 12% per annum.
The remaining balance of HK$351,335,000 is unsecured,
has no fixed terms of repayment and is interest-free.

(i) The balance as at 31 December 2014 is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

) 68 FTHEERAZERA
598,518,000 T 5 K IH A&
Wi EETERAR - RIES
F12[FE 5 2 © #R¥E351,335,000/8
TLAEERF  EETERMRA
®E o

i) =ZF-OmOF+=—A=+—B2Z#&
BRAREEE - 22 HEETEK
HARR -
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. IRIE A€ R HAEWRR

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 15 (&)

(i) The balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed iy HEHAERTE - 2EHAEETE
terms of repayment. FREARR o

(iv) Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of certain (iv) BEWAEESTHERRZIEE
subsidiaries of the Group are unsecured, interest-free and BRRFEREER 28 HE
have no fixed terms of repayment. [ 7E B R EAR o

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The LB ERSEAINARRIE © 5t A _Liter

financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables B eRMEERTNETRAR ZER

for which there was no recent history of default. KIEBE -

27. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 27. ZBEHRAAEFTEZRE
PROFIT OR LOSS rE

2015 2014
=S T —T—mF

HK$’000 HK$’000
THET SRR

Listed equity investments, at market value &R E - BHmE 3,696 3,116

MR —B-—AFER—_FT-—NFE+_H

The above equity investments at 31 December 2015 and 2014 =
+T—BZREZREDDEARFER

were classified as held for trading.

Y (Il
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28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

28. RERBASEBEYRCERE

Eo
TA

2015 2014
=8 AT 5 Bl
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Cash and bank balances e RIRITAER 11,757,506 7,622,469
Time deposits TEHF K 2,061,269 2,034,914
13,818,775 9,657,383

Less: Pledged deposits for short B RESRITERZ
term bank loans EHIRER - (31,228)
Restricted cash* SZPR HIZE & (4,110,729) (1,250,679)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY 9,708,046 8,375,476

* As at 31 December 2015, an aggregate amount of RMB540,000,000
(2014: RMB275,560,000) deposited in the bank accounts of one
subsidiary (2014: two subsidiaries) of the Group was frozen by The
People’s Procuratorate of Jianli County of Hubei Province (note 39(ii)).

In addition, included in the Group’s restricted cash is an amount of
HK$2,386,000 deposited in an escrow account jointly operated by a
subsidiary and an independent third party as at 31 December 2015
(2014: HK$2,701,000).

The remaining balance of HK$3,464,015,000 (2014: HK$903,776,000)
in the Group’s restricted cash was limited to use in the development of
certain property projects. In accordance with relevant documents issued
by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place in designated
bank accounts certain amounts of presale proceeds from properties
as guarantee deposits for the construction of related properties. The
deposits can only be used for purchases of construction materials and
the payments of construction fees of the relevant property projects when
approval from the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is
obtained. Such guarantee deposits will only be released after completion
of the related pre-sold properties or issuance of the real estate ownership
certificates, whichever is the earlier.

R-ZZBE—FRE+=-_A=+—8 #it
HEMZARBRRE H 17 RER
SE-RHEAR (ZE—NF: K
M EARR) RITERFZHBEARE
540,000,0007T (ZZ— 4 : AR
275,560,0007T ) (FTzE39(i)) °

o R=ZFT—RAFE+=_A=+—
H AEEBEZXREREBE—%
FHRAE—HHBARKR—EBEL
E=HHREBZAERFAZR
182,386,000 7T (= T — I & :
2,701,000/ %) °

NEBXREEE &R
3,464,015,000/ 7T (= & — M 4 :
908,776,000/ 7T) EF A{EREE T
MHEIEE - REFBEES LHERE
BREMHEBRXHE  REBHET
YERZE D RAREERITERSFNR
ETHENEAEMEMGRE - ER
HRMERZEZENERER - Z1F
HETRESTBEREES T EREE
RHERARBERM RXNEBY
XEENEEER BHEREFRE
SRABESMER T REREME
HEUREREERE) BH TR
|1/§5\o



28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$12,813,860,000 (2014: HK$8,019,461,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.
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28. RERAESEBYRCERE

= (&)

REBEBHR AEEBUARKE (TA
REDHEz2R IR EEYH
12,813,860,000/% T (= & — I £ :
8,019,461,000/8 L) » ARKEIL A8
HAEBAHMER o R - BIEF B
b B HIMERDI R4S TE - B RATEEIRAR
E o RNEEEAER BB EETINEER
ZIRITIAREH AR ER o

FHRRTZHESREABRITERES
REFE R GREUF B 52 HIE HF X
ZEFAR—BRE=EATE  BRER
SEZAKRREFTEME - WRARBE
HATE HiT SRR R BRER 8. - SRITAERTY
FHREERETRER - EEBRIFZ
HR1T
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Effective/
contractual
interest

rate (%)
BB //
E0FZ (B)

Maturity
L

290. IR BITRAEMEE

HK$'000
Thxn

Effective/
contractual
interest

rate (%)
ap /

m/
a1H= (B)

Bank loans-secured BOEFN - HHER 4.75-5.225 2016 393,009 6.16-7.80
ZE-RE
Bank loans-unsecured RITE - A 4,35 - 5,896 2016 4761,824 | 5.841-840
HIBOR+2.15 - HIBOR +1.95 -
HIBOR+2.4, HIBOR+2.95,
LIBOR+2.40 LIBOR +2.95
4.35-5.896 ZE-RE 5.841—-8.40
BRRTEE BARTREE
84215 784195
- BBRIEE ol E
KE+24, 78+2.95,
RARTEE WHRTEE
5+2.40 8+2.95
Other borrowings-unsecured HEE - w0 5.88 2016 119,320 6.30 - 6.48
ZE-RE
Other horrowings-secured EfofeE - BEA - - - 6.60
5,274,153
Non-current E ik |
Bank loans-secured ROEFR - HHA 4.90-5.70  2017-2020 1,524,595 6.16-7.68
“E-tE-
“EIER
Bank loans-unsecured RTEHN - R 4.75-5.225  2017-2021 11,593,345 6.15 - 6.656
HIBOR +2.6 - HIBOR+2.2 -
HIBOR +3.75, HIBOR+3.75,
LIBOR +2.6 - LIBOR+2.4 -
LIBOR +3.75 LIBOR +3.75
475-5.225 Z—E-tF- 6.15—6.656
BERTEE —B--f% BARIRE
fE+26 8+ 22
- BRRTEE —BERIRAE
184 3.75, FE+3.75,
RARTEE WHRIAE
fi5+26 F8+24
-RABTEE ~ RABRTRE
8+ 375 H8+375
Other borrowings-unsecured EMfEE - &8 7.1400%  2017-2021 2,983,000
ZE-tE-
—E--F
16,100,940

21,375,093




29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
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29. FHERRTRAEMEER (/)

2015 2014
—E-—hHE —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Analysed into: DT

Bank loans repayable: JEEEEZIRITER
Within one year —FR 5,154,833 11,839,967
In the second year ME A 4,117,928 5,573,410
From third to fifth years =FERFNA 8,676,188 10,771,851
Over five years AFAE 323,824 996,247
18,272,773 29,181,475

Other borrowings repayable: JEER 2 EMER
Within one year —F R 119,320 217,343
From third to fifth years =FERFNRN 2,386,400 -
Over five years FFERE 596,600 —
3,102,320 217,343
21,375,093 29,398,818

Bank loans amounting to HK$1,917,604,000 (2014:
HK$4,359,851,000) were secured by:

(i)  certain of the Group’s land and buildings in Mainland
China with a net carrying amount of approximately

HK$728,180,000 (2014: HK$1,104,045,000) (note 13);

(i) certain of the Group’s completed properties held for
sale with a net carrying amount of approximately

HK$66,738,000 (2014: HK$16,419,000) (note 16);

(a) < % A&1,917,604,0008 L (=&
— P4 £ : 4,359,851,000/8 7T) Z
IRITERBIATEEEE

i A & B K @D FME LD
728,180,000 7t (=T — I
4 1 1,104,045,0007% 7T) 2
HETRFPRARESREZ i
RiEF (5E13)

i) A & B K ®EFHE LN
66,738,000/ 7t (= & — M
F 116,419,000/ L) Z &
TREFEZEERME
ESE



PRk
Shen:

zhen Investment Limited
FYNZERBRA R
Annual Report 2015 %

X

rrrrr

Notes to Financial Statements
BF 7 3R 3R} MY &

31 December 2015

—E—AF+_-_A=+—H

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(@)

(©

(d)

(continued)

(iii)  certain of the Group’s properties under development with
a net carrying amount of approximately HK$615,389,000
(2014: HK$1,962,590,000) (note 17); and

(iv) certain of the Group’s investment property with a net
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,884,717,000
(2014: HK$5,758,608,000) (note 18).

In addition, Shum Yip Group, the ultimate holding company,
has guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans of
HK$4,534,160,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK$3,747,300,000) (note 40(b)).

Except for the bank loans equivalent to approximately
HK$5,342,228,000 (2014: HK$6,805,279,000) and
HK$5,114,000,000 (2014: HK$5,637,400,000), which are
denominated respectively in United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars, all borrowings are in RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate
to their fair values, which have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows at the prevailing
interest rates.

A subsidiary in Mainland China has entered into a fund
arrangement with a financial institution (the “Trustee”),
pursuant to which the Trustee has raised trust fund amounting
to RMB2,500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,983,000,000) and
provided the fund to the subsidiary for financing a property
development project of the subsidiary. The fund bears a fixed
interest rate at 7.14% per annum, has an expiry term of six
years and is guaranteed by Shum Yip Group.

29.

HERAREMESE ()

(a)

(&)

(i) 2 &£ B &K @ F B 4
615,389,000/5 7L (=% — 1
£ :1,962,590,0007% 7T) Z
ETHERYE (HE17)
&

ivv A &8 B R EFE LD
1,884,717,000% 7T (=& —
g 4 : 5,758,608,0007% T )
ZETHREMZE (MEE18) »

BEAN R IEBRARFRESEER
ZE-RF+ZA=+t—H B
PN £ [B] & 584,534,160,0007% 7T
(= Z — 4 % : 3,747,300,0007%
TT) ZE TRITE ML ER (K
F40(b)) °

B 18 & 2 %95,342,228,0007% JT
(= Z — ¥ % : 6,805,279,000/%
7T) }5,114,000,000/ 7T (= &
— [0 £ : 5,637,400,000 JT) 2
IRITERD RIAET KA TTEE
Gh - FREEBEHUARKEHE -

AEBEZEEZREEEEAR
BEEE - DIRBRTHESEER
KR REETUHRAESE -

R A — BB A R E—
CREE (XA BTESLR
BBl STAEESEETE
% A R #2 500,000,000 (8 &
#2,983,000,0007% Jr.) K& 5t #
MEARZ —EWEZERER M
EEcANBRARIREES - %
EESREEFFET 4% 5
[EmE A NFEL RREEEIERE
R o
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30. TRADE PAYABLES 30. EEFERRX
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RIS EARIZ R A BT E 2 FET R
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZERER DI ¢
2015 2014
T TS —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 518,661 3,786,075
One to two years —FEWFEN 315,539 481,171
Two to three years MEZ=FA 140,049 8,183
Over three years =FAE 38,877 38,969
1,013,126 4,314,398
The total amounts of the trade payables are non-interest-bearing. FEfTBRFRAARE AT AT B FKIE o
31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 3. HtERREREFTER
2015 2014
—E—FF —T-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Receipts in advance TEUFRIE 8,365,551 3,764,883
Other payables H fth B 38 4,204,095 4,633,217
Loans from associates /NI =N (i) 285,883 296,058
Loans from non-controlling FEERR AR R
shareholders B3 (ii) 142,300 144,674
Loans from fellow subsidiaries BRI BARER (iif) 126,481 379,817
Accruals FEETE A 796,580 757,294
13,920,890 9,975,943
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31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i

(i)

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and payable on
demand.

The loans from non-controlling shareholders of certain
subsidiaries of the Group are unsecured and have no
fixed terms of repayment. Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of HK$100,437,000 (2014: HK$110,246,000)
bear interest from one-year benchmark lending rate of the
PBOC to five-year benchmark lending rate of the PBOC,
while the remaining amount of HK$41,863,000 (2014:
HK$34,428,000) is interest-free.

The loans from fellow subsidiaries of HK$126,481,000
(2014: HK$113,599,000) are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. The remaining balance
of HK$266,218,000 at 31 December 2014 bears interest
from one-year to three-year benchmark lending rates of the
PBOC.

31. HitbENREREER (/8)

(i

(i

(iif)

BHRAEER RRYAREX

sem &
B e

KB ANE B IS HE A A AR
BRERZERREERBEEETE
BRH - EAIEERRKRRFIE
100,437,000/ 7T (=& — P4 4 :
110,246,000/ 7T) &/ Bl A K iR
T2 —FHEEBERFNEEFH
ARBITZ AFHELETRF X
FTE 0 MEREE41,863,000/8 7T (=

T —PU4E : 34,428,000/ 7T) AR
B o

[/ & M8 2~ 7] E 3k126,481,0007%
gL (ZZF — M4 : 113,599,000/%
L) BERH - 2B BEETER
He —_T—ME+_-_A=+—H
2 #E£4266,218,00058 JLIR H B A
RiFfTz—FE=ZFHEEGTRK
MEEFTE ©



32. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities:

Withholding

tax on
dividend

Rk
HKS$'000
Tixn

Revaluation
of
investment
properties

RE&
EE
HK$'000

TiEn

Revaluation
of assets

BEEf
HK$'000

T
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Revaluation
of
available-
for-sale
investments

&
REE(
HK$'000

TiEn

Fair value
adjustment
arising from
acquisition
f
subsidiaries
and
associates
e
HEARR
BEng
Bty
b
HK$'000
Thn

EEHBARAR

Accelerated
tax
depreciation
on
investment
properties

k&
L7
b
i ]
HK$'000
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REEREREEEIREEZZ N
T ¢

Timing
difference
on revenue
recognition
for lease of
properties

HE

VEDE

Bz
KEZE b
HK$'000  HK$'000
TR Tixn

At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%-A-H 317,045 2,889,692 72,501 15419 4,301,172 185,309 1,244 7,782,382
Deferred tax charged/(credited) REERNERRT

to the statement of profit or loss N/ GEABSR)

during the year LERERE 35,651 354,637 - - (448219) 18,004 - (39,927)
Deferred tax credited to equity REEHAERZ

during the year BEHR = = = (1,565) - - - (1,565)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HRBAR - = = - - - - _
Exchange realignment ERAZ (18,844)  (107,474) (922) (616)  (210,387)  (11,294) (56)  (349,593)
Gross deferred RZF-1%F

tax liabilties tZR=1+-HZ

at 31 December 2015 ERHEAFESS 333,852 3,136,855 71,579 13,238 3,642,566 192,019 1,188 7,391,297
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32. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32. EERIIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities: (continued) EERIBEE  (8)

Fair value
adjustment
arising from  Accelerated Timing
Revaluation  acauisition tax  difference
Revaluation of f  depreciation ~ on revenue
Withholding of available-  subsidiaries on recognition
taxon  investment  Revaluation for-sale and  investment  for lease of
dvidend  properties  of assets investments  associates  properties  properties
Rl
WBRER HE
RE L3 b
BiE - MxEl  AEER A , KRz
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
B FEnL TARL TEn TEn TEn
At 1 January 2014 RZE-0E-A-H 288473 1,888,162 12,789 5769 2,761,519 150,377 - 5,107,089
Deferred tax charged/(credited) TERRERRT
to the statement of profit or loss s/ (GHAB&ER)
during the year LERERR 34,592 402,726 - 3831 (118,461) 16,941 (23,704) 315,925
Deferred tax debited to equity TEENRER .
during the year BEHE = = 60,634 4,252 - - - 64,886
Acquisition of a subsidiary e -FHBAT - 653,055 - 1690 1,712,119 - 24971 2,391,835
Exchange realignment ERaE (6,020 (54,251) (922) (128)  (64,009) 17,991 (23)  (97,359)
Gross deferred RZZ-ME
tax liabilties tZA=+-R2

at 31 December 2014 ERHBaRES 317,045 2,889,692 72,501 15419 4301172 185,309 1,244 7,782,382
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32. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32 EERIE (&)
Deferred tax assets: BEERIBEE :

Losses
available for
offsetting
against
future
taxable  Tax effect Unrealised
profits of LAT profits
AAE
AR T
FERB BERZ
iyl i} B RETEA Hity CH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TER TET TET TER

At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—HF—HA—H 144,162 981,090 54,279 34,311 1,213,842
Deferred tax credited/ REE

(charged) to the REERPFAN

statement of profit or loss (BmEPHR)

during the year ZERHE 10,373 121,767 106,691 (1,469) 237,362
Exchange realignment B} E% (6,877)  (49,483) (6,264) (1,665) (64,289
Gross deferred RZZE—h%F

tax assets +ZRA=+—H2

at 31 December 2015 BIETREERR 147,658 1,053,374 154,706 31,177 1,386,915
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32. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32. EERIIE (&)
Deferred tax assets: (continued) EERIBEE « (&)

Losses
available for
offsetting
against
future

taxable Tax effect ~ Unrealised

profits of LAT profits
AR
AR T
JERT BERZ
A B Bz 2 STRF Hit |t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
THET TEL THET THT THET
At 1 January 2014 R=ZE—mF—A—H 228,143 564,768 71,485 28,329 892,725
Deferred tax credited/ REE
(charged) to the PEERFRFAN
statement of profit or loss (BREPHR)
during the year ZERERE (81,112) 161,841 (16,758) 790 64,761
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —RKEB AR - 267,985 - 3,179 271,164
Exchange realignment ER A (2,869) (13,504) (448) 2,013 (14,808)
Gross deferred RZZE—MmF
tax assets +ZA=+—-H2

at 31 December 2014 EIEFBEEES 144,162 981,090 54,279 34,311 1,213,842




32.

33.

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$322,367,000
(2014: HK$322,367,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of HK$1,606,467,000 (2014: HK$1,293,639,000). Accumulated
losses amounting to HK$77,241,000, HK$286,577,000,
HK$258,410,000, HK$631,947,000 and HK$352,292,000 as at 31
December 2015 will expire in 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020,
respectively, for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
years and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008. As at 31 December 2015, the Group recognised a
deferred tax liability of HK$333,852,000 (2014: HK$317,045,000)
in respect of the withholding tax on future dividend distribution by
these PRC subsidiaries.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

DEFERRED INCOME

As at 31 December 2015, deferred income of HK$32,088,000
(2014: HK$28,183,000) represented government grants received
from the relevant government bodies to support the research and
development activities of the Nongke Group. During the year, the
income of HK$10,175,000 (2014: Nil) has been credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss upon fulfilment of certain
conditions specified by the government bodies.
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EERE (48)

KREBRAEBZHR B BB A
322,367,000 T (= & — I F:
322,367,000 7o) A A {E &
RMEBELEBBEZAG ZRRE
ABE e AEBERFBEKNEZ
O B 18 A1,606,467,0008 JT
(== — P4 : 1,293,639,000/8 JT) °
R-_TE—FHFE+_A=+—HLEA
77,241,0007% Jt * 286,577,000 JT *
258,410,000/ 7T, * 631,947,0007% 7T &
352,292, ooo/%EZ%ﬁE‘ﬂa Hﬁy 7 Al

—E—RF —tF - Z—N
F.ZF— 7L¢)§i 77?¢ FER - 7]
FHR SR R ER T B - BRZEFEE
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Y RINERE R ERINEREETIRR
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HZEPRHWBRRZRRKEDIRZ
T8 HIH% 7 52 35 X F1 18 & {5333,852,000
7S L (Z T — I F : 317,045,000/%5
JT) °

AR RS FEHARER 2 % BB AT
AIFTSFLAR ©
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34. BRA&
iy

34. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares

2015
—E2-FfF

2014
— T —JUE
HK$'000
FHBIT

HK$’000
FAET

Issued and fully paid: BEETERAR
7,384,016,988 7,384,016,988/%
(2014: et Rl
6,656,055,289) 6,656,055,2890% )
ordinary shares AR 17,478,481 14,564,800

F79 - BASBIT ;

During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows:

Number of Issued Share Capital
shares share premium redemption
in issue capital account reserve Total
B&fT BRI R A&
RSB B& BER BE & &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THET THL
At 1 January 2014 R=F-NE¥-A—-H 5,381,055,305 269,053 10,964,217 2,036 11,235,306
Transition to no-par value R=Z-NF=R=H
regime on 3 March 2014 () BEZEAEHEQ) - 10,966,253 (10,964,217 (2,036) -
Share options exercised TERERE 1,810,400 5,524 - - 5,524
Issue of shares relating to BUE—RHEAR
acquisition of a subsidiary T2k 1,061,538,935 2,802,463 - - 2,802,463
Final 2013 dividend in the DRI 2
form of new shares ZE-ZERERE 211,650,649 521,507 - - 521,507
At 31 December 2014 and R-Z-WE+-A=1—H
1 January 2015 kZZ-15-R-H 6,656,055,289 14,564,800 - - 14,564,800
Share options exercised (o) TRRERED) 56,687,830 178,560 = = 178,560
2014 final dividend in the SR 2
form of new share (c) “E-MERBERE«) 1,273,869 4,846 - - 4,846
Issue of shares (d) BIRA() 670,000,000 2,730,275 = = 2,730,275
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF+=A=1-H 7,384,016,988 17,478,481 - - 17,478,481




34. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section 37 of
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, on 3 March 2014,
any amount standing to the credit of the share premium account has
become part of the Company’s share capital.

The subscription rights attaching to 56,687,830 share options were
exercised at the weighted average subscription price of HK$2.519
per share, resulting in the issue of 56,687,830 shares for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$142,794,000. An amount of
HK$35,766,000 was transferred from the share option reserve to share
capital upon the exercise of the share options.

On 31 March 2015, the board of directors resolved to declare the
2014 final dividend of HK13.00 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2014. The Board further resolved that this final dividend will
be satisfied wholly in the form of an allotment of new fully paid share(s)
in the share capital of the Company (“scrip shares”) but shareholders
will be given the option of receiving this final dividend wholly in cash
in lieu of this allotment, or partly in cash and partly in the form of scrip
shares. The final dividend in the form of scrip shares resulted in the issue
of 1,273,869 shares at an issue price of HK$3.804 per share for a total
consideration, before expenses, of HK$4,846,000.

On 12 June 2015, 670,000,000 new shares were allotted and issued
at the net subscription price of approximately HK$4.075 per share
after deducting relevant fees and expenses. The net proceeds from the
subscription are approximately HK$2,730,275,000.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 35 to the
financial statements.
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34. BRA& (48)

FEE

(@)

RIE CEE R RNEG]) B R115E37 16
FIMEERRE R —MFE=H
=R ARREAEEIR EOEME
BB ARRBRAN—E 5 -

56,687,83017 & A% #& FT i % 2 R &
HERMEFHRAEESRKR2519
& JT 17 £ - & B 3 1756,687,8300%
fip - BERSNKRE FOBRFAXZAN &
142,794,000 7T ° & #235,766,0007%%
TR TEERER B BEREREE
BER o

EEEeRN_ZT—hHF=-A=+—HB&
REMBE—T—NF+=-_A=+—
ALEEEZ T —NFRAKREER
13.00% 1l - EE G — L E RGN
fREE AN A R R AN F A B ARG ([RE
B&efn 1) 2 75 B EUR T b R AR S,
M AR R W] 3 12 2 0 DA 3R & (OB I e B
EBHURERBOURBBRD AR
WER I R EAAR B, o REAMR B T0 AR B
B FAZA - EEBUREITEER
3.8047% JT % 171,273,8698% A 1 - 42
KB (FOBRFZAT) A&4,846,000/ 7T °

RZT—AF~A+=H BfR%
670,000,0000% 7 A& & A & Ik £94.075
BT FRBERT (R AERE R
kX %) RESHEMSRIEFED
2,730,275,000/& 7T °

R
RRABB IR RRIRZAT 82 %17
Z BB IR EN M SRR M RESS -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. iR El

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”), which had become effective on 5 June 2002 and
expired on 5 June 2012. Upon expiry of the Old Scheme, no
further options may be granted but in all other aspects the
provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.
Therefore, the expiry of the Old Scheme will not in any event
affect the terms of the exercise of any outstanding options that
have already been granted under the Old Scheme and such
outstanding options granted under the Old Scheme shall continue
to be subject to the provisions of the Old Scheme.

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was approved
and adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. The eligible participants
of the New Scheme include any employee or director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the group comprising the Company,
Shum Yip Holdings, Shum Yip Group, and their subsidiaries and
associated companies from time to time (the “SY Group”) or any
employee, partner or director of any business consultant, joint
venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser of and to any
member of the SY Group, as absolutely determined by the board
of directors. The New Scheme became effective on 22 June
2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from that date, after which
period no further options will be issued but in all other respects
the provisions of the New Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of approval of the New Scheme unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from its shareholders. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the New Scheme will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.
Notwithstanding the above, the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30
percent of the shares in issue from time to time.

RABlRE —HERETE (&5
) HER-ZZZ-_FXARAEXR
YR=ZF—=—FARHERM - RE
ElE M - T EERNERE - B
FrEEMmAE @ Ext 80 ERDA TR
Mo Bt - EEMBER TESEZE
Mg IR R ER S B & E mRTT
2 ERIBE AR 2 1T RRIB R E
A BREETEE L 2 MARITEER
EBBET ETTE 2 IEKLIR -

ARAR_T-—_FRA-+T-_AH#tE
KRR FHBBRAERT S ([F5&]) - K
HAKBEBRINELBERZAERS
HERHZBRER - FH2EE
R2EEBBEARA  FE (£E) -
REEE R EE 2 KB A R K
AR ([(REZBREE]) 2BEXRE
= (BREAT  FRTRBIIFNTE
) HREEBREEEARERFZ
EAEERR 2B  MBERR
FRBRZER  BHAEF HHE
EEEERE - MR —_FT——FX
A+t - BAEX - MRIFRBUBSHEE
7 BRAZETEIR RN E B TFRE
Mo BREIERR - AT EBREEMA
R BEMAEMSE - HEtEN
BEXADE+REANRIER -

BRIFARRERRAITIA - TRIEX
BITERIFH T B R AR R EMEMBE
Peigrt 8l 2 BEE M A e 31T 2 &
BREE ERASEENILERNEE
BEBITRNDBE210% - RIFEF
BERRR M BB TRt AR
10%MR A - B anf] - BEBRITERIE
¥t 8l R AR A AHERHE (th B A et 813
0 AT {50 2 i R 77 168 P P 4 1 T B 3%
T2 EE ERTFBBETHEET
At #8812 30% °



35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme is that the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.

The period under which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the board of directors at their absolute discretion
and notified by the directors to each grantee as being the period
during which an option may be exercised, and shall expire no
later than the 10th anniversary of the date upon which the option
is granted and accepted in accordance with the New Scheme.
Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors and
specified in the offer letter at the time of the offer, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before the
option can be exercised.

An option is open for acceptance for a period as determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion. The amount payable on
acceptance of an option is HK$1. The full amount of exercise
price for the subscription for shares has to be paid upon exercise
of an option.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of
directors and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer of grant, which must be a business day, and
(i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the shares
as stated on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer of grant.
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35. BRERE (B)
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 35. B RESTE (&)
The following share options were outstanding under the Old LA AR FE AR IR & & KT &l i
Scheme and the New Scheme during the year: AT 2 FERRHE -

Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options
pilf: hntE
FETEE BREKAE THTRE BEREHS
HK$ HK$
per share per share
sRET BRAETT
At 1 January n—H—H 2.7429 181,927,600 2.5145 68,347,109
Granted during the year RNERFH 3.3960 7,846,000 2.8500 123,134,000
Exercised during the year RERTTE 2.5190 (56,687,830) 2.3900  (1,810,400)
Forfeited during the year RERLZM 2.8500 (2,506,000) 2.8500  (2,068,000)
Lapsed during the year RERKK - - 2.3900 (3,675,200)
Cancelled during the year RERTEH 2.6774 (4,173,770) 2.3900  (1,999,909)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 2.8839 126,406,000 2.7429 181,927,600
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for RERNTTE 2 BARBERTTE B 8 2 i
share options exercised during the year was HK$3.7612 per FHE A EARS.76128 T (ZF — Y

share (2014: HK$2.6167). F : §R2.61678T) °
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 35. BIRAERTE (48)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options R EBAR B ARITE 2 AR 21T (B
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: RATE AT -
2015 —E-HF
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BIRESE THEE" 1THEHAR
HK$ per share
BRET
118,560,000 2.8500 28-1-2016 to 27-1-2019
TE-RNF-AZ+NREZZE-NF-A=++tH
7,846,000 3.3960 28—1 -2016 to 27-1-2019

—E-RF— At N\BHE_E—NAF—A=1++tH

126,406,000

2014 —ET—F

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
B iEE A 17(E(E* 1710 2R

HK$ per share
BT

121,066,000 2.8500 28-1-2016 to 27-1-2019
R RFE-AZ+NREZZET-NAF—A=++tH

11,052,000 3.1600 19-7-2014 to 18-7-2015
—E-NE+ATNHEEZZE-—AF+A+N\H

49,809,600 2.3900 19-7-2012 to 18-7-2015

B HFt+HATNBEEZZ-—AFEHA+N\R

181,927,600

& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the * ERETEEABBHRRKARIET
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s AR AR 2 B SR L& B (I 3
share capital. o
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 35. BIRESHE (58)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$4,178,000 (HK$0.5325 each). The Group recognised a share
option expense of HK$24,171,000 (2014: HK$24,903,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

REABEEBEREZARLEAR
4,178,000% 7t (§190.5325% 7T) © &
E-T-—AF+-_A=+—HILEFE"
REERER 2 BRER /24,171,000
77T (ZZ—H4F : 24,908,00077T) °

RERARBARAS N 2 BREZ DA
EERELBHER —BERX - itk
BRI 2 R RIRIHEE - TR
NEAMERZBAE

2015
—B-HF

Dividend yield (%) F& B U2 2 (%)
Volatility (%) & (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%) A2 35 B 71 2 (%)
Expected life of options (year)

R FH (F)

5.25
39.490
1.304
3

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

The 56,687,830 share options exercised during the year resulted
in the issue of 56,687,830 ordinary shares of the Company and
an increase in share capital of HK$178,560,000 (before issue
expenses), as further detailed in note 34(b) to the financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 126,406,000
share options outstanding under the Old Scheme and the
New Scheme, which represented approximately 1.71% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 126,406,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$427,868,000 (before issue expenses).

N AEHE RN A K X B A N
e

& N 17 1£56,687,83017 f& % 1 5 8 2
%% 1756,687,830k A R Al E @R - K&
Ji% 78 3% /)1178,560,0007% T (K 1 B 2
TRX) » #E— B B R R M
34(p)

RIEHR - BEEEI RS - &
A 7] 5126,406,00017 BE B 4 (15 AN 2
AIRZBEEITRNDA1.71%) HAKRIT
i o RIRIRIF 2 AR A RAZERE - BE
FT{E I ARTTHE 2 B AR A B B AT RS
126,406,0000% 28 A &) 2 E @Ak - 1E 0
fi& A427,868,000/% T (7 #1 bk 8 17
%) e



36.

37.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 96 to 97 of the financial
statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China has been transferred
to the statutory reserve which is restricted as to use.

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration
paid and the book value of the share of net assets acquired in
respect of the acquisition of non-controlling interests, and the
difference between the consideration received and the book value
of the share of net assets disposed of in respect of a change in
the ownership interest in a subsidiary without a loss of control.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(i) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 18) and
property, plant and equipment under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from
two to eighteen years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants falling due as follows:
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f#
AEBAFEMBEFEZHRSER
HEH NP B RREIBEITALKE
BREHRANZES -

RBPING SRR ZABEGI KRG
REBERPBEAEZHEQRREER
RZA DM EBRERRERE A
FEfER

HitFEE B R RESE IR E
HAEKBEERENRAEEZRE
RERKEZENER TR — R
BRAMMARERZEHDRKERD
HAEEEEFENREENZRE -

BEROZHE

() HFEHREEE
BELELAHNZH  AEEHH
ETREMS (M15E18) Rz -
BERRE MHBEETARMES
TNERE - BYKRT—RE
SKHEPEBNRELERBRERT
ERTISREMBHERRAS -

W-E-EE+-A=+-8"
ARERATRBES 2T TR
A B R 2 R R
SHEIT

2015 2014

—E-REF —T—\mFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Within one year —FR 466,793 650,421
In the second to fifth years, F_FEERF

inclusive (BREEEMT) 895,730 1,075,043

After five years B A 579,414 426,061

1,941,937 2,151,525
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. WEHNZTH (&)
(CONTINUED)
(i) As lessee (i) ERAF
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating AEERBEEHERHERASE
lease arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated T MEHABREE—F5
for terms ranging from one to three years. =15
At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future minimum RZE—RAF+ZA=+—8"
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases N & B R LA HAE JE w2 T AT ER
falling due as follows: HEEHOERR Z RERENE
SHERENT
2015 2014
—E-HF w4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaxT FAT
Within one year —FR 6,224 4,743
In the second to fifth years, F_FEERF
inclusive (BEEEMT) 913 1,632
7,137 6,375
38. COMMITMENTS 38. &
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note R SO RES7 (i) 5F At 2 A% & A A A i
37(ii) above, the Group had the following commitments at the end Sh - RERE IR - REE 2 BARRKEN
of the reporting period: T
2015 2014
e —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Commitments in respect of acquisition BLUCHE 30
of land and buildings, and development BFANERS
costs attributable to properties under YIRS
development: AR
Contracted, but not provided for B ET AU 8 R B 7,786,034 7,347,594
In addition, the Group’s share of a joint venture’s own capital AN - WAREFTA Ll 2 REE DG —H
commitments, which are not included in the above, is as follows: BENAARG ZEARFPENT ¢

2015 2014
—E-FHfF —T-mF

HK$°000 HK$'000
THET S

Commitments in respect of the provision R X F RS
of property development service: ZAERE
Contracted, but not provided for B ETHME 8 R B 393,960 -




39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

(i)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has given guarantees to
a maximum extent of approximately HK$8,857,658,000 (2014
HK$2,359,519,000) to banks for housing loans extended by
the banks to the purchasers of the Group’s properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default
of the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group
is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal title of the related properties. The
Group’s guarantee period commences from the date of
grant of the relevant mortgage loan and ends after the buyer
of the Group’s properties obtained the individual property
ownership certificate.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments,
the net realisable value of the related properties can cover
the repayment of the outstanding mortgage loans together
with any accrued interest and penalty and therefore no
provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.
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Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERBRA R

Annual Report 2015 F#

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 7% 3R 3k M A
31 December 2015
—T-hF+=A=+—H

39. WAREE
RBER - WERAPHBERRDEEZ
HRBEWMT

(i

R-ZZE—AF+_A=+—8H"
REBBBITHRTARENEE
RZEREERARTRETSZR
#98,857,658,000/% 7T (=& — M
% : 2,359,519,000/870) AUFELR -

BREBEERES  HZFERER
BIBHRIE ARBEFAETEMNR
NHRBEERARERFEAZE
RARATIRIT B E 0] B 57 8 R 5
Ko AEBERTRKEBRBYE
VRIEMMAE - ARERERE
MEREARREBERE ARKBE
EXAKEMEBEXREERNYE
FRAREEIRER

EXRR HEXRFIE B@EY
) ] B3R %A B PAME T i R (E
ENRIBEFER T MR E
REVR  HORBZ S ERIEL B
o



PRk
Shen:

zhen Investment Limited
FYNZERBRA R
Annual Report 2015 %

X

rrrrr

Notes to Financial Statements
BF 7 3R 3R} MY &

31 December 2015

—E—AF+_-_A=+—H

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(i

On 12 September 2014, Shum Yip Terra, a 75.05% owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property Development Company
Limited (“Wuhan Terra”), received a notification for the
appointment of defender/application for legal aid during the
prosecution review phase from The People’s Procuratorate of
Jianli County of Hubei Province (the “People’s Procuratorate”),
informing Shum Yip Terra and Wuhan Terra that materials
in respect of the suspected corporate offence of bribery on
both of them have been transferred to the Public Prosecution
Bureau of the Procuratorate for prosecution review.

The People’s Procuratorate considers that there were
violations of the relevant regulations in the procedures in
respect of a land transaction involved by Wuhan Terra which
has caused a loss of state-owned land income, and the loss
in the amount of approximately RMB316 million should be
recovered from Shum Yip Terra. The People’s Procuratorate
has frozen certain bank accounts of Wuhan Terra and Shum
Yip Terra. Further details of the matter are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 September 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the balance of the frozen bank
accounts of Wuhan Terra amounted to RMB540,000,000.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
Shum Yip Terra and Wuhan Terra have not yet received
any notification from the People’s Court regarding the
prosecution filed by the People’s Procuratorate.

39. RAREE (&)

(i)

AN R 7+ BR75.06%H) Kt B A &
FEZARHEZENBRARIRE
MAEXERABHEREER QA
(TRERR]) R=—ZT—mWFH A
TZAWERIE A ERZEARR
2P ([ ARBRERT ) (B E R
BETREAN BB EEEDS
ME)  SMRERARBERA
WA A Bk B8 AL 1T B IR M BEHS X
ZBE AR RBEITEE R o

ARBERRBR/REZTAS R 2
THRGEFERBARE &
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316 BT - ARREREHNZE
FERARRERRE TRITERP
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NG
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BB AR B
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these () BZEUBHREREMPHEFil
financial statements, the Group had the following material ZRGHN FR - RNEEET
transactions with related parties during the year: R T ETATEARS ¢
2015 2014
=R =i iR Dt
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt s FBxT FAT
(1) Shum Yip Group, the ultimate (1) REERARRE
holding company: £E -
— Interest expenses — FEHAZ
(note 40(d)(i)) (BEE40(0)(i)) 214,268 316,378
— Management fee income — EIBEUWA (i) 3,331 1,097
- Rental income — WA (ii) 4,068 -
(2) Shum Yip Holdings, the immediate (2) EEERAREE
holding company: (&H) :
— Rental expenses —HeMX (ii) 10,419 6,004
(8) Associates: (3) Ei=EAA
— Sales of products — HEEMm (iii) 111,483 228,377
(4) Fellow subsidiaries: @) RRWEBAF :
— Interest expenses — FEHAX
(note 31 (iii)) (F7E31(ii)) 7,575 16,976
— Estate agency fee income — ERIEBEUA - 9,220
- Management fee income —EEBIA (iv) 2,374 1,312
— Rental expenses — HERX (i) 414 -
(5) Joint ventures: (6) AERA :
— Interest income — FEHA
(note 26 (i) (Fg5E26(i)) 191,723 399,795
(6) Non-controlling shareholders: 6) FEEARARR :
— Interest expenses — FEHAZ
(note 31 (ii)) (Ffi5E31(i)) 7,705 7,910




CIOR
Shenzhen

nvestment Limited

RIZERBRA A

Annual Report 2015 F &

Notes to Financial Statements
BF 7 3R 3R} MY &

31 December 2015

—F-AF+=A=t—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) (continued)
Notes:

(b)

()

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into between Nongke
and Shum Yip Group on 27 January 2014, Shum Yip Group
appointed Nongke to provide management services on its behalf
in respect of (a) certain agricultural lands and related assets, and
(b) the implementation plan of a property development project.
Further details are set out in the circular of the Company dated 12
May 2014. Management fee income in respect of the management
services as abovementioned of HK$2,097,000 and HK$1,234,000,
respectively, was charged to Shum Yip Group for the year.

The rentals were recognised at prices based on mutual agreement
between the parties.

The sales to the associates were made according to the published
prices and conditions offered to the major customers of the Group.

The management fee income from a fellow subsidiary was
determined at prices based on mutual agreement between the
parties.

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party transactions
were conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business. The directors of the Company
confirmed that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Other transactions with related parties

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank loans amounting to
HK$4,534,160,000 (2014: HK$3,747,300,000) were guaranteed
by Shum Yip Group (note 29 (a)).

Commitments with related parties:

The Group has entered into certain operating lease
arrangements with Shum Yip Holdings. The amount of
lease expenses for the year is included in note 40(a) to the
financial statements. The Group expects total lease expenses
in 2016 and 2017 to be approximately HK$7,768,000 and
HK$7,464,000, respectively.

40. BBEEXR S (58)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(%)
GEX

() BEERMEREEENR-—Z—N
F—RAZ-+tHIIZZHB
o OREEEZERBRERG)
ETRUREHEE: RO)Y
XEIEEE 2 Eitst SlRMAE R
R o E—HHBERARAE A
HAE-ZT-—NFRAA+-_HZB
B o ANEE - B LAE IR RS
2 ERE WA S R %2,097,000
7 7T %1,234,000/ 7T © B R
EE e Rit[o

(i) M2HIRETEEHE 2 EIRE

7
e

(i) FAEEEREZHETREEMET
FEBEIZEF 2B FIEERR
TRIFEDL -

KERZHBAR ZERERA
TRAWTHEBEZBRE
w e

(iv)

v) EFERB LMBEBIXZTE
AEE R BEBTIZ—REERK
FTETLZIRS - AT EEHER
ARRBEER ETRAEI4AZE
EVREERE °

HEBI 2 MRS
RZE—RFE+A=+—H"
7N £ [E4,534,160,000/8 7t (= =
— [0 £ : 3,747,300,000/ 7T) 2
RITERTAFRESEER (FE
29(a)) °

LA TS 2 AR

AEEERE (RE) FTLE TR
EHERE - FAHERXER
T B 75 3R 2% B 52 40(a)F K BR © AR
EEEH R-TE-—REE_FT
—tFZHERXBEIROR
7,768,000/ 7T )2 7,464,000/ 7T °



40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

Included in the aggregate amount due to the ultimate
holding company under current liabilities is an amount
of HK$1,410,049,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK$1,415,751,000), which is unsecured, bears interest
at a rate ranging from 105% of the six-month benchmark
lending rate to 6% per annum and is repayable on
demand. In addition, included in the aggregate amount
due to the ultimate holding company under current
liabilities is an amount of HK$2,141,360,000 as at 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil), which is unsecured, bears
interest at 5.5% per annum, and is repayable on 25 May
2016. The remaining amount due to the ultimate holding
company is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
terms of repayment.

The amount due to the ultimate holding company under
non-current liabilities of HK$965,897,000 as at 31
December 2015 (2014: HK$1,412,597,000) which bears
interest at one to three-year benchmark lending rate of
the PBOC (2014: at 110% of the three-year benchmark
lending rate of the PBOC), is unsecured and payable
on 26 August 2018 (2014: from 26 June 2016 to 4
September 2016).
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40. BB A RS (48)
(d) EREAEETS Z RIEEBEER -

0
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(d) Outstanding balances with related parties:
(continued)

(if)

(i)

(vi)

The Group had an amount due to the immediate holding
company under current liabilities of HK$158,301,000
(2014: HK$51,171,000). The amount is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Included in the aggregate amount due to the immediate
holding company under non-current liabilities is an
amount of HK$348,894,000 (2014: HK$323,208,000),
which represented the contingent consideration payable
for the acquisition of Shenzhen Bio-Agriculture. The
acquisition was completed on 22 August 2014. The
contingent consideration payable is subsequently
measured at fair value and will be paid within three
years after the date of completion of acquisition. As at
31 December 2015, an increase in the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable to Shum Yip Holdings
amounting to HK$33,136,000 is charged to “Other
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
At the date of approval of these financial statements,
no further significant changes to the consideration are
expected.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from its joint
ventures are disclosed in notes 19 and 26 to the financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to its associates
as at the end of the reporting period are included in notes
20, 26 and 31 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to its fellow
subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period are
included in notes 26 and 31 to the financial statements.

Details of the Group’s amounts due from/to non-controlling
shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period are included in notes 26
and 31 to the financial statements.

40. BB A RS (48)
(d) EREEETS 2 REEBERR: (B)

(i

(i)

(iv)
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 40. AR B (5B)
() Compensation of key management personnel of (e) XEBXEEBEABZHMSE :
the Group:
2015 2014
= o —ZT—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short term employee benefits MHESEF 12,917 11,982
Post-employment benefits RIRAEF 1,960 1,950
Equity-settled AR - 2
share option expense EARER 6,935 7,312
Total compensation paid to key ENEZEEAR
management personnel 5 42 %8 21,812 21,244
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s ExMe k& TBRAEME 2
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements. E— T HIBEE NI MRS o
The related party transactions in respect of item (a)(1)(i) ARA(a)(1)() A2 BT RS EM
constitute connected transactions or continued connected MRAFI4AZIREZBERS

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. S EAER S o
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. REEREFIZ2eMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RERAR - REEEHN eI A
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: ZEREENT ¢
2015 —E-RE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss — held Loans and financial
Financial assets for trading receivables assets
RARE
FEZE®
BE - BERR ATt E
BHIERS ElHE ZL2REE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FET FET
Loans to joint ventures HBTELEANRIZER
(note 26) (BizE26) - 949,853 - 949,853
Due from fellow subsidiaries A E e NG
(note 26) (FizE26) - 13,091 - 13,091
Due from non-controlling U FEFE AR AR B
shareholders (note 26) (MfzE26) - 1,263 - 1,263
Available-for-sale investments  AJ{EHEHRE - - 123,684 123,684
Trade receivables JEUBR TR - 528,154 - 528,154
Deposits and other receivables 574 & Hth e UZ F I8
(note 26) (BizE26) - 554,083 - 554,083
Equity investments at fair value &E@EZFIE AL EE
through profit or loss RIS E 3,696 - - 3,696
Restricted cash SIRFIIR & - 4,110,729 - 4,110,729
Cash and cash equivalents e RESEEY - 9,708,046 - 9,708,046

3,696 15,865,219 123,684 15,992,599
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY M. REERAze®MIA (B)
(CONTINUED)
2015 (continued) —Z—58F (&)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost Total
R ATE

e =R st

HK$’000 HK$’000

FaxT FHxT

Trade payables e BR 3K 1,013,126 1,013,126

Other payables (note 31) H b fE R FRIE (BI5E31) 4,204,095 4,204,095

Loans from non-controlling shareholders IEIERRAR R E K

(note 31) (B$3E31) 142,300 142,300
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RRMBRARER

(note 31) (FF7E31) 126,481 126,481

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & &4R77 % B g & 21,375,093 21,375,093

Due to the immediate holding company FEN BB ERR A Rl G IE 507,195 507,195

Due to the ultimate holding company FE B AR A B FIR 4,781,904 4,781,904

Loans from associates (note 31) Bt N T B (Mi5E31) 285,883 285,883

32,436,077 32,436,077




ﬁfmn\}\}

ook
Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERER AR
Annual Report 2015 %

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% RO MY RE

31 December 2015
—E-BF+-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

41. REERBIZEMTA (8)

(CONTINUED)
2014 —E—F
Financial
assets at
fair value
jiglge]¥le]a] Available-
profit or for-sale
loss — held Loans and financial
Financial assets for trading receivables assets
PSR i =k
BARE
FEZ e
BE — =& AL E
FER S BWHIE 2Z2omEE #ET
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FHET
Loans to joint ventures HBTFEERNRIZER
(note 26) (Ft7¥26) - 2,741,501 - 2,741,501
Loans to associates BTHMERNRZER
(note 26) (Ffi5E26) - 1,641 - 1,641
Loans to fellow subsidiaries LTREMBARZ
(note 26) B3R (M3E26) = 17,352 = 17,352
Loans to non-controlling AT IR IR 2 B
shareholders (note 26) (FfizE26) - 3,821 - 3,821
Other long term assets HihREAE = - 12,491 - 12,491
Available-for-sale investments B[t HEIHE - - 140,471 140,471
Trade receivables FEUBRFR - 714,764 - 714,764
Deposits and other receivables 514 & = fth j& U 508
(note 26) (Pft3E26) — 678,073 — 678,073
Equity investments at fair value #i@EZRIEZALEFTE
through profit or loss ZIREIRE 3,116 = = 3,116
Pledged deposits BHEMER - 31,228 - 31,228
Restricted cash ZRHIRE - 1,250,679 - 1,250,679
Cash and cash equivalents e RESEEBEY - 8,375,476 - 8,375,476
3,116 183,827,026 140,471 13,970,613
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY M. REERAze®MIA (B)
(CONTINUED)
2014 (continued) —=—MF (&)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities & 1 at amortised cost
RESH AT E
Zemas
HK$'000
FHT
Trade payables FE T BRIR 4,314,398 4,314,398
Other payables (note 31) H b fEAFRIE (BIEEST) 4,688,217 4,633,217
Loans from non-controlling shareholders JEIERR AR R E R
(note 31) (PfF5E31) 144,674 144,674
Loans from fellow subsidiaries EERR) VNG €N
(note 31) (PffzE31) 379,817 379,817
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings s EIRT N EMEE 29,398,818 29,398,818
Due to the immediate holding company FENT E B AR A R I8 374,379 374,379
Due to the ultimate holding company FER SR AR R B FIAR 4,467,437 4,467,437
Loans from associates (note 31) & AR B (M5E31) 296,058 296,058

44,008,798 44,008,798
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

42. EMIAZRABERDIAESE

e

AEEzZERMTAZERERAAE

T

(REEREQAEREBTERIN) 40

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE ARE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT-MOF ZE-HF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT FER FAT
Financial assets SREE
Other long term assets HihREFEE - 12,491 - 12,491
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 65,583 78,010 65,583 78,010
Equity investments at fair value &Ei@i8zsiE A A
through profit or loss ETE ZRAEIRE 3,696 3,116 3,696 3,116
69,279 93,617 69,279 93,617
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE ARE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-Hf 2§ Z—T-HF —TMNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT FER FAT
Financial liabilities SHRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and AT EERTT
other borrowings HEmEE
- non-current portion — FEENERE 16,100,940 | 17,341,508 | 16,100,940 | 17,341,508
Due to the immediate e EEER
holding company A RAFIE
— non-current portion — JERNEAER 348,894 323,208 348,894 323,208
Due to the ultimate FERT R AR R
holding company N RIFIAE
— non-current portion — JERNEREL 965,897 | 1,412,597 965,897 | 1,412,597
17,415,731 | 19,077,313 | 17,415,731 | 19,077,313




42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, short term pledged deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade payables, other
payables, an amount due to the immediate holding company and
an amount due to the ultimate holding company approximated
to their respective carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and the non-current portion of amount due to the ultimate/
immediate holding company have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings as at 31 December 2015 was assessed to
be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices.
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 42. EMIAZARERAARES

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) WM (B)

Fair value hierarchy NRESHRERE

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRINTAEEECHMTIAZ AR EFNE
of the Group’s financial instruments: ESMPERE

Assets measured at fair value: UARETEZEE -

As at 31 December 2015 R-E—FHFE+=-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RAUTBEB 2 AAETE
Quoted

prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
RIER
Tz 2 BE
(%—1E)
HK$’000
FTHERT

Significant

Significant

observable unobservable

inputs
(Level 2)
EXA
EZmE
(B=FE)
HK$’000
THET

inputs
(Level 3)
|
BEBAE
(zE=0E) #st
HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT TET

Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 65,583 - - 65,583

Equity investments at fair value BBBEREANE
through profit or loss STEZRIERE 3,696 - - 3,696
69,279 - - 69,279

As at 31 December 2014

Quoted

RZE—NF+=—A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

RAAT#EZ 2R EFE

prices Significant Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

& EAA BEANA

% BB BRBAE BRBAE
(F—E) (BZE) € =) st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT =i FET e m
Available-for-sale investments R 78,010 - - 78,010

Equity investments at fair value BRBRER

through profit or loss STEZRIERE 3,116 - - 3,116
81,126 - - 81,126
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 42 SMITEAZARBERAAES
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) R ()
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREERRE (B)
Liabilities measured at fair value: KAREHEZRET -
As at 31 December 2015 R=2-HF+=A=t—H

Fair value measurement using
RAUTEEZAAERNE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WER BEXT BEAFH
hiE2HRE HERAE HERAE
(B—FE) (£=8) (F=) st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET TET FTHET
Due to the immediate holding e B REIER
company UNGIEE
- non-current portion — JEBNHEAER 5 - 348,894 - 348,894
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE—NFE+=A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RANWTEE 2 A EE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RIER EWNG| BARA]
MHEZRE BERAAE BRHEAE
(5—E) (F=8) =) st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHT FAT FAT
Due to the immediate holding e BBk
company N EIFIE
- non-current portion — FEBNEAEE - 323,208 - 323,208
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements TN eREERCRABEE EHE
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 TEEYEETAREEER M
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2014: Nil). ETE=ZEAn B SR EE AE

B (ZE—F ) -
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 42. EMIAZARERAARES

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

The Group did not have any financial assets disclosed at fair

value as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2014

WM (B)

DRESHRER (&)
EHEARBZEE -
R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—0 KA&£EH
WERAMRARBEREZEREE -

RZE-—NFE+-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RANUTEEz AnETE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
KR NG| BEANT
MiZZHE BREGAE BEEAE
B (5=8) (F=E) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR FAET THET
Other long term assets HREEE - 12,491 - 12,491
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EREIAEZERE -

As at 31 December 2015

R-B-—HFE+ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using
RANTHEZARENE
Quoted

prices  Significant  Significant

in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3)

BEXARHA

MEZEE BEGAE BEAAE
(5—18) (5=8) ($5=8) #ct
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHxT FTER TExT TET

(Level 1)
RER BEXTA

Interest-bearing bank and sHEERITR
other borrowings Hibfg &
- non-current portion — JEENERER S - 16,100,940 - 16,100,940
Due to the ultimate holding JE T B R iR
company RAIFIE
-~ non-current portion — JEENERER - 965,897 - 965,897
- 17,066,837 - 17,066,837
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2. EMIAZARERAAES
MR (B)
NABEEHRER (B)
EHFEALEZERS  (8)
RZE-—NFE+ZA=+—H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)
As at 31 December 2014

Fair value measurement using
RANUTEE 2 AR EFE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RE R E NG| BEAANT
iz 2 HE BR&AE BREAE
6o =) (S ad) o et
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHT TR TAT THT
Interest-bearing bank and PRI
other borrowings HifEE
- non-current portion — JEBNHEAER 5 - 17,341,508 - 17,341,508
Due to the ultimate holding JE T B2
company RAIFIE
- non-current portion — JERNERER - 1,412,597 - 1,412,597
- 18,754,105 - 18,754,105




Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYNZERBRA R
Annual Report 2015 %

Notes to Financial Statements
BF 7 3R 3R} MY &
31 December 2015

—FE+-A=+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. B EREE 2 B HRBEEK

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity
investments. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly due to the interest
rate fluctuations of its bank borrowings. Interest on these bank
borrowings is computed based on market rates.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters
to decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible
interest rate risk that may arise.

At 31 December 2015, if the interest rate of bank borrowings
had increased/decreased by 0.5% and all other factors remained
unchanged, the profit after tax for the year of the Group would
have decreased/increased by approximately HK$40,261,000
(2014: HK$66,617,925).

Foreign currency risk

Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in RMB
and the Group’s assets held and all of the committed borrowings
of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB, except for certain
US$-denominated bank loans held by the Company.

AEETZeMITABEEBRITR
HipfgE - Be KRR SEBYARKE
BE - WMESHMTAZEIZRETIRA
KEXBEEES - AKBHAZEE
eREERAE  PIMERKBER
152 FRUUR K K B BRAX ©

AEBvERMIAMEEZTERARS
MERER - INERER - FEERKR - R#

R ERERR - EEERALIHTE
BRI FRR  SRBR - HEWT e
T @ b

AEENFXEREERNERTEE
MERBMEE - ZFRITEEZFE
TIRET G KETH -

AN 55 [ A6 45 48 R A ATl B B0 ) 2= [ R A
/%IE ﬁ?giT/qq—J FEWTHZ%'J%
2Bz o

RZE-—RF+ZA=+—8 "
BITIEBEOME LA T R05%
mArTE  EmEAZRRFETE - BIRNEE
ZARFEE R RS TG DG
in #940,261,000% T (= T — M@ £ :
66,617,925/ 7T) ©

SHEE L B
AEBEBHALOLERBZRAR
¥ BAAKEMBEERAKBERALD
BB EOTEUARKIIE  EET
RRRFE ZAEXTFHENRITE SRR
e



43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ had appreciated/depreciated by 1%
against RMB and all other factors remained unchanged, the profit
after tax for the year of the Group could have increased/decreased
by HK$413,000 (2014: HK$6,930,000). The change is mainly due
to the net value changes of the deposits denominated in HK$ held
by the PRC subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ had appreciated/depreciated by 1%
against US$ and all other factors remained unchanged, the profit
after tax for the year of the Group could have increased/decreased
by HK$56,286,000 (2014: HK$45,133,000). The change is mainly
due to the net value changes of the interest-bearing bank loans
denominated in US$ held by the Company.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets,
trade and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

To manage the risk, deposits are mainly placed with licensing
banks which are all high credit quality financial institutions. The
Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties
for the sales of properties and goods. The Group has policies in
place to ensure that sales are made to buyers with appropriate
financial strength and appropriate percentage of down payments.
The Group would not release the property ownership certificates
to the buyers before the buyers fully settle the payment. It
also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spreading over a
number of counterparties and customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 25
to the financial statements.
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(=—Z—PU4F : 45,133,000/87T) ° EF)
FTERHRARRFHE 2 AEITTHERN
EESRITERZ FEE ST -

EEmELE

rEBzeREE (BRREMASE
EBY AHHEZEREE  BRES
R EEMEWRKIER) 2EERBRKA
RHHFRRNFK - MARERZ &S
SRENHET A RmME -

REERR  AEEXERFRFAR
MBIRTT - REVRBEEERZSRK
B AEEERNLERAGEZE=T
ETHERERRZ S - AEBDETR
RERAEFEEMBENRINEE
BAOLERNRZEREHEE - &8
REBUBENRA - AEE TS mEH
HEERE - AREIGES LM EITiE
Fr o DAHE (R SRR BR A 15 e W B 8 HR (R
%o o AEBEMEMESREAZ
FEME B RRR AT IR B 58 - PARELRBL A
AU El SRR R ARRERBIE - A&
BYBEMERNKEREERR - MA@
HOEROHEZERZHFREP °

ERRKESRFIMEE 2 AREEE
[RBR 2 EL A R B 75 SR P R 25 A B

.



S S I,
SRR

Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERER AR
Annual Report 2015 %

Notes to Financial Statements

B %% RO MY RE

31 December 2015
—E-BF+-A=+—H

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current
liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of short and long term bank loans. Through maintaining a
reasonable proportion in its asset and liability structure, the Group

is able to meet its ongoing financial needs.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

On demand
RER
HK$'000
TR

Within
one year
R
HK$'000
7

43. BBEREE 2B HREE
(#&)
MBIt E R
EARKEREEEECIHMRDEER
AIEERBMUERR - NEEE EEBE
REAEREMRITES  #RESHE
HEEBREZFE - BRBEEER

(==
B4

HEBEVBHRE -

BREESEL  AEEARE

AEE Y B E ERRE R DS
RIT -

One to
two years
-EWE
HK$'000
TR

Two to
three years
ME=F
HK$'000
THT

Over

three years
Bz
HK$'000
T

Total
@t
HK$'000
TR

Interest-bearing bank and FEHRTR

other borrowings AfiEE 10,581 6,248,160 5,144,094 3,910,331 9,633,483 24,946,649
Trade payables JEf R - 1,013,126 - - - 1,013,126
Other payables (note 31) Hthef50E (7Es1) - 4,204,095 - - - 4,204,095
Loans from non-controlling FERRRER

shareholders (note 31) (F15¥31) - 142,300 - - - 142,300
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RZHBARER

(note 31) (WzE81) - 126,481 - - - 126,481
Due to the immediate holding EREZERAR

company | 158,301 - - 348,894 - 507,195
Due to the ultimate holding [Eff ZAEER AR

company EQ] 402,860 3,587,502 45,342 984,788 - 5,020,492
Loans from associates (note 31)  B&AFER (Fiz31) 285,883 - - - - 285,883
Total izt 857,625 15,321,664 5,189,436 5244013 9,633,483 36,246,221
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Liquidity risk (continued)
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43. BB EREE 2 BNRBE
(&)
mEttmmE (E)

Within One to Two to Over
On demand one year two years  three years  three years
BEK —R —EmE ME=F BR=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHEL THT THEL THEL
Interest-bearing bank and STRBRAR
other borrowings EifEE 10,676 13,202,547 6,221,662 3,454,487 9,317,178 32,206,450
Trade payables JEFTERR 140,464 4,265,541 - - - 4,406,005
Other payables (note 31) Eftofeft 205 (fs1) - 4633217 = - - 4633217
Loans from non-controlling FREREER
shareholders (note 31) (Ff3E31) - 144,674 - - - 144,674
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RAZNBARER
(note 31) (zzat) - 379,817 5 5 5 379,817
Due to the immediate holding EffEERERAT
company T 51,171 - - 394,585 - 445,756
Due to the ultimate holding ENZEERAR
company 0 2,094,200 996,526 1,484,278 — - 4,575,004
Loans from associates (note 31)  B&N&ER (Fiz31) 296,058 - - - - 296,058
Total a5t 2,592,469 283,622,322 7,705,940 3,849,072 9,317,178 47,086,981

Equity price risk

The equity price risk of the Group mainly arises from the changes
in market prices for held-for-trading equity investments. The
book values of this type of financial assets held by the Group
are recognised according to market quotes as at the end of the
reporting period.

On 31 December 2015, if the price of listed equity securities held
by the Group had increased/decreased by 10%, and all other
factors remained unchanged and excluding tax items, the book
values of the listed equity securities of the Group would have
increased/decreased by HK$370,000 (2014: HK$312,000).

IR Em B
REBEZRERREZREFIEX S
REEZTEZS WEHAKERA
ZERMEEZREEDREBNBREHRR
Z IS REER

R-—ZT—AE+-_A=+—H " f#ixsE
EHEZ EMRABELFZEBE LR/
TE10% » MATA &M EERFTE
(TEEHE)  AIAREEZ ETRAFE
F 2 REESEE M, 370,000
7t (ZZ—PO4 : 312,000/ 7T) °
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. B EREE 2 B WRBUER

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to
ensure the financing capabilities of the Company in running its
operation on a going concern basis, to maintain an optimal capital
structure, to reduce capital cost and to maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure appropriately
according to the specific features of the risks of its assets and the
changes in various economic conditions. Through adjustments
in dividend distribution, injections and repayments of capital by
shareholders or issuance of new shares, the Group is able to
maintain an optimal capital structure of the Company.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the parent. The
Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.
Net debt is interest-bearing bank and other borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted cash.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as

(%)

BXEHE

AEBEREBREZ ARIREAR
Az RE RN U B IR R R
BET - WEREBELNESRE -
WD BARA R R EERAL -

AEEREASEEZHERRE K
EREEANTHE 2 B ES HE
BEARBETERERAR - BBRHER
BAK - RRTE REEEARKEITH
B REBERK AR ZEAREH
FEBKF -

AEEERERAER (AFRERN
BRAEBARGED) BIRHER -
REBZBRIBEABBERGRFES
BKF - FERAFBRRITREMEE
BAERREEEY  BERAFHRR
RERE - RBEPRZERAERD

follows:

T

2015 2014

—E-IfF —ZT—mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings st ERTNREMEE 21,375,093 29,398,818

Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BERREEEY (9,708,046) (8,375,476)
Pledged deposits BHEBFR

— current portion — BPHRER > = (31,228)

Restricted cash SRR IR & (4,110,729) (1,250,679)

Net loans FER 7,556,318 19,741,435

Equity attributable to owners of the parent A TS AFE(LEZ 33,325,865 30,495,860

Gearing ratio BEX 23% 65%




44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(i)

(i)

On 16 January 2016, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into an agreement with the local government in Heyuan
City. According to the agreement, the local government will
resume the undeveloped land with the area of approximately
620,000 square metres and will return a land price of
approximately RMB699 million to the Group after the land is
sold through public listing-for-sale by the local government.

On 7 March 2016, the Company entered into a facility agreement
with certain banks in relating to (a) a transferable term loan
facility of up to a principal amount of US$230,000,000,
bearing interest at LIBOR plus 2.85% and repayable in 5
years; and (b) a transferable term loan facility of up to a
principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000, bearing interest at
HIBOR plus 2.85% and repayable in 5 years.

On 21 December 2015, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase contract with Shum Yip Holdings in respect of the
proposed acquisition of 95,707 ordinary shares of Fairwind
Power Limited (“Fairwind”) with a nominal value of US$1.00
each, representing approximately 95% of the issued share
capital of Fairwind. Fairwind is principally engaged in property
investment and development in Shenzhen, the PRC. The
consideration in the amount of RMB1,914,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$2,264,233,290) will be settled by the Company on the
completion date of the acquisition in the following manners:
(a) as to HK$1,132,116,645, being 50% of the consideration,
in cash; and (b) as to HK$1,132,116,645, being the remaining
50% of the consideration, by the promissory note issued by
the Company to Shum Yip Holdings. The acquisition has been
completed on 15 March 2016.

45. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements,
due to the implementation of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current year, the presentation
and disclosures of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have
been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation and
disclosures.
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

46. A D RMBARR R

BERARRNBERR A BRARZ

BT

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
—E-REF 2O
e =% El B o it 1 =)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&E5)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEmBEE
Property, plant and equipment M= - REN&EE 236 344
Investments in subsidiaries EAGRE 18,106,265 18,097,378
Investments in associates Bt N Rl E 119,532 119,532
Total non-current assets EMBEEATE 18,226,033 18,217,254
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE ek
other receivables H fth jE W 3R TE 2,986 2,345
Due from subsidiaries FEURBT B A Bl IE 11,610,412 8,889,750
Equity investments at fair value BRBERIEARETE
through profit or loss 2 IR RER & 3,696 3,116
Cash and cash equivalents B RIFEEEY 916,583 1,560,212
Total current assets mENVE EMARE 12,533,677 10,455,423
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & 84877 % B fE & 499,058 2,782,454
Other payables and accruals H e 5IE KR E AT & A 53,238 52,683
Due to the ultimate holding company FE S AR A B FIR 27,594 23,503
Due to subsidiaries FEAT T B A RIFRIA 966,492 303,989
Total current liabilities BB EREE 1,546,382 3,162,629
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46. AAFPBRR K (B)

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
s —ZT—OF
e = heey A | Bl s
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(% E75)
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 10,987,295 7,292,794
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRE
CURRENT LIABILITIES BE 29,213,328 25,510,048
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings s ER1TREMEE 9,957,170 9,660,225
Due to the immediate holding company R EEER A 7 5KIE 348,894 323,208
Total non-current liabilities BB EATE 10,306,064 9,983,433
Net assets BEFE 18,907,264 15,526,615
EQUITY T
Share capital R& 2R 17,478,481 14,564,800
Other reserves H b {# 1,428,783 961,815
Total equity AR 18,907,264 15,526,615
HUANG Wei LIU Chong
=HiE e
Director Director
== =
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. XA T HBMRRE (&)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: BE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARFEEZHREDAT :
Share Capital Share
premium redemption option Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
BR 17 IR 7 B = e
R E R s R RERFA ECY o]
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FER FEx FHET FTHER
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—NMNFE—HA—H 10,964,217 2,036 40,036 3,636 11,009,925
Total comprehensive income REEZ2H
for the year gt itl - - - 1,095,922 1,095,922
Share options exercised TR B AR - - (1,197) = (1,197)

Transfer of share option reserve PO BE AR A 2R Ak
upon the lapse and cancellation T ok g B B

of share options ME AR = = (3,859) 3,775 (84)
Equity-settled share option expense ARXAN 715t 22 i S 7 52 = = 24,903 (1,543) 23,360
Final 2013 dividend in the form of  AIR& RFWHFR 2

cash and new shares —E=FREKE - - - (176) (176)
Acquisition of a subsidiary 1 i — P BT /B 2 &) (10,964,217) (2,036) - - (10,966,253)
Interim 2014 dividend RN EREEE - - - (199,682) (199,682)
At 31 December 2014 RZZT—MNE+=A

and =t+—BK

1 January 2015 —2—hF—A—H - - 59,883 901,932 961,815
Total comprehensive income AREEE2MH

for the year Wk a5 - = = 1,659,689 1,659,689
Share options exercised TR AR i - - (35,766) - (35,766)

Transfer of share option reserve TABE AR AR R K
upon the lapse and cancellation Kok SH R e

of share options PR A - = (426) 426 =
Equity-settled share option expense BARBEZN 7 - 2 B A% #E B <2 - - 24,171 - 24,171
Final 2014 dividend —=—pUE R A - - = (959,605) (959,605)
Interim 2015 dividend —ZE-REPHRKRE = = = (221,521) (221,521)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z—AF+=-A=+—H - - 47,862 1,380,921 1,428,783
The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options BERERELEEREERARITEZE
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the REARE  E—FFBHRTBR
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the FMTEE2.4LARR D B ERE T 2 5T
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the Ko R ERNE BEREETERE
share premium account when the related options are exercised, B IR 5 (B AR S B 7 B AR T 3k
or be transferred to retained profits should the related options VR U R B = (R ER VR A ©

expire or be forfeited.

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47. #EMKHRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MHRERER T —"F=A=+HE

by the board of directors on 30 March 20186. S ERBRETIE -
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E—E-AXRARAFEERRPREFHARERZYXERS

Project/Property

HE/MEER

Property interest held for future development

Address

H 3t

Interest
to the
Company
AT R
=

Land Area Planned GFA

(sg.m.)

(sg.m.)

EER REREER

(F7K)

(FFK)

Expected
Completion
Year
AFELT
F4

BSRRBRRZYEER

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Phase 2 Yushan, Ma’anshan Residential 97.74% 188,761 643,547 No Plans

BRINREERN2H BRILUTR LR = REETE

Garden Hill (Land plot 1) Zhongkai Development  Residential 100% 81,811 166,985 2022
Zone, Huizhou

FLE5E (155 5R) BT FHER =

Garden Hill Phase 3.2 Zhongkai Development Residential 100% 48,702 207,656 2021
Zone, Huizhou

1L #£%83.288 BT hiEFHER F=

Shumyip Garden South Huicheng, Huizhou Residential 100% 27,698 75,408 2019

RECERR BT R F=

Shumyip Garden Huicheng, Huizhou Residential 100% 72,922 297,505 2022

REIEE N TR R F=

Shanglin Garden Land Plot South Hailing Road, Hailing, Residential 100% 182,865 532,412 2022
Taizhou

EMIERE R TN TG 0 [ ) PR B F=

Rui Cheng Phase 3.1 Changsha County, Residential 80% 45,117 73,433 2018
Changsha

A93.15, EATRDEH =

Shumyip Xihui Changsha County, Residential 80% 27,732 102,731 2019
Changsha

REEE RATRDE =

Taifu Square Phase 3 Luohu, Shenzhen Complex 97.74% 8,964 64,010 2020

ZEFE 535 YT A R Fees

Taifu Square Phase 4 Luohu, Shenzhen Complex 97.74% 8,807 89,105 2022

R EES4E RN AR R mEEe

Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 4 Luohu, Shenzhen Warehouse/ 97.74% 8,727 33,800 2018

Commercial

BRI R E X E4H RN T2 R BfE S EE

Yihu Rose Bay Phase 2-4 Qingjiang North Road, Residential 52.54% 78,759 383,000 2017
Qingbaijiang, Chengdu

TR ER3E2-4 58 BRETEHIEETILE =

Wuhan Bio Valley Project North of Gaoxin Avenue, Residential 52.54% 347,000 830,000 No Plans
East Lake High-tech
Development Zone,
Wuhan

REEYAEE B T SRS = 37 [ = KRBETE
=T A E I

Chaohu Royal Spring North Bantang Economic Residential 100% 163,255 45,457 2019
Development Zone,
Chaohu

L rb1q MM SRBERER  EE

Chaohu Royal Spring South Bantang Economic Residential 100% 145,868 45,825 2019

Development Zone,
Chaohu

KM KEm+¥eRERER EE
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Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development
BE-—E-AQARFERRITRESGHABRR2YERER

Project/Property

HE/MEER

Address

b hk

Property interest held under development

KAERRP2MEER

Interest

to the

Company
AR

=

Land Area

(sq.m.)
1t E
(75 3K)

Planned
GFA

(sg.m.)
REZEER
(FFK)

Stage of
Development Mote)

BREE

Expected
Completion
Year
AHET
=37

Shumyip Zhongcheng (Land plot 05-01)

R (05-0133%)

Shumyip Zhongcheng (Land plot 05-03)

RS HIR(05-0331%)

Gaobangshan No.1 Garden Phase 1
=L SRAEE 18

Shumyip City Phase 3.1B & 3.2
FREWM3.1B&3.288

Changzhou Shumyip Huafu Phase 2
ENREET2H

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Phase 3.1
BRINRXENH1EE

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu Phase 3.2
BEINREENH2EE

Garden Hill Phase 3.1.1A
H 1L &583.1 8 —1ZA
Garden Hill Phase 3.1.1B
FIL#75E3.18—1%EB
Garden Hill Phase 3.1.2
A5 A =2
Shanglin Garden Phase 1.1

E#ZE1.15

Intersection of Hongli
West Road and
Nongyuan Road,
Futian, Shenzhen

AYIT AR A R
AR id) e
BEERIER

Intersection of Hongli
West Road and
Nongyuan Road,
Futian, Shenzhen

AYIT AR A =
A7 PR
BEKER

Huicheng, Huizhou
BN AR

Beijiao Town,
Shunde, Foshan
FIL T EE R AL E R

Zhonglou, Changzhou
BT EE R

Yushan, Ma’anshan
FELTRLR

Yushan, Ma’anshan
FELHRLER

Zhongkai Development
Zone, Huizhou

B SR

Zhongkai Development
Zone, Huizhou
BN ISR =

Zhongkai Development
Zone, Huizhou
HN TS R E

Hailing Road,
Hailing, Taizhou

T P [ P B

Complex

ar
o)
i

Complex

s
o)
il
L3

Residential
F=E

Residential
.

=

Residential
*

Residential
F=

Residential
F=x
Residential
F=
Residential
F=E
Residential
F=
Residential

==

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

97.74%

97.74%

100%

100%

100%

100%

36,193

2,965

37,044

142,546

32,640

36,096

62,670

31,693

15,419

24,199

43,112

338,873

24,659

135,893

245,242

125,939

135,965

194,560

79,847

50,909

127,593

123,384

2018

2016

2017

2017

2017

2016

2018

2016

2017

2016

2016
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Schedule of Major Properties

TEYXRKR

Group | — Property interest held by the Company under development and for future development
BE-—E-AQARFERRITRESGHABRR2YERER

Interest Planned Expected
to the Land Area GFA Stage of Completion
Project/Property Address Company (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Development Mete Year
AR HES REBREEEH AHET
HE/NEER ok b £+ (R FK) (FFK) BREE MR =37
Property interest held under development
RAREDZYHEER
Rui Cheng Phase 2.1 & 2.2 Changsha County, Residential 80% 57,497 197,535 3 2017
Changsha
E2.1 K228 RAOTRD % ==
Qingshuihe Auto Park Phase 3 Luohu,Shenzhen Warehouse/ 97.74% 6,553 35,770 2 2017
JE 7K BB /8 E B3 H YT R Commeraial
BB
Shenyang Old Complex Project Shenhe, Shenyang Complex 80% 17,228 40,200 4 2016
EGERABIUEIRE & T @ RAEE
Taifu Square Phase 1 & 2 Luohu, Shenzhen Complex 97.74% 26,759 283,843 2 2018
RE %1 M2 RN T 2 FAE
Chegongmiao Redevelopment Project Tairan 4th Road, Complex 75.05% 7,944 107,450 1 2018
Phase 1 Futian, Shenzhen
EUNER RN ER AT REARFANRE A8
Guanlan Rose Garden 3rd Industry Park, Complex 52.54% 26,695 164,200 4 2016
Guanlan Street,
Longhua, Shenzhen
BRI YT EREE RAEEE
BEEEE=T1XR
Chaohu Royal Spring North Phase 2 Bantang Economic Residential 100% 20,078 13,102 3 2016
Development Zone,
Chaohu
Hdb @2 HA HHmEsRERER EE
UpperHills South Intersection of Complex 100% 96,150 932,708 3 2018
Huanggang Road and
Sungang Road,
Futian, Shenzhen
RE LR AImREHREEKE HFE8
Tanglang City West South of Liuxian Avenue, Complex 50% 30,101 277,557 @ 2017
Nanshan, Shenzhen
YERA P R AT L & R Al RAEE
A&
Note: Kzt -
1 Site formation 1 HEEFE
2 Foundation work 2 METHE
3 Superstructure in progress 3 FEIE#EITH
4 Interior finishing 4 AEBEE
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Schedule of Major Properties

FTEYPXEKXR

Group ll—Property interest held by the Company for sales
BoE - ARABEFEHEECYEESR

Property

LIES

Purple Kylin Hill Garden
SBLTER

Shumyip City
IREW

Noble Times
REHR

Royal Garden
HE

Zhongxin Science &
Technology Building
REBRRAE

Rui Cheng Phase |
BEW—H

Wanlin Lake
S

Garden Hill
EEY )

Yundonghai (Land plot 2)
ERE (25H3R)

Saina Bay
EulE

Euro-view Garden Phase 1
=B —H

Splendid City Phase 1 & 2.1
SRBEM K215

Maanshan Shumyip Huafu

BRILREER

Changzhou Shumyip Huafu
ENREZERT

Shenyang Wuai Shengang
Bus Station and Meibo
Trading Centre

BEARREREWRER
=L

Terra Building
RARNE

Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 1-3
BB E1 =380

Address

514

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRERYT

Shunde, Guangdong
BRA =

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRAE XYM

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRA YT

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRA YW

Changsha, Hunan
ilea R =R =]

Huizhou, Guangdong

BERAEME

Huizhou, Guangdong
BEREABMT

Sanshui, Guangdong

BERAE =K

Heyuan, Guangdong
BRAEART

Dongguan, Guangdong
ERER=M

Taizhou, Jiangsu
LERE TN T

Ma’anshan, Anhui

ZRAEFRLT

Changzhou, Jiangsu
L&A wMNT

Shenyang, Liaoning

BELERT

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BERE R

Wuhan, Hubei
WIEE RET

Residential
=

Commercial & Residential

BEREE

Commercial & Residential
EEREE

Residential
F=

Office

Residential
=

Commercial & Residential

AEREE

Commercial & Residential
EERET

Commercial & Residential

AEREE

Commercial & Residential
EERET

Residential
F=

Residential
=

Residential
F=

Residential
=

Commercial & Residential

B REE
Industrial
I

Commercial & Residential
EERET

Interest to
the Company

Ry 2

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

80%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

97.74%

100%

80.35%

75.05%

75.05%

TGFA
(sq-m.)
MBS
(SEFK)

617.57

62,866.37

10,334.35

311.05

11,050.91

48,157.11

64,283.82

18,430.74

84,592.34

61,015.32

7,394.16

126,866.05

99,787.91

21,683.95

41,596.71

522.53

35,001.36

Completion
Date

32 q=R
2011

2012

2012

2012

2001

2012

2008-2011

2012

2012

2012

2012

2011-2014

2013

2014

2011

2012

2012



Group ll—Property interest held by the Company for sales
FoE - ARRABEEHEYFEES

Property

L/ES

Yihu Rose Garden Phase |-
=ik e Bl

Tian’an Long Garden
RLHEE

Tian’an Panyu Phase 5-7
RREBS-TH

Tian’an Nanhai New Cyber-
City Phase 5
R8BSR 5 H

Tian’an Changzhou Shanggu
BMREZHA

Tian’an Jiangyin Cyber-City
Phase 1
R LI EE5H1 8

Tian’an Dongguan New
Cyber-City Phase 2-4
RRR=HIEFH2-45

Tian’an Chongging Cyber-
City Phase 1
R EBE S5

Tian’an Longgang New
Cyber-City Phase 3
R B i BUAS T3 A

Tian’an Tianjin Cyber-City
Phase 1
RERZHYIEHAH

Boxing Building
HEAE

Jinzhou Building
SMRE

Coastal International Centre
— Shop & Apt.
EBERRL - AERAE

UpperHills North
RE ERIE R

Jiangyue Bay
T8

Royal Spring North Villa Phase 1
R FE b [ R 221 A7

Address

31t

Chengdu, Sichuan
)14 B &R T

Futian, Shenzhen
RYIT4E H R

Panyu, Guangdong
EREEHR

Nanhai, Guangdong

Changzhou, Jiangsu
TERAEME

Jiangyin, Jiangsu

s oS =pan =)
Dongguan, Guangdong
BRARTM
Chongqing

EEM

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRARYIT

Xiging, Tianjin
REDES R

Luohu, Shenzhen

RN R

Suzhou, Jiangsu
TERAFM T

Suzhou, Jiangsu
TERAEFRM T

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRARYIm

Guangzhou, Guangdong
BRAEEMT

Chaohu, Anhui
RRAE L™

Commercial & Residential

BERET

Residential
F=E

Industrial & Residential
ITHEREE

Industrial
I

Industrial & Residential
TEREE

Industrial
I
Industrial
I3
Industrial
I3
Industrial
I
Industrial
I3

Office
b /NES

Office
b /NES

Commercial & Residential
EERET

Residential

F=

Commercial & Residential

FERET

Residential
F=

Schedule of Major Properties

Interest to
the Company

RE LS
52.54%

37.53%

33.77%

33.77%

37.53%

37.53%

29.27%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

97.74%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Shenzhen Investment Limited
FYHERARA R
Annual Report 2015 F &

TEYXRKR

TGFA Completion
(sg.m.) Date
AIZEER
(SF7K) b3 A=R ]
79,059.83 2013
112.08 2008
52,641.32 2009-2013
858.12 2013
141,5678.57 2010-2012
19,312.65 2012-2013
104,048.68 2013
185,828.30 2012
6,084.72 2012
98,488.18 2013
17,358.28 2013
1,865.00 1990’s
14,214.62 2009
37,977.79 2014
45,257.36 2014 -~ 2015
1,871.73 2015
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Schedule of Major Properties

FTEYPXEKXR

Group lll—Property interest held by the Company for investment
B=E - RDRABEEREZYEER

Property

Shun Hing Square

Shumyip Centre
RER L
Hua Min Building

EFRANE

Hua Min Building
EFRANE
Shumyip Building
RENE

Noble Times

RERR

Chegongmiao Ind. Zone

BHABILER

No.10 Fuxing South
Road
BEMKI105%

Shenhua Science &
Technology Park
RERRE

Shop in No.117
Fuxing Road
BEBI17HEE

Fuxing Building

BEANE

Tian’an Chegongmiao Ind.

Zone

REERFILER

Address

it

Intersection of Shennan

Middle Road, Jiefang Road and
Baoan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen

RN T 7808 2 2R o P B AR
TR KB LR

Shennan Middle Road,
Luohu, Shenzhen

AR T 7R R P B
Renmin South Road,

Luohu, Shenzhen

RINTHEE AR

Renmin South Road,
Luohu, Shenzhen
RYIT R A R
Wenijin Middle Road,
Luohu, Shenzhen
RN T 2 SR AR B

Longgang, Shenzhen
RN BE =

Futian, Shenzhen

R TR A

Futian, Shenzhen
AT 4E H R
Meilin Road,

Futian, Shenzhen
R T 4% R A ARE
Futian, Shenzhen
AT 4E H R
No.9 Fuxing Road,

Futian, Shenzhen
R 4E R 18 £ FR95R
Futian, Shenzhen

AT R EE

Commercial, Office,
Residential &
Carpark

[GERE VNSRS
R85

Commercial & Office
RERBAE

Commercial/Residential,
Commercial & Carpark
BE BER
FES

Commercial/Residential
&/ E
Office

Commercial

[EES

Commercial, Office,
Commercial/
Residential, Industrial,
Residential
& Carpark
BmE T
FEREFES

Residential

=

Industrial

I

Commercial

[EES

Commercial, Office &
Carpark
BB

Office, Industrial,
Residential & Carpark

/N
EERIEFES

Interest to
the Company

NCIDRE

100%

100%

50%

100%

100%

100%

75.05%

75.05%

75.05%

100%

100%

37.5%

TGFA
(sq.m.)
HBEEE
(SF75K)

17,817.12

7,422.84

5,853.19

1,376.98

3,931.39

16,5613.87

138,231.77

64.44

15,341.58

50.49

1,593.20

52,769.47

Completion
Date

&R B8
1996

1997

1993

1993

1991

2012

1994-2012

1990

1994

1993

1993

1992-2005
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Schedule of Major Properties

TEYXRKR

Group Ill—Property interest held by the Company for investment

B - ARAFREREzWFEES

Interest to TGFA Completion

Property Address the Company (sg.m.) Date

HREER
(R FK)

LIES biub NGl RE &R B8

Tian’an Nanhai New Nanhai, Guangdong Industrial & Carpark 33.8% 26,940.04 2008-2015
Cyber-City Phase I

RS2 HA BRAEMEE TEREBS

Tian’an Panyu New Panyu, Guangdong Industrial, Residential & 37.5% 16,921.28 2010
Cyber-City Carpark

R FEB IS BEREER I¥ EEREES

Tian’an Longgang Shenzhen, Guangdong Commercial & Industrial 37.5% 26,589.63 2010-2014
New Cyber-City

R e B T BRAERYIM [EEJEES

Tian’an Dongguan Dongguan, Guangdong Industrial 29.3% 14,660.11 2012-2015
New Cyber-City

R R EEHT BRARM T

Tian’an Jiangyin Jiangyin, Jiangsu Industrial 37.5% 4,296.60 2012
Cyber-City

RE LRSS RS- pani oy T

Tian’an Changzhou Changzhou, Jiangsu Industrial 37.5% 2,107.16 2012
Cyber-City

R INEEE T L&A WM T

Shumyip Garden Futian, Shenzhen Commercial 100% 2,646.43 2002

REEE Y4 = [EES

Sungang Warehouse Bao’an North Road, Industrial & Commercial 97.74% 84,884.21 1990-2002
Zone Luohu, Shenzhen

BERERE AR T2 R B R AL B THEREE

Compostie Building on Bao’an North Road, Commercial/Residential 97.74% 4,812.73 1991
Taoyuan Road Luohu, Shenzhen

IR AR A 12 AT 2 R B 2 AL B . E

Dormitory Building on Bao’an North Road, Commercial/Residential 97.74% 4,835.28 1988
Taoyuan Road Luohu, Shenzhen

HoRER B =12 AR T2 R B AL B . E

Zijing Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Carpark 100% 7,257.00 1997

ESiiPE) R T8 H R (FES

Boxing Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Commercial 97.74% 12,666.90 2014

Shenzhen
HEAE RN T 2R & ) KA [HES
Bolong Building Qingshuihe, Luohu, Commercial 97.74% 39,284.24 2014
Shenzhen

EERE RN T 2R &R ) KA [EHES

S.Z. Int’l. Trust and Intersection of Zhenxin Road Office 75.05% 1,316.54 1990
Investment Corp. and Shangbu Middle
Building Road, Futian, Shenzhen

RINBEIRE R B4 A T4E H R R B & PWAE

NSIPN:

EXRBERR
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Schedule of Major Properties

FTEYPXEKXR

Group Ill—Property interest held by the Company for investment

B - ARAFREREzWFEES

Property

LIES

Shenyang Wuai Bus
Station
EBAEEEY

Shenyang Wuai
Shengang Bus
Station and Meibo
Trading Centre

B AEIRBEIEL R
EHEEZH D

Coastal International
Centre
T B BIRR AR L

Chengdu Jinxiu
Workshop

B ABERE TS

UpperHills South

RE LR

Pengji Properties

JicES7ES

Xiangli Oasis Club

ABsMNERmR

Times Technology
Building

R BHRAE

Longxi Garden

REREE

Nongke Oasis Office Tower
REHE MM AR

Nongke Business Office Tower

BB A

Xiangli Garden
EmICE

Tanglang City
JEEA

Address

it

Shenyang, Liaoning

Shenyang, Liaoning

Suzhou, Jiangsu
L&A BN T
Chengdu, Sichuan
)14 B &R T
Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRERYIT
Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRERYIT

Futian, Shenzhen
RYITEEE

Futian, Shenzhen
AYHEEE

Futian, Shenzhen
AT 4E H &

Futian, Shenzhen
AYHEEE

Futian, Shenzhen
AT 4E H &

Futian, Shenzhen
AYHEEE

Nanshan, Shenzhen

RN TR E

Interest to
the Company

AT iR
Commercial & Industrial 80.35%
[EEJSEES

Commercial & Carpark 80.35%

[EESSEE=E

Commercial & Office 100%
Commercial & Carpark 87.97%
[EEIE 2
Commercial, Hotel & 100%
Office
B BERRAE
Commercial, Residential, 100%
Industrial & Carpark
mE - FE IER
RE

Commercial 100%
[EES

Commercial & Office 100%

Residential 100%
F=E

Office 100%
WAZ

Office 100%

NS

Commercial 100%
[SES

Carpark 50%
RE5

TGFA
(sq.m.)
HREEE
(SF7K)

27,853.00

47,442.46

38,561.95

30,084.89

332,858.65

241,564.28

2,212.09

52,742.86

6,515.27

5,759.83

859.16

2,5660.00

10,541.00

Completion
Date

&R B8
1994-1996

2011

2009

2008

2015

1983-2005

2003

2009

1984-1996

2012

2016

2003

2015
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Schedule of Major Properties

TEYXRKR

Group IV—Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation
EME - ARABEFEEAZYEESR

Property

LIES

Address

514

Interest to
the Company

NCIDo L

TGFA
(sq.m.)
IR S
(SF75K)

Completion
Date

-3 azR ]

Song Ping Shan Estate Futian, Shenzhen Residential 100% 77.27 1996

T (R R 4E H R F=x

Tian Yuan Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Residential 100% 103.23 1997

83T AT R A R F=

Chaohu Royal Spring Chaohu, Anhui Hotel 80% 40,663.91 2012

05 1 SR LA BT B

Jinhui Hujing Garden Huizhou, Guangdong Residential 100% 325.66 2008

ERREER BRABMT F=

Agile Garden Heyuan, Guangdong Residential 100% 383.56 2009

TR I E BRAEART =

Shumyip Coast Bao’an, Shenzhen Commercial 100% 3,728.75 2005-2008

IR AR YT ERR [SES

Shenfa Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Residential 100% 86.37 1994

REIEE RN 2R =

Cai Tian Ming Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Residential 100% 324.44 2001

FREDE AT iR E R F=

Block 611, Ba Gua Futian, Shenzhen Industrial 100% 9,418.02 1985
Ling

NEPE6111R Ay A & I

Factory in Xuexiang Longgang, Shenzhen Industrial 100% 2,168.10 2005
Village

ERNKE RN RE R = I%

Factory in Xiashijia Bao’an, Shenzhen Industrial 100% 5,088.10 1990’s
Village

TARNEE R ERE I%

Block 8, Peng Sheng Futian, Shenzhen Residential 100% 47.06 1992
Village

e ivatR AT 48 H & x=

Block 51, Ba Gua Ling Futian, Shenzhen Residential 100% 35.31 1995

N 58518 wYT4E = =

Block 58, Peng Xing Luohu, Shenzhen Residential 100% 72.69 1990’s
Garden

g SR FE E 581% RYIITH 7R R =

Block 8, Peng Sheng Futian, Shenzhen Residential 100% 31.48 1992
Village

BeaE Ay 8ER w4 H = =

Coastal International Suzhou, Jiangsu Hotel 100% 38,690.71 2009
Centre

B TLERE BN T B E

Shenyang Wuai Shenyang, Liaoning Industrial 80.35% 5,680.00 1994-1996
Logistic Building

BELERER BEEREGT I
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Schedule of Major Properties

FTEYPXEKXR

Group IV—Property interest held by the Company for self-occupation
ENE - ARRABEEERAZYEER

Interest to TGFA Completion
Property Address the Company (sq.m.) Date

HREER
LIES o3k : D B fr il s (FFK) &R H 8

Shenyang Wuai Shenyang, Liaoning Carpark 80.35% 40,106.74 2011
Shengang Bus
Station and Meibo
Trading Centre
EERAERBREMLR RELERGT X
EHE SR

Jinsong Building Futian, Shenzhen Industrial 75.05% 3,600.00 2001
HINKE AR A R I
Jinghai Garden Futian, Shenzhen Residential 75.05% 200.24 1998
REBTEE YT R R F=
Bihaihongshu Garden Futian, Shenzhen Commercial 75.05% 7,431.11 2004
E284a6E AT R R [EES
Mingzhu Times Ma’anshan, Anhui Residential 97.74% 462.40 2005
Square

RERFRES ZBAFHRLT (E2S
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